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R : T h e b i g , I d o n ' t r e m e m b e r ( i f y o u r e m e m b e r r e a d i n g a b o u t t h e

bloody Monday in 1934 Ford Hungar Strike, they call i t the Ford Hunger

Strike, it was actually the Ford Hunger March in March and he was an

employee of the company and they discharged him and he was

b lack l i s ted . Thousands were b lack l i s ted and they cou ld never ge t a

job anywhere . F ina l ly went in to bus iness he had no o ther cho ice . He

w a s v e r y s u c c e s s f u l b u s i n e s s m a n o f c o u r s e . H e c o u l d n e v e r

get a job any t ime he got a job in another locat ion they 'd , a f ter a

week or so they would trace him down.

I : Wa s h e i n t h e s k i l l e d t r a d e s ?

R : N o j u s t i n t h e r e g u l a r p r o d u c t i o n .

I ; And i n wha t bu i l d i ng d i d he wo rk a t Fo rd ' s?

R : I t h i n k h e w o r k e d i n t h e f o u n d r y.

I : jAnd was he i n te res ted i n the s ta r t o f t he un ion i n the ea r l y un ion?

R: Oh most cer ta in ly. We used to have the Ford organ iz ing commi t tee

meetings in our home.

I : And wha t yea rs we re t hey?

R : 1 9 3 1 - 3 2 .

I : T h a t ' s w h e n B i l l M c k i e ' s A u t o U n i o n ?

R : U m m .

I : A u t o W o r k e r s U n i o n . Wa s t h a t i t ?

R : N o t h a t w a s n ' t i t . I c a n ' t r e m e m b e r t h e n a m e o f i t . I t w a s a l o n g

t ime ago. I t was more than auto workers ' union.

I : So he was invo lved was organ iz ing fo r them?
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K ' 3r r
R: / Oh absolutely. And when I was young, about 12 or 13 I used to stay

^ and act as a lookout because the ci ty of Dearborn was Ford ci ty.

Mr. Ford owned the ci ty lock, stock and barrel , he owned the pol iceit-
force, the c i ty counc i l , the Mayor, John A lcary, and they 'd passed any

ordnance that Ford wanted, you probably heard about the ordnance they

p a s s e d , y o u c o u l d n ' t d i s t r i b u t e a n y l e a fl e t s i n t h e c i t y, o r g a n i z i n g

l e a fl e t s . A n d w e ' d g o o u t t o t h e g e t s p a s s e d o u t l e a fl e t s f o r

organizing purposes, the pol ice would come there and arrest you take

you to jai l and harass you and they would let you go but after you had

gone before a judge and the judge Lee R. Schultz(?) was the company's

judge. They had every th ing and they jus t had th is constant
3 4 r b

h a r a s s m e n t ^ ] I /

I : So d id you star t a t the Ford Motor Company ear ly, was that a lways your

d e s i r e ?

R: / /Well I went to the Henry Ford Trade School. I started my employment

there in 1934. I wanted to be a tool and die maker and I went to the

school . I graduated f rom the school and I had four years o f

apprenticeship after that .J JAnd I was going to become an engineer, and

move up f rom being apprent iceship into the engineer ing department for

a few weeks and I had started as an engineer, jPut in a year and then ,

I g o t i n t e r e s t e d i n t h e o r g a n i z i n g . A n d I w a s a v o l u n t e e r o r g a n i z e r. /
b — I

I jo ined the union in 1937 and joined the at that t ime Dodge Local 3.

It was already organized and they were an established union and we

had, Local 600 was not organized we had our charter issued in 1938 of

May. And that 's when we were firs t es tab l ished as a un ion. And most

of us had jo ined. We jo ined under assumed names. You couldn ' t jo in

under your own name.j/we had I don't konw if you remember Homer

b



Mar t in . Homar Mar t i n was the p res iden t o f t he In te rna t iona l un ion ,

united automobile workers and he was also at the same time on the

payroll of the Ford Motor Company.

I : R e a l l y ?

R : W e l l , c e r t a i n l y. H o m e r M a r t i n d i d n ' t y o u r e a d a b o u t t h a t .

I : We l l , I haven ' t s tud ied too much abou t Homer Mar t i n .

R: Oh he was a smooth operator and I used to go to meetings and he was a

preacher. He was a Bapt ist minister and man he could spel lb ind you

and he could talk a leg off you but what was happening [everytime we

would organize there were so many workers they would be discharged

until John L. Lewis came in. That was about 1940 May, I remember I

at tended a meet ing when he came into Detroi t . At the local union as a

matter of fact when they scheduled him in they kept it a QT because

they d idn ' t want Homer Mar t in in the meet ing. Homer Mar t in s t i l l was

the president of the Internat ional UnionJ /And John L. Lewis came in

he brought Mike Woodman and some of his other administrative aides/and

it was on a Sunday about 12 o'clock he used to come down there and he,

John L. said before he wanted to talk to the organizing, we were volunteer

organizer* we had about 50 in the room there out of at that time 80,000

members,/he said before he wanted to speak to us, he wanted to take a

ride around this Ford Rouge plant he'd heard so much about, he wanted

t o k n o w w h y i t ' s s o d i f fi c u l t t o o r g a n i z e i t s o h e l e f t , i t t o o k a b o u t

an hour and a half to make the rounds and he came back and the first

thing he said was I don't see any/achine gun^s or nat ional guardsmen

around that plant. He said when we organized the ooalminers and we

had to figh t t he P inke r tons . They had mach ine guns , bayone ts , r i fles ,

you know they actually did and he made us seem, feel kind of
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fearful he said, you know, you guys scared to organize? And then he put

on a plan a very subtle plan it was at that t ime about 15, 16 planfe
Jo

comprised of 80,000 employees in the Rouge plantjjand when we

organized before, we used to organize, he used to sign anybody up as

long as he was Ford workers. He says no I 'm going to cut that out.

He said only turn in the names from your building and from your own

depa r tmen t , t ha t ' s a l l . And wha t he d i d he s ta r t ed—

I: So that they could know who they were, that they were s ign ing up?

R: Well , not only that we would want to know their names and then each

person, when I s igned up four or five people I 'd have to give those

n a m e s t o t h i s i n d i v i d u a l , t h i s i n d i v i d u a l h a d t o g i v e i t t o t h a t

-Lwindividual. J We wanted to knew where the spies were in the Ford set

up . And you organ ized on ly in your own bu i ld ing . Every th ing was se t

up as a un i t . I t was broken a l l down. And af ter you organized on one

department then you star t to organize at another depar tment . And he

on ly dea ls w i th you . Before everybody used to jus t go to the loca l

and g ive i t to the secre tary- t reasurer and there was no cont ro ls so

/ Mike Widman who was John L. Lewis's administrative assistant became

the organizer and he took over. He says you give and I don't want you

t o g i v e t o n o b o d y e l s e . I d o n ' t c a r e w h o i t i s . Yo u j u s t g i v e i t t o

t h i s g u y. T h i s g u y w i l l g i v e i t t o t h e n e x t g u y. H e w i l l o n l y k n o w

who the next person is . And that way we fina l ly organ ized the p lace.

And every guy was g iven a d i f ferent ass ignment . In other words they

broke i t down so tha t i t s imp l i fied i t bu t a t the same t ime i t had

c e r t a i n c o n t r o l s a t t a c h e d t o i t . A n d t h e n w e w o u l d s t a r t o r g a n i z i n g

that . There was so much organiz ing.

I : S o i t s o u n d s l i k e t h e s p i e s w e r e a n i m p o r t a n t d e t e r e n t .
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R: Oh sure. Ford had, see the Ford Motor Company had two independent

un ions . They ca l led i t the Ford Bro therhood and the Ford L iber ty

Legion. When the union organizing became very strong in there and

everybody started talking about unionism, the Ford Motor Company was

encouraging supervisors and everybody was around encouraging the

peop le to jo in e i the r the L ibe r ty^Reg ion , Ford L ibe r ty Leg ion o r the
y r -

Ford Brotherhood. Both companies dominated unions. /The president of

the Ford Brotherhood was Judge Leroy Schaffer of Dearborn, i And the

-1
president of the L iber ty Legion was another company offic ia l , you know

a top company o ffic ia l ,

I : How many workers d id they get to s ign up to these?

R: We l l the re 's a lways those peop le who a re fea r fu l tha t i f the boss goes

to them and says look jobs are hard to get, the only way to get a job

at the Ford Motor Company, you had to buy it. You had to buy your

jobs. We used to go to the City Hal l and you pay the company official

or you brought a Ford Product, you go and buy a Ford car and you tell

them I ' l l buy a car i f you give me a job. NO problem they give you a

let ter and you go get the job. And then i f your payments were done,

and you got layed off , your car was paid off you got layed off . And

the only way you could hold on to your car or job is to go back and

get another car. As a matter of fact we used to have the th ing so

well timed that when your last payment was due the boss came up to you

and say hey i t 's about t ime you get a new car. I said I got a payment

yet on my car. He says that's okay they want you to go out and get

-]another car.J |ADd they had an^Ford had an organization in the Ford

arryService Department run by Hensy Bennett. He was a goon. They hired

a l l the conv ic ts f rom Jackson Pr ison on the i r Serv ice Depar tment .



I They had a rough s i tua t ion ; there i s no ques t ion about i t . There i s

many a guy got beat up and killed and we never even found out to this

day what happened to some of our organizers. That was the way you had

your jobs and so when the boss come up to you and told you to join the

Ford Brotherhood and he was signing you up. You know signing you up^

the un ion. The guy wanted h is job so he s igned up. But i t d idn ' t do

him no good because you know on the National Labor Relations, we

fina l l y s t ruck t he p lan t . We had to s l ash the Labo r Re la t i ons vo te .

The UAW-CIO well it was a fight also with the AF of L, the AF of L wasc-
more conversative than the UAW or CIO. The CIO was considered a left

wing union, and the CIO won in there. We got 60,000 votes. And

20,000 were for the AF of L,/ the Ford Brotherhood didn't even get on
L U

the ballot .J They didn't get enough names. The Ford Motor Company saw

they couldn't make headway there and so they switched their support to

the AF o f L . They sa id i f there is go ing to be any un ion le t ' s ge t a

u n i o n ^ t h a t ' s a l i t t l e m o r e c o n s e r v a t i v e i n s t e a d o f t h i s r a d i c a l a n d

then 1 the church p layed a ro l l too. I 'm a Cathol ic , I be long for the

Catholic Church and when I went to church, he used to say, they

opposed, they called it CIO Red-dominated unions and they encouraged

the par ishoners to suppor t and vote for the AF of L. Everybody got

in to the , you know the bat t le when i t s ta r ted was a long bat t le . ]

I : How impor tan t were the ACTU in tha t ear ly o rgan iz ing per iod?

R : T h e w h a t ?

I : The ACTU peop le?

R : T h e y p l a y t h e r o l e i n t h e r e . I t h i n k t h e y w a n t e d t h e u n i o n a n d I

don ' t cha l lenge the i r, they suppor ted the AF o f L bu t a f te r the AF o f

L got beat then they became act ive in the CIO. j But not a l l o f them/ l



know a number of Catholics who wouldn't listen to our you know, church

and said, well look, if you want to preach you go on and preach but

y o u w o n ' t v o t e . I h a d a b i g fi g h t w i t h m y m i n i s t e r . I j u s t t o l d h i m ,

you just go jump in the lake. I happen to know who is organizing the

p l a n t s . I t o l d h i m I ' m a n o r g a n i z e r. I s a i d I ' m w o r k i n g w i t h J o h n L .

Lewis the Coal-miners and don't te l l me about that, they had always

labe led John L . as a rad ica l i n tha t pe r iod . He was ve ry rad ica l , f

You reca l l the 1937 s t r i ke in F l in t and he shut the who le c i ty o f

F l i n t down. Bu t they p layed a ro le . They were o rgan iz ing and no t a l l

of them were in the AF of L and some a number of Catholics were in the

CIO organizing. /Joe McCuskejr was an ACTU member and he supported the

CIO, this I know because I worked with Hoe, we were organizing

t o g e t h e r. Ye t h e b e l i e v e d i n t h e A C T U . ] I d i d n ' t I w o u l d n ' t j o i n i t .

I t h o u g h t t h a t t h e c h u r c h s h o u l d n ' t p u t h i s n o s e i n t o o u r a f f a i r s . I

sa id look you guys d idn ' t do any th ing abou t t r y ing to o rgan ize un t i l

we got in and start organizing, and you guys want to get on the

bandwagon. I sa id no d ice . We are go ing to run th is un ion fo r the

good o f t he wo rke rs . Eve rybody t r i ed t o ge t i nvo l ved i n i t .

Everybody wanted to have the i r finger in i t .

I : How many of the Cathol ics do you th ink went for the ACTU l ine? Do you

th ink most of them went a long, because i t^ re in forced the church and i t

a l so / the p lan t , o r d id a lo t o f them jus t re fused to go a long w i th

those?

R: They were sp l i t . I don ' t th ink i t was. jve j&y Gehto txc I nkow a number

o f C a t h l i c s t h a t w a n t l i t t l e p a r t o f t h e A C T U . I b e l i e v e t h a t t h o s e

that became active in ACTU, were those who were very active in the

church activi t ies you know, they were members of the ushers clubs and



th ings l i ke tha t and they become in the , they t ry to do the i r du ty I

guess, to Church and God.j (

I : As a mat te r o f fac t I was go ing th rough the ACTU fi le today a t the

archives and I not iced some letters from the Kinghts of Columbus to

ACTU and it seemed like the people in Knights of Columbus were very

c l o s e w i t h t h e A C T U l i n e . 3 j

is , and RR: Oh yeah and let me tell you this, and Henry Ford the old man was a

Mason and in the plant you had to be a Mason if you wanted to be a

superv isor everyth ing was Kosher J (Ford was ant i - very ant i -Cathol ic

and there was many a Cathol ic switched his rel ig ion and joined the

Masonic Lodges and joined the organizations that moved them up the

ladder you know. Some people wi l l do anyth ing, I guess, to achieve

thei r ob ject ives. | I t was a s t rong urge(?) so they ca l led them the

square c lubs in the Rouge p lant . (Every bu i ld ing had a c lub. And they
fcalled it the all Masons, was they were the, back in thet ime we were

organ iz ing a t the Ford p lant i t was a comple te p lant they cou ld bu i ld

a c o m p l e t e c a r w i t h i t . C a r p l a n t ; g l a s s p l a n t , s t e e l m i l l . A n d s o

they had bui ld ings, they don' t have i t now they changed considerably

t h e i r p l a n t s , b u t e ve r y b u i l d i n g h a d i t s a c t i ve Ma so n i c g ro u p . Eve ry

bui ld ing, there was a top Mason, genera l ly he wi l l be, l ike an our

bui ld ing, I was in the Tool and Die p lant , I 'm a too l and d ie maker,

we have the assistant plant manager who is a top Mason and if you

wanted anything you had to go through him. And they would go around
1

and i f you were a , there were two groups funct ion ing in there. There

was a Masonic group and they called themselves the Square club and

there was the ACTU's and they both had their leaders in al l the

bu i l d ings , t he ACTU 's . . .



R: How large were these groups?

I : O h I d o n ' t t h i n k t h e y w e r e l a r g e b u t t h e y t r i e d t o g e t i n t o t h e

Masonic groups the mot iva tors , the influent ia l pepo le the movers you

know the people who were very popular on the floor. They t r ied to get

these people in in order to win suppor t for the i r po in t o f v iew and

societ ies I guess thei r secret societ ies and ACTU and the Knights of

Columbus were the same way. And everybody had a Knights of Columbus

leader and they funct ion that way and they recru i ted in the i r g roup

and being a Catholic I had many a time Catholics come to me and say

look you ought to belong to the Rights of Columbus; don't want no part

o f i t . I ' m g o i n g t o b e a t r a d e u n i o n i s t . T h a t ' s m y g o a l , t h a t ' s m y

object ive, that 's how we organize and I don ' t want to be par t o f your

group and I don't want to be part of the other group and on the other

hand the Masons. I d idn ' t belong to the Masons or to the Cathol ic

groups and I was always selected a bargaining committee member, I held

office ever s ince the union was establ ished in the Local 600 and never

had no d i f fi cu l t y ge t t i ng e l ec ted . Bu t you f ound t hese g roups

generally were around the older element, the younger guys were kind of

i nd i f f e ren t . You know they jus t l i ke today the you th a re more

energet ic , the young people as a matter of fact i t was a l l the younger

guys in there that got , the older guys had a t rend for the AF of L:

don' t shake the boat we wi l l leave things alone, and the younger guys

l e t ' s t a k e t h i s c o m p a n y o u t , l e t ' s s h u t i t d o w n . I t ' s g e n e r a l , i t ' s

t oday t oo , i t ' s t he same th i ng . I t ' s t he young peop le t ha t a re t he

i n i t i a t o r s o f a c t i v i t i e s y o u k n o w. T h e o l d e r g u y s g e t c o m f o r t a b l e i n

the i r l i ves and they don ' t want anyth ing to happen they got ch i ld ren

a n d t h e y w e r e p r e t t y w e l l e s t a b l i s h e d i n t h e i r c o m m u n i t i e s . B u t i t ' s
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the young guys who give the big power push to the CIO and they didn't

want to fool with the different groups. They were, like I say some

strong, every once in a while you would find one young guy who is

overly ambitious as a Mason, or one young guy overly ambitious as an

ACTU member who wanted to, he wanted to climb, climbers, I guess is

the way I'd tab them. But they changed as time goes on. This guy

would change, this guy would get, you know, dissatisfied with the

ACTU. I have seen them change so many times. ; The leadership like in

our plant there was John Fitzpatrick. He was Irish-Catholic. He was

the old fatherly type he was kind of elderly when we brought the union

in there I guess he must have been around 55 and I was only about 21

then when they brought the union in there, and he would come and talk

to me—look let me give you some advice I'm an old man, I have gone

through experiences, you have to follow your church teachings, you

know and I would tell him, John, I don't care, I said if I want to go

to pray I know where the church is. But I said we're not going to mix

the church with our trade union movement because it just isn't going

to work you know I said I don't want to get involved in these fights.

And they used to, when we used to have elections, they used to, if the

Catholics were supporting one slate of candidates, the Masons were

supporting the other. Automatically. And they did this I suppose

because and I know John and every plant used to have its own set of

officers president running down, and if the guy on the top wasn't a

Catholic John wouldn't support him. He woi^ld put another guy in

there, it would be a third slate, you know.f-4
I: So they would never go to the left then they would just—
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'if1
R: No they would never suppor t the le f t w ing• / / J fwas a lways par t o f the

l e f t w i n g . A l w a y s . A l l t h e w a y t h r o u g h f r o m t h e b e g i n n i n g t o t h e

e n d . I i d e n t i fi e d w i t h , a n d t h e r e a s o n I g o t i d e n t i fi e d i s b e c a u s e

they were the guys that were around, organizing when I was around. I

d idn ' t see these r igh t w ingers . ( |The r igh t w ingers were in the AF

of L. / And then once the union come on the scene they all wanted to

become job seekers and l ike that.J/ l know Bi l l McKie back in the 30s

he used to come over to see my dad. They were organizing and Bill

never denied the fact that he was a ^communit, you know, he said it

openly you knowJ And I knew a lot of non-communists were good

organ ize rs . They jus t wan ted to ge t a un ion in the re and they d idn ' t

care i f you cal led them Rheumatism or communists, they didn't care as

long as they had the union because they got burnt so m^uiy times and

they los t the i r j obs and they go t d i sgus ted w i th i t . j jAnd the re was a

l o t o f n a t i o n a l i t y g r o u p s i n t h e r e . T h e y p l a y e d a v e r y s i g n i fi c a n t

ro le . Surpr is ing ly the Ford Motor Company was very c lever. They used

t o h i r e i n t h e p l a n t s . E v e r y p l a n t w a s h i r e d b y n a t i o n a l i t i e s . T h e

Motor p lant was h i red by I ta l ians and Pol locks. They would have

Po l i sh and I ta l i ans i n tha t bu i l d ing then the nex t bu i l d ing wou ld be

1-1"Germans• /

I : Do you remember some of the at tachments of the ethnic groups with the

b u i l d i n g s ?r feAR: / Well /the foundry was exclusively Negro you know they hired the

Negores^ Armenians, Hungarians in the buildings thcMrgjJ/^In our

building jteh Tool and Die maker was exclusively German and English.

There was no Pollocks. I remember when I'd come in on my

apprent iceship in the plant there in 1938 I got to work with a German
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diemaker leader and he just resented the fact that a s lovic k id comes

in here and go about a trade that is predominantly within^ the German

and the English trade. The English and the Germans predominated in

s k i l l t r a d e s m o s t l y a l l o v e r i n t h e c i t y o f D e t r o i t a n d a l l o v e r

because in Germany you had the great industries, you know and the

o ther p laces d idn ' t have the indus t r ies . And Eng land had a lo t o f

indus t r ies too . They used to come f rom the sh ipyards the s tee l m i l l s

and when Ford hired he used to hire right from these plants, and he

would go to these plants and recrui t themJ And the composi t ions were

d i f f e ren t , bu t t hey we re c l eve r. They used t o h i r e t hem i n t h i s
J3E3

bui ld ing and th is bu i ld ing and l in the Motor p lan t they used to a lways

have one s la te tha t wou ld run a l l I t a l i ans and ano ther s la te ran a l l

P o l l o c k s .

I : Oh yeah . Wh ich was r i gh t and wh i ch was l e f t .

R : The I ta l ians ^ in the Moto r bu i ld ing were the le f t and the Po l locks were

t h e

xcax ians,

r i g h t .

I : T h a t w a s t h e B o a t i n s l a t e h u n ?

R: There was Boa t in , and Johnny Ga l l o , Car l S te l l a to , Car l S te l l a to was

at that t ime in the bui ld ingJ( He was on a bargaining commit tee there

in them organiz ing days and ( in another bu i ld ing i t would be d i f ferent ,

you know. I t would be the Armenians would be the left wing and the

Blacks would be r ight wings. 1 I t 's usurping but, you see the Blacks

when Ford motor company, when we struck the plant,[the Blacks, we had

a hard time convincing them to join the union because Ford had gone

down South and brought them up and they were loyal to Ford during that

p e r i o d .
^
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I : Oh you th ink tha t ' s more impor tan t t han the Inks te r commun i t y

involvement?

R: Wel l , you see one of the th ings you have to remember, they d idn ' t
i

t rust many of the Whites. j jknd Ford provided Blacks with jobs and to

them they came from the deep South and when they came up and got a job
i

and they were loya l to the company. They figured look, th is guy d id

someth ing for us.

I : Ford went down and recru i ted workers h imse l f?

R : Yes t hey rec ru i t ed B lacks , pa r t i cu l a r l y B lacks and t hey b rough t t hem

up, put them to work in the i r foundr ies a long wi th Armenians, a lo t o f

Armenians worked in the foundry. /But well you take Buddy Batt les who

was Reg iona l D i rec to r. I don ' t know i f you read abou t i t , he go t

caught for not turning over the money. Buddy Batt les was on the other

s ide o f t he fence . He was th row ing b r i cks a t t he s t r i ke rs du r ing the

str ike in 1941 because he was one of those guys that bel ieved i i^Ford.

You know they gave him a job and then they used every technique! the

Ford Motor Company used to hire a lot of sports people, you take al l

t hese , be fo re t hey had p ro fess i ona l f oo tba l l a t t he Un i ve rs i t y o f

Michigan the al l-Americans used to come, they used to become big plant

managers in the Rouge plant, you know. Jack Block was there when they

got done playing with the Detroit Lions, they made him plant manager

and so they had an organized p lan of br ing ing in spor ts indv iduals ,

you know they had no plant experience but they made them plant

manage rs , l abo r r e l a t i ons d i r ec to r s and d i f f e ren t s i gns o f t ha t ^i fnature, even af ter we organized, they kept br ing ing them in. I

I : / w i t h a l l t h i s i n fl u e n c e w i t h t h i s e t h n i c i t y a n d t h e d i f f e r e n t p l a n t s

d id they have language c lubs organized around the d i f ferent un i ts?
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R: Oh sure, oh absolutely. They used to have Hungarians, It he Hungarians

used to have what they used to call the pedife club, the Hungarian

where the organizers used to meet^fthe Polish people, Stanley Nowak

was one of the top, Leo Kraschiski from the Amalgamated clothing

workers when he used to be Polish (?) because I used to meet with them

because their being of Polish descent. |E_used to go and meet with

Stanley Nowak and Stanley ran for senator in the 32nd senatorial

district which encompassed the Ford Motor Company and he ran on a

campaign "organize^ Ford" yi he got elected senatorjand when he became

a senator you know we went to see him in Lansing and you know Stanley

at that time on Daniels Street in Detroit and we used to meet with him

and the Polish organizers and Stanely was an organizer and he was on

the internat ional staff a lso. The UAW staff . The internat ional staff

at one time consisted of people who just volunteered to do work, who

only got their expenses, $5 a week expenses. You know there was not

staff job like they have today, you know there is a considerable

difference. I Well Stanley was an organizer and he introduced a bill in

Lansing right after he got elected on the jobs that they were selling

out. So he introduced a bill in Lansing that made it a crime for

anybody to sell a job. You know that's a fact.J I don't know if you

ever talked with Nowak. He is 78 years old today I think.

I: No I haven't. Where does he live now?

R: He lives in Detorit in a government building, what do you call it

government retirement-3
End Tape 1, Side A
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Tape 1, Side B
Walter Dorosh
January, 1984

n , ^

R![[[tThey had their own Armenian organizing committee and among those were

Bagrad Vartanian, who is deceased now,]Loshagian(?) and I th ink he's

st i l l , he was around 80-85 years old now. There is a whole mess of

Armenians but these were prominent ones. They worked and they are

Armenians. And they had a big Armenian plant employment [and Ithey had

Negroes of course Reverend Charles Hi l l , I don' t know i f you ever

hea rd o f Cha r l es H i l l , bha r l i e H i l l was one o f t he p r i nc i pa l

mot ivators in encouraging amongst the Blacks to jo in the union and

^ rthere was Chris Alston and our Mayor of Detroit, Coleman Young, I have

known Coleman for umteen years. _We organized together. Coleman was

one of the pr ime organizers —

I : Wa s t h a t o f L o c a l 6 0 0 ?

R: Yes . He worked in the p lan t . Yeah I t h ink he worked in the S tamp ing

plant there. I knew Coleman very wel l . We spent many a n ight

together running away from the goons.

I : We l l we used to , a f te r t he c i t y o f Dearbo rn and De t ro i t t hey had a

mayor Reading at that t ime he went to ja i l la ter on for be ing par t o f

the rackets , p ros t i tu t ion , they hadn ' t passed the ordnance such as

they had in Dearborn but Detroi t was a funny thing about that again

JDetroit was set up where in /Del Rey was where the Hungarians lived. /

I : W h a t d i d t h e y c a l l i t ?

R : D e l R e y .

I : D e l R e y .
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Yeah it was where most of the Hungarians lived and /the Polish people

l ived in Hamtramack and then/the Slavic people and the Russians, the

Ukranians used to l ive up on Michigan West of Central, and jthe Blacks

used to l ive in what we cal led the Black Bottom and the ci t ies were

1 Jmostlv developed on that basisjand we use to meet in Dave Moore's

home. /Dave Moore was one of the Black leaders. He is now assistant

\ rhe is Adminisrative Assistant to George Crockett.I / Dave Moore, we used

to meet at Dave Moore's house along with Coleman Young and Christ
l1£
■ m kAlston and, I forget some of the names. We used to get what they

called the Ford Organizer Tabloid and we used to pass them out to

neighborhoods•

I : W h a t w a s t h a t o n e c a l l e d ?

R : F o r d O r g a n i z e r .

I : T h a t ' s w h a t i t w a s c a l l e d ?

R : I t w a s t h e F o r d O r g a n i z e r t h a t ' s w h a t i t w a s . I t w a s a s m a l l t a b l o i d .

And the only way we could pass i t out was at night t ime. And i f you

pass i t out in the daytime you never knew if some agent wouldn't

report to the company. I jAnd Mike Wijbman told us once you start getting

organized, I don't want you to be coming a hero, we need you in the

plant organizing, yhou know. Once you get fired you are gone and even

though fi le an NLRB case you are s t i l l not in on the p lant organiz ing.

And he said let 's stop there, before we were al l bold and walk ing

around and they kept fir ing them. They fired 4,000 people you know

and he said that 's nonsense. He says you don' t go hunt ing in the

woods wi th a brass band. He says go on in there very quiet ly. So our

whole technique changed. Ford Motor had a secret organizat ion so

we ' l l have one t i l l t he r i gh t t ime . And so we used to do th i s you

know. I
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\}And ever so often we'd get stopped by, the Ford Service department

used to drive all around these streets with their cars and they'd

park, and every once in awhile they'd catch one of our guys and they'd

take their papers away from themJ So we went back underground and

then that period there to try to get the message and get the story

into the people's homes. Coleman did this, Dave Moore did this.

I: /So most of the language or ethnic clubs were progressive in that early

period?

R: Yes, they were all left-wing organizations. They were the they, were

the motivators. They moved. And they used to call their own, well

that was another difficulty,/the Hungarians couldn't understand

English, so they had to speak Hungarian to them.J/The Polish had,

Stanley used to be on the radio program and talk on the radio, you

know. / Ford workers please join the union if you want this, and then

there was a struggle between the church,)/at that time we had a

congressman John Lazinski who was the CaStolic church's candidate for

Congress in our 16th congressional district. Well he was on the

opposite side. And the Congressional district and Senatorial

district, Nowak's were identical, you know they were identical makeup

and one got elected congressman as a democrat and one got elected

senator and both had opposite views. But the Polish people

predominantly were in this area and they supported them. Both Poles

for office and they were there they had two opposite positions

Congressman Lazinski who was a rat, though he was a democrat. He ran

on Roosevelt's program but he was anti-union every Catholic church in

this area supported him you knew and I used to get so upset about

t h a t .-m
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I : The Ford Moto r company i s un ique in tha t i t had a t tha t t ime a l l t hose

bui ld ings together. How much of an e ffec t d id that have on

in teract ion between workers in the p lant , was there a lo t or d id the

workers pre t ty much s tay wi th in the i r own bu i ld ings?

R: pPhey s tayed w i th in t he i r own bu i l d ings . They were a f ra id you know. I

had, hell you worked with a guy for years, you never knew his name.

You are a f ra id to ta lk w i th them.

I : W h a t a b o u t a f t e r i t w a s o r g a n i z e d ?

R: Even af ter i t was organized. JAf ter we were organized the Ford Motor

Company s t i l l had i t s agen ts a round . \ I ' l l g i ve you one i l l us t ra t i on .

I was on a bargaining committee in the Tool and Die plant, this would

be around 1955-56 and we had a fellow who was a crane operator, he was

a rigger, he used to hook up steel, he used to have the walk of the

who le bu i ld ing , a ve ry n i ce guy, a popu la r i nd iv idua l , he had t i cke ts

for footbal l games, for basebal l games, he was wel l l iked by

everybody. Everybody l iked the guy and so anyway one day in the

committee rooms si t t ing in the committee room along with the other

committeemen and we were talking about, some guy came in and I forgot

to get his name, and he said so and so just had a heart attack and the

ambulance just took him away to the infirmary down there so we went

down there the committee and all and by the time we got down there

they had just put him in the ambulance and he was just carried out and

he had a jacket and every th ing , and they sa id we l l th is i s h is jacket ,

and he gave it to me and he said you might as well take it and find

ou t where h is locker i s and pu t i t i n h i s locker and c lose i t up . He

said by the way here are some papers that fel l out of his pocket and I

sa id okay so I took the papers, whi le I 'm ta lk ing to people I got them
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in my hand, and I go back to the committee room because I had to go,

the committee room preceded going to his locker, I didn' t know where

h i s l o c k e r w a s . I s t i l l h a d t o fi n d o u t w h e r e h i s l o c k e r w a s , t o p u t

in there. I layed it on my desk and I was working on something and

some guy comes along and starts reading it , you know reading the stuff

there and sa id what the he l l i s th is , he sa id . I sa id what have you

got. He said I saw it on your desk here you know I picked it up and I

said what is th is, I 'm reading i t and here is a guy that was making

repor ts on what d i f ferent people were say ing and what d i f ferent people

were doing and anything that looked suspicious you know you know I

looked through the th ing and JI ta lked to our pres ident o f the bui ld ing

who's name was Lacey, I said Lacey, what 's th is a l l about, I said you

have any idea what th is is a l l about and he said there 's a stool

pigeon. [ /Stool pigeon for the Ford Motor Company and I said wel l let 's

find ou t . We kept th is and we pu t the s tu f f in th is locker and we

opened up this locker and he had all kind of materials wejhre he said

he talked to so and so and so said this. He used to attend the

membership meetings, he used to report everything in the membership

meet ings. Wel l anyway he was off for about for months and final ly he

comes back to work and we got the word out if anybody sees him to let

us know and somebody comes in the committee room and says Tom's back.

He is? So I went down there and I said hey, come in the committee

roan. I c losed the commit tee room door and put th is on the table and

I sa id : "Wha t i s t h i s? " He tu rned red , he d idn ' t know wha t t o say.

And he just come back from a heart at tack, I didn' t want to press him.

I sa id what i s th is? I sa id to h im, you jus t come th rough a ser ious

i l l ness , we don ' t wan t to d i s tu rb you , bu t we ' re no t go ing to a l l ow



20

you ge t away w i th th i s . I j us t wan t to know wha t th i s i s a l l abou t . I

s a i d y o u c a n e i t h e r t e l l u s o r t h e t h i n g i s g o i n g t o g r o w. I ' l l l e t

i t ou t on the floor and i t w i l l g row. And you a re no t go ing to be

around here long. He said wel l he was recrui ted by his church and

they told him, and they give him a box number. And he used to get $50

a month sent to his box number.

I : W h a t c h u r c h w a s t h i s ?

R : W e l l , h e w o u l d n ' t t e l l u s . I d o n ' t k n o w i f t h a t w a s t h e t r u t h o r j n o t .

I: Was it information on who was supposed to be members of the CP or

someth ing l i ke tha t?

R: No i t was jus t so and so ' s ta l k ing abou t shu t t i ng the p lace down th i s

guy ca l led h i s boss a fi l thy name. He sa id they to ld h im to , fo r

anything he thought was important.

I : Wa s h e a C a t h o l i c o r —

R: I don't know, we never knew. See he came in and we thanked him. The

Ford Motor Company supplied him with these baseball t ickets and he

always had t ickets he a lways said I can ' t make i t . He'd come in the

committee room couple of t imes al l the good guys hey I got two t ickets

to the Michigan game I can' t make i t . He says do you want them. I

sa id no , I don ' t have t ime to go . But he was a lways g iv ing t i cke ts

away, everbody l iked h im. Always had lo t o f t ickets and that was an

in. The company knew how. The short of i t was, we excused him, told

him to go on (?). Our board got together and we discussed this and we

said look we can' t avoid th is anymore, we got to protect our workers.

We got to press charges against this guy or ask the company to

terminate his employment. We are not going to have a guy l ike that

around us . The guy qu i ts . But I th ink the company t rans fer red h im up
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to ano ther p lan t , you know they go t p lan ts a l l over the coun t ry. They

probably paid his way. So we had a national Ford conference and I

brought i t up there and I to ld them to keep an eye on the guy. I

don't know we never did hear anymore about the guy. But I guess that

he came in but you see we have a unique situation. We have interplant

senior i ty at our Rouge p lant and then we got areawide senior i ty too,i

t h a t ' s i f a n i n d i v i d u a l , h e ' s g o t l i k e 1 9 4 0 s e n i o r i t y i n h i s p l a n t , h e

has to have 45 to get back to work and then 39 in the Rouge. He can

h i re h im and he can come back in there i f there . i f h is sen ior i ty

permits him you know. And at the t ime of recal l he's got to make up

his mind whether he wants to go back to h is or ig ina l bas ic senior i ty

p lan as we ca l l i t , o r, because he gets what they ca l l date o f ent ry

there and he gets h is tota l senior i ty in h is p lant so he makes up h is
imind i f he wants to go back and so, periods of t ime people . to dri f t

a l l over and so we d idn ' t pay too much par t icu lar a t tent ion to i t and

we lost track of the guy anyway you know but we have had two or three

others like this too so we know that the Ford Motor Company does.

They have i t to th is day.

I : So that keeps workers from communicat ing too much?

R: No I don ' t t h i nk they do bu t t he re i s a number o f i nc iden ts tha t

occurred when I was a plant committee member and things occurred, we

are suspic ious of indiv iduals, we were, I don' t know how they are

t o d a y. I r e t i r e d t w o y e a r s a g o . O f i n d i v i d u a l s w h o p a r t i c i p a t e d i n

a l l ac t iv i t ies bu t never say noth ing . He was the k ind he wou ld go to

the meet ings he would go here, to the str ike meet ing, the meet ing of

some groups he's there. He wants to know what's going on. And we

used to have another guy in the plant who was an electrician and he
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used to go a l l over. He used to at tend meet ings. We had 18 p lants at

that t ime, we had 18 units and he used to be at all the 18 unit

meet ings. They would say what the he l l are you do ing there. You

don ' t have a r i gh t t o go i n t ha t mee t i ng . You cou l d j u s t s i t t he re ,

nobody would stop you. And we found he was a company paid agent. But

we a re foo l i sh i f we don ' t t h i nk i n t he un ion , t ha t a co rpo ra t i on , a

b i l l i on do l l a r co rpo ra t i on l i ke Fo rd doesn ' t have any agen ts a round .

They may have them right in the board you don't know, but they are

pretty smooth. J You know even their labor relations people changed

t h e i r t a c t i c s . W h e n w e s t r u c k t h e p l a n t a t fi r s t , o u r fi r s t m e e t i n g

with management, man, we used to almost have fist fights.

I : T h i s i s i n ' 4 1 ?

R: Yeah we used to a lmos t have fis t figh ts in ou r mee t ings w i th the

company. They used to come in and say: No absolutely no, don' t g ive

me that you know.

I : L i k e t h e B o u l w a r e t a c t i c ?

R: Yeah . Jus t s t rong-a rm, you know, we 'd have to - ion the floor and shu t

it down. The company don't know what's happening, but that was

anarchy, rea l anarchy. Every guy was do ing someth ing d i f fe rent , we

said gee this has got to stop. 1

I : Yes t ha t ' s i n t e res t i ng . I was read ing - f eba t t he Fo rd Mo to r Company

Arch ives, a manuscr ip t by Harry Barnes which never got pub l ished. I t

was supposed to be the sympathet ic report of unionizat ion at Local 600

but i t never got published for some unknown reason. But anyways he

had a chapter on what happened to labor relations after the UAW was

organized at Ford and he claims that before i t was organized there was

hard ly any s t r i kes . There was hard ly any w i ldca ts o r shor t s toppages
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or s lowdowns and af terwards i t just real ly exploded wi th s lowdowns

and—
i

R: [ su re , because the worke rs fe l t t hey had power. Be fo re tha t t hey

d idn ' t have any power. They were d iv ided wi th a l l k ind o f agents

around and they were fearful and then there was only the young guys

that, well we had, l ike in the ski l led trades, we had a 1936 and 37 we

had a shutdown and we tried to bring the ADSA in there and they closed

that whole plant down, shut the plant down and they hired al l new

p e o p l e . I w a s n ' t t h e r e a t t h a t t i m e , I ' m t a l k i n g a b o u t t h e s k i l l e d

guys that were there. I Well they showed, what happened they really

began to realize they had power, man they, we had to turn around and

the committee had to act as breaker (?) on some of these things.

Because everyday he you'd go to work and they' l l s t r ike everyday, they

were oging home, going home and finally the guys started gett ing mad.

["well some of the older guys, older people became accl imated to the

Ford condit ions you know, you know what I 'm talking about. They have

already learned and they have become kind of susceptible, they become

very mi lktoast. The younger guys that come in there yeah what the

hel l , you know they were rais ing hel l but what they were doing is

get t ing r id of these guys. One t ime they had a t rouble maker they

hired in. They'd get r id of him, you know they took him up, he was

fired tha t 's a l l w i th no quest ions asked. And some o f these young

guys when the union came in there, Lord, you know we were just pleased
0

afcjbt their mil i tancy but everyday they had a shutdown, everyday, you

know. And we would go down on the floor and say "what the hell is the

problem?" you know. They says wait a minute we are not going to go

for that , you knowA What was happening, i t was compet i t ion we didn' t
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have any universal rates of pay and we got what you can talk your boss

out of. We've had some die makers, when a str ike occurred,

apprentices hired in at 70 cents an hour and when you hit a dol lar an

hour you was a journeyman. He could graduate into that 75 cent an

hour but it doesn't mean you get the money automatically. jJThey used

to give wage increases in 5« increments. And if you wanted to become

a boss as a Mason, he'd say if you want to join the Masonic Lodge,

I ' l l g ive you a n ick le , you know. That ' s the way i t opera ted .J Wel l

anyway when we moved to a dollar an hour you was considered a top

diemaker and supervisors as a rule start at 20 cents above the

diemakers who were $1.20 an hour. But they used to ring cards and

they had badges like we had you know they were all the same.[^So when

we took, Jesus, about a year until we were able tt> get what they call

the personnel payrol l records of a l l the personnel and the reason we

wanted th is we were threatening to str ike them again unless they

turned them over to us because we want to know just what the hell kind

of wage rates we would be asking for on our contract negotiat ion^JJwar

came on the scene of course and that screwed us out a lot but we

establ ished, we maintained that throughout the war .J A dol lar and

$1.20 for tool and die makers and product ion I th ink they stopped at

75 or 80 cents an hour. And when we got this payroll records and we

pulled them out, we had some guys who, well it showed you the

company's operations, there were sane guys who did nothing they were

jus t c le rks in the depar tment . They are mak ing $1.50 an hour. The

foreman were making 90 cents an hour. Oh were they hot, when they saw

these, you know. I de l ivered, I showed them to the superv isor because

every, I had what they ca l l the body d ie d iv is ion. Fender and body
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division die room came under me. They gave the whole thing to the

president of the unit. And he broke it up because I was the

committeeman, what they call the district committee man. And so he

turned those records over to me and I was supposed to go by and check

each guy off and find out if that's his rate of pay and I told him

this is what the records show. I Well, they started all looking at them

and then we found out that these guys were getting $1.50, $1.60 were

treKS toeges for the company because the minute we got the payroll

record they disappeared. They, all the supervisors were furious. Here

is a guy who was a clerk and they hire him as a clerk like today under

our clerks in the plant are right on the bottom. Sweepers make more

than the clerks. All they do is like check in the payroll and menial

jobs for a foreman. They were hot and by looking at these payroll

records you were able to tell who the stooges were, who the agents

were and when we began to put two and two together you know, /well the

company wanted these records back later on and they said that they

would give us something I forgot what else we asked for J We wanted

something bad and when we struck the plant, we also got what we call

the payroll division. The company wanted that back too and in return

they would give us something that we wanted bad. I think it was a

check off, I think they gave us a check off in return.

I: Why would you want that?

R: Well, the check off is if you, we used to spend all day trying to pick

up the dues dollars day in and day out and I couldn't take care of the

other business.

I: Oh they gave you check up, okay.
3

R: Yeah we asked for i t . j
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I: I thought you meant they gave you check off records.

R: No the union check off and so then we got that I think in return. We

returned the records and that was very damaging. They didn't realize

it. They didn't understand it. Payroll, what do they know, they just

run it off and give it to us. They come up on cards at that time. We

don't have the data processing like they have today. Each individual

card we had to look at them I made a record of them filed them, put

the figures on it and when they looked at it, I think I kept my copy I

made for years but then we finally, it became useless. It was always

"okay let's forget what happened." "Let's bring them all into the

union." There are a lot of reasons why these people did this you

know. Nobody knows the reason for it, you know. They might have said

to this clerk,well;look we will hire you in. We will give you a job

if you will do this. And they said okay I'l l do it. Jobs were scarce

and some guys figure what the hell what do I h^ae to lose. I think I

^ l 5 d o i s ,got a good ]ob out of it ^ghat we try to 4± ied, same thing between

the AF of L and all the divisions of the AF of L and CIO they say look

let 's forget i t . We are al l one union now. You know. The first five

or six elections it was AF of L vs. the CIO you know they inovlved the

CIO and I know one guy he talked to me and said look, he says "I just

thought the AF of L was better, why do you, why are you picking on me"

you know. "You are dominate now but if the AF of L turned around" he

says "would you want me to pick on you because you was supporting the

CIO.? I said okay let 's forget about i t . I t was a long fight there.

But it stilly was imbedded there for awhile but it's gone today of

course*..3]
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I: Was the foreman's union that was organized during World War II a big

deal?
I

R: Well, they had a foreman's union. They went on strike and I don't

know well they were on strike for about three weeks there was no

supervisors in the plant and then they finally settled and they just

got rid of the, they moved all the militant organizers of the

Foreman's union (?) and they got rid of them. Under the collective

bargaining agreements, their supervisor or an employee would leave

what they call included work or excluded work, he does not have a

guarantee to go back to included work as an automatic thing. Ytf are

at the mercy of the company. And if you become a supervisor, an

engineer which is excluded work any salaried position then you're -a«r

the mercy of the company and if the company wants to bring you back,

they bring you back. If they don't you are gone. That's all*

I: So they were organized and there was some kind of discussion about

whether they would be affiliated with the UAW?

No they were organized under the Foremen's union of America. They

wanted to be part of the UAW and we said no. That was not hard to see

it was a decision of the International Union made.

I: Do you think that there was a change in the nature of the supervisors

, themselves after the union was organized?

R: /well, they were afraid right after they were organized they were

afraid. (They were hiding and we had real power and of course a lot

of, they would come to the committees and say look "get this guy off

my back" the guys were just you know they felt free. Boy what a

wonderful (?) you know. "Get this guy off my back you know. He's

eating me up alive." They were afraid there for a long time. Even

R:
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the superintendents we used to whenever we had any problems we

couldn' t solve on the floor we would come down, okay, let 's go to the

super in tenden t ' s o f fice . A t t ha t t ime we had abou t 4 ,000 peop le i n

our bui lding, we had about 2,000 people aorund the office and the

supervisor would be shaking his hands l ike that, you know and they

would say what 's going on, what 's going on. You got some supervisors

out there . . . cal l them in, cal l them in," you know and he would get

his secretary and cal l them and say what 's this al l about you know and

he wou ld be ac tua l l y shak ing l i ke th is , you know. Our super in tendent

at that time was Joe Derby and he was just bouncing off the pavement

and he said okay we will take care of it we make a decision and it

coucjg. have been the wrong decision but he says okay we got it

everybody go back to work. Okay then everybody go back down the

aisle. And another thing we demanded a coffee machine in the place

and got everybody standing about the coffee machines you know. They

j u s t i n a h e l l o f a p o s i t i o n . T h e y c o u l d n ' t g e t n o p r o d u c t i o n g o i n g

for l i fe or death you know. Everbody was th inking oh, what power you

knowa
I : Ye a h J / S o l a t e r o n a f t e r t h e w a r, t h a t s u p e r v i s o r ' s u n i o n'1&

d i s i n t e g r a t e d r i g h t ?

R: Yeah, by 1948 , abou t '48 o r '49 when they fe l l apar t . They went on a

str ike for about three weeks and nobody d id anyth ing in the p lant .
ford
For was losing his shir t and th is was under Harry Bennett . They was

doing afo t o f s tup id th ings, l l rhey operated wi th the (?) you know I

remember we had the negotiatons/we had a general council meeting,

genera l counc i l o f loca l 600 , our de lega tes f rom each bu i ld ing tha t

are elected and they meet once a month and they take care of their
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business in the local union. / And we used to have at that time one

committeeman for every foreman.7

End Tape 1, Side B
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W. Dorosh
Tape 2, Side A

i n a u d i b l e •

.X[Genera l Counc i l , they sa id that 150,000 gr ievances, none o f them
are be ing se t t l ed . We ' re go ing to have to no t i f y t he company, t h i s i s

to ha'sabout 1947, 48. We said we are going to have to notify the company,

or we're going to shut th is place down.

I : W h a t s t a g e w e r e t h e y s t a l l i n g a t ?

R : Eve ry s t age . We wou ld a rgue abou t , t hey d i dn ' t have l abo r r e l a t i ons

l i ke t hey have t oday, t hey used t o h i r e ex - f oo tba l l p l aye rs . They pu t

t h e m i n e v e r y b u i l d i n g . I ' l l g i v e y o u a c o u p l e o f t i c k e t s f o r t h e

footbal l game you know just arrogant and they didn' t understand the

re la t ionsh ip o f fo rces in the re . We l l , anyway on th i s one case Jack

Blant who was the a l l -Amer ican center for the Univers i ty o f Mich igan

was considered one of the company's top labor relations guy and so the

local unions went to the company and said look you ei ther star t

se t t l i ng these g r ievances o r we are go ing to have X s t r i ke th is p lan t .

The company w& then converting to its new '49 model and they were just

gun-ho on ge t t ing tha t ca r ou t . I t was an oppor tune t ime. And so the

company sa id ok , we w i l l i ns t ruc t Jack B lan t who w i l l s i t w i th a l l

p l an t s , a l l 17 p lan t s and se t t l e t hese g r i evances .

I : And tha t was the p lan t rev iew board s tage?

R : N a , t h e y h a d n o p r o c e d u r e s , t h a t w a s t h e t o p s t a g e y e s

a n d h e w a s o u r t o p l e v e l . W e h a d a l l t h e s e g r i e v a n c e s , • S o

anyway we walked in with ours, tool and die had two or three days set

aside and we come in there with out grievances and then we had a pile
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l ike th is you know and so we took the first gr ievance out and

n a t u r a l l y c o r d i a l , c o r d i a l i t i e s w e r e o u t o f t h e w a y, w e t o o k fi r s t

g r ievance in , we read the g r ievance o f f , and he sa id "den ied . " I sa id

wai t a minute what a re you deny ing fo r. "Den ied no, unmer i to r ious . "

Okay next one. I said wait a minute we are not ready to go to the

next one. Let 's d iscuss th is gr ievance sheet , you know. So and so we

go th rough i t and a l l t ha t . "Unmer i t o r i ous den ied . " We wou ld a rgue

that th ing for an hour. We would get exhausted and sa id okay le t 's

get the next one, maybe we' l l get the next one. "Denied,

unmeri tor ious." And we went through about 15 l ike that so we had a

caucus . Okay le t ' s go th rough them, l e t ' s see i f t hey a re go ing to

grant any. So we go through i t you know. Aren' t you, and many of
^ 1

th o se g r i e va n ce s a t t h a t t i me d e a l t w i t h se n i o r i t y. S e n i o r i t y w a s ,

because what/ was happening before the union came in, if the foreman

didn' t l ike you, you just boom you went in to another bui ld ing you know

and you could be a tool and die maker and you could end up in the

product ion p lant , and the guy would figure, i t 's a job you know and so

they 'd constant ly move people around. I f there were t roub lemakers and

a l l and so they had a t t ha t t ime es tab l i shed bu i l i d i ng sen io r i t y and

bu i ld ing sen io r i t y meant tha t you had pre fe rence o f sh i f t s and

preference of jobs. There was af ternoons, days and midnights and the

preference shi f t was days and some preferred midnight before

af ternoons and so by senior i ty you p icked your job. And so each

bu i l d ing had da te o f en t ry. I n o the r words i f I worked 20 years i n

the p lant and in a bu i ld ing l ike the t i re p lant and say the company

bumped me off and said go to the spring and upset building. So you go

to spr ing and upset so you got date of ent ry there. You got date of
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en t ry, and then you go r i gh t to the a f te rnoon sh i f t . You say wa i t a

minute " I got 20 years senior i ty. " So he wrote a gr ievance why he got

bumped out of his building and he wanted to go back to his building
o h f -

you know al l that, ^f just a mess. /Oh the company tr ied everyway to

see i f they could d isrupt and we hadn' t na i led any pr inc ip les down in

these areas yet because we were deal ing with wages and classificat ions

because when we come into the tool and die unit we had 2000

c l a s s i fi c a t i o n s a n d t h e c l a s s i fi c a t i o n i s i m p o r t a n t b e c a u s e i f y o u a r e

working on the mill and I'm working on a mill and the company had the

c lass ifica t ion se t up a t a C inc innat i and a Mi lwaukee mi l l and two

d i f f e r e n t c l a s s i fi c a t i o n s a n d I c o u l d b e , t h e y e s t a b l i s h e d i t t h a t w a y

you know, and then not only that they had him classified as diemaker

A, diemaker 1, diemaker 2, diemaker 3, diemaker B, diemaker—all k inds

of—and die repair and each one had a separate c lassi f icat ion and so

w e a r e t r y i n g t o p u t a s e n i o r i t y l i s t t o g e t h e r. S o w e s a i d w a i t a

m inu te . Th i s i s nonsense . We were w res t l i ng w i th t he b ig t h i ngs

t r y i ng t o g roup a l l t he s im i l a r c l ass i fica t i ons and we had a he l l o f a

t ime t ry ing to convince a company because they had their f r iends that

they cou ld pro tect . You know i f they cou ld have a f r iend work ing on

th is m i l l he re and th is , the bo th iden t i ca l mach ines bu t they go t two

company, just like a Ford and a Chrysler you know and they say now we

have to lay off the Mi lwaukee mi l l . This guy could be wi th one month

senior i ty and this guy had 10 years and he is out in the street you

know. We said wait a minute, no way we aren't going to buy that, and

some were get t ing a l l fur ious, and you couldn' t get promoted and they

said well we promoted people from the Milwaukee mil l . What do you

m e a n , t h e y a r e a l l m i l l s . T h e y r a t e d m a c h i n e r e p a i r. T h e y s a i d
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machine repair one, two, three and machine repair A, B, C and we said

what's all these classifications, you know. Well this guy A machine

repair A in order to repair these machines . . "oh wait a minute we

want them to repair all the machines," "no we want them especially"

and they did that for a reason. Because as a rule they used to have

supervisors in these operations that didn't know anything about the

jobs, they were appointees, you know. Stooges, appointees. And so

they knew this machine and they want him on this machine only. They

knew that machine would run. That production has got to go and skill

maintained with production operations. And so he know that Tom Brown

h e o k a y t h a t ' s t h e g u y I w a n t . B e c a u s e h e c o u l d n ' t h e

couldn't repair a machine if his life depended on it, because the

supervisors were polit ical appointees, goons, ex-football players,

boxers, but they had the big jobs, you know walked around with blue

suits, white ties with the guys and kept the jobs going. And they got

the big jori.U As a matter of fact one of the things that not known too

far and wide is that when we struck the plant, there was at least

1,500 people never saw the inside of the Rouge plant were on the

payroll getting paid. They were in Florida, they were down here

because we had sent guys out to locate these guys when we sent these

guys out to locate them the guys said what do you want with me. He

says oh we have a word from the union, we have a payroll, Ford says

that you are on the payroll. And this guy's going to college,

University of Detroit, University of Michigan and they were getting

paid it was a loose organization. They would just put them on my

payroll and I would check them in and check out, no the guys going all

over the, they had no procedures, no system, in fact the Ford workers
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admitted that the union came in and helped save the company. They

were going to go broke. They had no system. There were goons running

it, the service department running it and nonmanagement and nobody

knew what they were doing. It 's amazing how they even did some of the

t h i n g s t h a t t h e y d i d .

I : A t t h i s t i m e d i d n ' t y o u h a v e p u b l i c a c c o u n t a n t s c o m i n g i n a u d i t i n g

th is sor t o f th ing as the payro l l was be ing passed out or d id that

c o m e l a t e r ? f

R: That came later. / You see we used to get paid in cash. No pay stubs,

n o t h i n g .

I : Ye a h , t h a t ' s h o w i t e n a b l e d y o u t o u s e a l i a s e s , r i g h t ?

R : Tha t ' s r i gh t . They used to ge t pa id i n cash . You had a badge and

they'd give you a pay envelope, and your badge number would be on the

envelope. No name, no nothing. They would never let you know who you

were,just a badge number. My badge number would be W1860 and that's

yours . You don ' t know i f i t be longs to you o r no t . You go to the bay

window and you show him a badge and he looks in there, here is 1860
i

and away you went. No name on them, no social security, no nothing. (

So they can pad it, in some departments they had hundres on the pay,

and*obody ever knew who they there. I f I was the super intendent in

that bu i ld ing I cou ld put anybody I wanted to on the payro l l . Who

would chal lenge i t . Who would chal lenge those guys. There was

hundreds of them. We had to locate these guys and they final ly

admi t ted we l l why the he l l I 'm no t go ing to work in the p lan t . We

to ld them we want to know your c lass ificat ion, what sh i f t you work on,

what bui ld ing you work on. A lot of them got smart and they didn' t

want to answer the questions so we knew right away that there were
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some 1,500 who never saw the inside of Rouge plant on the payroll at

Un i v. o f M i ch . , Un i v. o f De t r o i t , Wayne Un i ve r s i t y, t he i r f a t he r s we re

some wheels in the company and put them on a payroll and give them a

regular weekly wage you know.

I : T h a t ' s a m a z i n g . • ^

R : O h y e a h t h e y d i d a l o t o f , I / w e h a d p i c t u r e s w e h a d t a k e n

dur ing the organiz ing, what Mike Witman to ld us to do, is to get

cameras and make sure you don' t get caught. Take pictures of th ings

that you see is wrong. We had accumulated a lot of pictures and the

company knew we had these pictures because we showed these pictures in

the NLRB hearings.

I : Yo u m e a n l i k e w o r k i n g c o n d i t i o n s , t h i n g s l i k e t h a t ?

R : Yeah a l o t o f t h i ngs you know. We saw a l o t o f t h i ngs go ing on . We l l

the company wanted ' 'pictures real bad and we finally agreed they had to

g ive us some; so r t o f p i c tu res though . Tha t company, I ' l l t e l l you to

work in the Ford Motor Company dur ing that per iod was terror, real

te r ro r 71 I

I : I So you were ment ion ing ear l ie r about the sen ior i ty prob lem in too l and

d i e . D i d y o u e v e r g e t t h a t s e t t l e d ?

R: Oh yeah we go t i t down to th ree c lass ifica t ions f rom the 2000 .

I : W o w .

R: Yeah. You have your, we have grouped your too l and d iemaker, the

machine operator or y i j jo r smal l mach ine operator. That 's a l l you are

now. We have grouped them a l together. A l l these thousands of
0

c l a s s i fi c a t i o n s . We d i d t h a t a l s o i n t h e p l a n t t o o . 0 o y o u k n o w w e

had a l l k inds o f them, so they es tab l i shed th ree , the des igna ted ,

undes igna ted , and , t hey ca l l ed i t t he c l ass i fica t i on o f c l eanup and
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everything. There is only 3 basic classifications you know. And

every plant had thousands but now you know where you are. And now we

have, we eliminated date of entry and if you get transferred moved up.

All your total seniority goes with you. In other words the company

couldn't play this game no more you know. (

I: ]What happened when this football player that was heading the

negotiating committee?

R: |0h well anyway after one day in negotiations we spent 8 hours there

and we would argue back and forth and never settle a grievance second

day nothing, finally we went to see Tommy Thompson who was then

President of Local 600 and we said, "Look, we had been there for 16

hours already and we haven't got one grievance settled. We told him,

bbiat attitude, you know. So he called the company and they told

them, I don't know what they said, and next day we come into the

negotiations and he said brother you really put me on the spot. And I

said what do you mean we put you on the spot. He said you guys went
k

and seen Tommy Thompson after we completed the negotiations. We sure

did. And he said we haven't settled a grievance so I said today is-J
our last day and there will be other groups coming in and we can't

operate. He said look let me tell you 50 percent of these cases. He

says he took that pile and broke it down he says here is 50

case—grantees and rejectees. He said hold on we can't operate that

way because once you get a rejection you establish a precendent, or if

you grant something you also establish a precedence you know. He says

I got to grant you 50 percent. He said well let's start going to work

now. Well they knew we were serious you know because tool and die was

always a unit that was militant, very militant. We led all the
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strikes and we moved all the forces even, we broke the no seal formula

they were the one that were initiated it here at the Rouge, we forced

Walter Reuther to move on it. But we had a good militant group of

leaders they were dedicated good leadership. They were all

conscientious people. And there were so many inequities and we

figure** we had to get these inequities corrected. [And —

I: Do you think that the fact that the workers were skilled made a

d i f f e r e n c e ? n

R: Oh sure because there was a shortage and the company was worried! they

had a layoff in 1948 we used to have;when a strike broke we had 14,000

tool and die makers in the Rouge plant. You know tool and die,

machine*? repair was part of the tool and die unit. And we had 80,000

well during the war we had 120,000 people working at the Rouge.

I: And that included people in the service•

R: /Those on the job. 120,000 are the Rouge plant and after the war when

we struck the plant Ford was furious. He was going to sell the plant,

he was going to get out. Edsel Ford and his wife finally brought

Henry Ford to his senses and he finally settled after a 10 day the

strike (and then we struck the plant in 1948 I don't know if you

remember this.

I : S p e e d u p i s s u e . 7

R: Speed up issue yeah. I In '48 we struck the plant and we kept the plant

down for I think about two or three weeks. I can't remember exactly

how long it was now but again we close out the whole Ford industry

because that was the Ford industry. They didn't have nothing beyond

that. They had a couple of paddle (?) plants around but that was it.

Ford made a decision then to decentralize the Rouge Plant./
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I : A s a r e s u l t o f t h i s s t r i k e ?

R: Well sure because we shut down and everybody said we had them by the

throat because he had the Lincoln plant and that 's a l l he had besides

that you know and he had a few paddle points around the country and! so

they made a dec is ion that they were go ing to decentra l ize that p lant .

They were going to bui ld plants al l around the country and we went to

court on that in 1952. and we went before Judge Freeman in the city ofy 3

D e t o r i t f e d e r a l j u d g e and we had!Ernie Goodman the attorney who used

to be the attorney, UAW attorney before Reuther, when Reuther took

over he threw him out, he was part of R.J. Thomas administration and

we worked about three or four days and we presented the case. Our

argument was that by the company decentralizing makes insecure our

jobs, o f 80,000 workers . And the c i ted a number o f o ther cases, cour t

cases and the judge after the case was completed the Ford Motor

Company, Local 600 vs. the Ford Motor Company the judge in handing

down his decision said that the case is a good case that i t was

meri tor ious and then he said that i f he was to make a rul ing, he

didn' t say so much that he would rule in favor, but the Ford Motor

Company cou ldn ' t decent ra l i ze un less he ta lks to the un ion. But he

said I cannot handle this case, I cannot make a decision because the

un ion , t he con t rac t i s no t w i t h Loca l 600 bu t w i t h t he I n te rna t i ona l

Union, l ie said I wi l l g ive you so many days and to br ing the

In te rna t i ona l Un ion i n to j o in the l oca l on th i s case and then he w i l l

render h i s dec is ion . I was on the s ta f f then a t the Loca l 600 w i th

Stel lato, Stel lato was president then and he went down to see Walter

Reuther and he wouldn't see us. So we told his secretary what we

wanted and we said we would like, we had big (?) going on with the
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In te rna t iona l Un ion because Wal te r s igned the five-year con t rac t and

we were fur ious about that . We d isrupted a t the convent ions and a l l

over and we raised hell with him and we said he had no right to,

w i t h o u t c o n v e n t i o n d e c i s i o n , t o s i g n a fi v e - y e a r c o n t r a c t j u s t w a l k i n

and say who the hell made you God. He and" carried on a campaign in

Fo rd f ac t s wh i ch was ou r o f fic ia l pub l i ca t i on . I was the head o f t he

paper then and I rea l ly b las ted h im. /And he wou ldn ' t jo in us in tha t

case and Judge Freman then dismissed it i j That case had serious

ramifica t ions where indus t ry cou ld no t , i f you had made tha t dec is ion

industry would not just be able to close up a plant from down South

run away or you know because they want to make big profits in other

locat ions a l l because of unionizat ion or a number of th ings you know.

Because i f you reca l l in tha t per iod i t was a dr ive maybe c i t ies to

lure bus iness. I t caused grave consequences for the communi ty, fo r

the c i ty and everybody.

I : And no o the r un ions p icked up on tha t a f te rwards , because tha t ' s an

impor tan t i ssue today.

R : We l l l e t me j us t say t h i s , t ha t t hose who p i cked i t , up t he even t s

have changed dramatical ly, but at that t ime i t was a new thing and you

see it depends when you do things too you know events sometimes, the

picture becomes more clear because at that t ime the government and

everybody was favor ing the South you know after that, I mean. The

drive was tqmove everything down South away form the unionized

centers . But we, !Judge Freeman d ismissed the case wi thout pre jud ice.

He couldn't get Walter Reuther and Ken Bannon who was the Ford n

Director to jo in us in the su i t against the Ford Motor Company.
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I: Do you th ink that Reuther 's mot ives were just because he was upset

w i t h S te l l a to a t t he t ime o r do you th i nk t ha t — .

R: I I th ink Reuther at that t ime, my honest ^opin ion, we were too big for

Walter Reuther, Local 600 we used to go to a convention, we used to

have 300 delegates and the convention at that time we used to have

1500 delegates. We had qui te a s izeable crowd. And at the 1955

convent ion or was i t '53 or '55 I fo rgot wh ich one now, Ste l la to ran

for Vice-President, we just nominated and ran wi thout any campaigning

a n d h e fi n i s h e d i n t h e r u n o f f . N o c a n d i d a t e h a d s u f fi c i e n t v o t e s ,
C

t h e r e w a s t h r e e t h a t r a n f o r V i c e - P r e s i d e n t . A t e r t h a t e l e c t i o n
J

Wa l te r Reu the r a l so changed the cons i t u t i on . A t t ha t t ime i f you

remember when Walter Reuther got elected in 1947, you could run for
or

the p res idency /one o ffice a t a t ime , i f you los t then you cou ld a l so

run f o r you r own j ob aga in , V i ce -P res iden t . And i f you l os t t ha t , you

cou ld run fo r Sec re ta ry - t reasure r. You cou ld run fo r some job , you

know, /wel l i f you remember Walter Reuther got elected President and

R.J . Thomas ran fo r Vice Pres ident and go t e lec ted . A f te r the

convent ion, a f ter the Sta l la to convent ion where we a lmost upset

Reuther, he said oh no from now on you are going to have to elect

everybody at one t ime, one vote. I t changed the whole concept of the

conven t iona l

I : So you t h i nk t ha t h i s r e f usa l t o he l p you w i t h t h i s cou r t case was

j u s t a p o l i t i c a l m o v e m e n t ^ - -

R: Wel l , yeah we had a b ig fight w i th h im. Look we were out to get h im.

We were th ink ing about running Ste l la to for president against and we

had introduced a number of programs, we put out al l kinds of

l i t e ra tu re , /we backed Reu the r o f f on t he five -yea r con t rac t , we
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in t roduced^ I don ' t know i f you reca l l t h i s e r i od , \we i n t roduced a

s t r i ke f und , Ca r l S te l l a to , and we i n t roduced a reso lu t i on a t t he

convent ion. Loca l 600 for a $100,000 s t r ike fund, and Wal ter Reuther

ca l led i t the push but ton s t r ike sa id we wanted to push but ton, i f you

r e a d t h e c o n v e n t i o n p r o c e e d i n g s , i t ' s a l l i n t h e r e . L e t ' s s e e t h a t

would be what '50 , '52 , one o f those convent ions, I can ' t reca l l now.

And they lasted off we had a big fight on i t on the convent ion and i t

jus t got beat by a few votes. Today the s t r ike fund was about ha l f a

b i l l i on do l la rs and i t ' s $500 ,000 ,000 and I don ' t see them g iv ing the

money back to the workers. You know i t 's a good th ing there's no

quest ion about i t . I t serves a very good, you know a t the t ime o f the

str ike today they get $65 a week, that buys bread. There are a number

o f th ings l i ke tha t , ]we pushed on pens ions , Wa l te r d idn ' t wan t to

Ipush on pens i ions . We s ta r ted back in '47 . We pu t up a b ig figh t in

'47 for pensions and Walter Reuther wanted the —

I : Guaran teed annua l wage?

R: Yeah, guaranteed annual wage that 's what he was pushing for and we

used to say we want pensions (and /we wanted it there 30 hours work 40

hours pay.

I : How much suppor t d id you ge t fo r tha t?

R: Oh we had lo t o f suppor t a t convent ions but they would a lways, Wal ter

was always turn ing around on the convent ion floor. He would get sane

issue, I remember we had a conference in Washington, D.C. and that's

when we i n t roduced the reso lu t i on . O r i g i na l l y 30 f o r 40 i ns tead o f

^the guaranteed annual wage and Walter Reuther said the 30 hour a week,

jat that time we were involved in the war with Korea, 30 hour week was

helping the communist and we must be communists and boy he really

&
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reared. Took us to town in Washington and we had the FBI in a

conference and everybody, oh what a set t ing i t was, and they inv i ted

s e c r e t a r y o f l a b o r, M i t c h e l l t h e s e c r e t a r y, h e w a s a p i p e fi t t e r,

remember, in Eisenhower's Cabinet he would come in and he red-baited

anybody who would do this would be known as stabbing soldiers in the

back, we said what the hel l are you ta lk ing about.

I : T h e r e w e r e l a y o f f s a t t h e t i m e .

R: Yeah we had layoffs, thousands of unemployed, we had 20,000 unemployed

at the Rouge. We were down to 60,000 then you know. And we were

agents of Moscow by recommending 30 for 40. I

I : S o t h i s w a s j u s t —

R : P o l i t i c a l a t t h a t t i m e .

I : Depending on who would ra ise the issue, Reuther would suppor t i t o r

no t? I f t he r i gh t w ing o r Reu the r ' s backe rs had i n i t i a t ed a p roposa l

l ike that do you think i t would have won?

R : I d o n ' t t h i n k s o . I d o n ' t t h i n k , I n e g o t i a t e d w i t h R e u t h e r , I w a s o n

a Ford negotiating committee from 1961 to 1973 and al l those

negot ia t ions I sat and I saw wi th Wal ter and I don ' t , h is theory was

d i f fe ren t . H is theory was tha t you take e lements ou t o f the work

week . The shor te r work , no t the shor te r work , vaca t ions , inc reased on

the i r vaca t ion pe r iods , ho l i day pays , ge t t i ng more ho l i day pays , then

Leonard added to these here 14 days that we got in addit ion and that

theory was to take, instead of cutt ing the workday down to 7 hours a

day or 6 hours a day you take more elements out of the work week.

We' l l in t roduced new, Wal ter ta lked about re t i rees phas ing out when a

guy reached the age of 60 he would start taking three months out of

the year off and the company would pay him you know. Of course that
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would conc lude, i f you figure there is 4 weeks vacat ion pay that 's one

month already and there are 14 paid holidays and then the 14 other

days we used to get , what they cal l personal days off you know. I f

you add all these up he was already within two and a half months and

so they figure a guy reached the age of 61 then he would add another

week and that this way they would have to keep hiring more people.

Tha t was h i s t heo ry. He be l i eved i n i t I t h i nk , I t h i nk he was

s i n c e r e o n t h a t . I d o n ' t t h i n k , h i s t h i n k i n g a s I v i e w i t , b y

reduc ing the work week would make i t , the cost proh ib i t ive, i t would

be p roh ib i t i ve fo r peop le to i nves t money i n to i ndus t r i es . They have

to get an 8 hour day to make sure they get a proper return on their

m o n e y. I t h i n k t h a t w a s h i s , I t h i n k h e s i n c e r e l y b e l i e v e d t h a t . A n d

he had economists too you knKow, he had Nat Weinberg and Cohen who

wou ld work w i th h im. And I th ink they he lped influence h im. These

guys a re topfl igh t economis ts . I t h ink We inberg worked fo r Har ry

Truman at one time and was an economist. You know you got all kind of

economists. One says you can have a good year, one says you are going

to have a bad year. |

I : Y e a h . /

R : We d id someth ing tha t ' s i n te res t i ng , / i n 1967 I was the cha i rman o f t he

Ford Negotiat ing Committee and we went on str ike i f you recal l and

w e r e fi g h t i n g f o r a n i n c r a s e , s p e c i a l i n c r a s e f o r t h e s k i l l w o r k e r s

and we wanted a 20 cent increase but we didn' t spel l i t out at that

t ime . We sa id we wan ted a s ign ifican t i nc rease fo r the p roduc t ion

worke rs . The b ig economic i ssue , and i f you reca l l t ha t pe r iod ,

Johnson asked us to hold the l ine and he set up some guidelines that

sa id ho ld t he l i ne . Our economis t s —

End Tape 2, Side A
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W. Dorosh
Tape 2, Side B

R: Wallace sent letters to 100 economists in the country. And what he

tried to do was to get support for our point of view and we would make

this public, you know. We got 100 different responses. Every

economist had a different solution, different answer. Wallace said

that's the end to that. But from 100 economists, we send to. I was

the chairman of the committee and as chairman of the committee we

consulted and we discussed this and we said okay, let it go. And it

was a letter just saying that we are presenting and we if I remember

the contents of the letter, saying that Johnson asked us to stay

within this here guidelines we think within the guidelines, and so and

so the Gross National Product up and with this year, we had to go back

three yars, '64, '65, '66, '67. It 's projected '68, '69 and '70 and

we think that we are within this formula you know.

Everyone cone back with a different answer. Well, I gave up on the

economists.

I: So he didn't send it to labor economists, just any economist.

R: Well, he sent them to labor too, but as I said they got different, in

other words there was no significant trend in support of their

position, you know.

I : U n h u n .

R: And all kind of different formulas. They had their own solutions.

Everyone thought it was pretty hard just like you get two

psychiatrists together and you can't get them to ...
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I: One thing I forgot to ask you at the beginning was that you could list

the different positions you had in the union from the beginning until!

you ret i red.

R: Oh Jesus I

I: Just get the main ones, the ones who would spend a lot of time in.

R: /well, I did every kind of job you could think of. I was department

committeeman, district committeeman, bargaining committee, I was

Recording Secretary of the Tool and Die unit, Vice President of Tool

and Die unit. President of the Tool and Die unit, general council

delegate, convention delegate almost every convention and President of

Ford Local 600, Administrative Assistant for Leonard Woodcock.

I: Which years were you president?

R : S i x t y -five to ' 75 , t en yea rs .

_["#: That's a long time. And then during the early '50s you were on

S te l l a to ' s s ta f f ?

R: Oh yeah. Well,ll was in charge of ^publications in 1950 until about

■52 when the un-American Activities committee came to Detroit and then

I resigned and went back to work and I got elected again,

committeeman. I Because we were named /Local 600, they named about 300

guys that were communists,! SheltonJTapgfe and Lee R&m#io both worked

for Reuther, named us, all agents. Nothing happened out of it they

just sold everybody's names they began, the committee, they just asked

us if we were communists, of course we couldn't answer because if you

answer you have to be a stool pidgeon. And so on advice of lawyer you

say that you stand on grounds of, I don't want to be intimidated71 [But

right after that Reuther put an administrator at the Local 600 and

this was '52 I believe, and they put administrator over there and took
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e v e r y b o d y o u t o f o f fi c e t o o k a l l t h e s t a f f a n d p u t h i s g u y s o n . I

went to work in a plant .

I : A t tha t t ime were you back in the shop?

R: Yeah, everybody went back to work in the p lan ts . They jus t says go

back to work in the p lants . So I went to work bu i ld ing d ies, I was a

too l and d ie make r. And t hen r i gh t a f t e r t ha t Wa l t e r wou ldn ' t a l l ow

us to schedule new elect ions. At 600 unt i l he thought we were ready

f o r a n e l e c t i o n .

I : Yeah i t was supposed to be 6 months or someth ing l ike that?

R: Someth ing l i ke tha t yeah . S ix months went by and we s ta r ted ra is ing

hel l and we took about 1,000 guys, I guess out to Sol idar i ty House.

And I guess that scared him. Becuase we had a big r iot out in f ront

of the bui ld ing there you know and not only that we told his

admin i s t ra to rs tha t , h i s admin i s t ra to rs coming down to the bu i l d ings ,

and we told him the next one come into this building we were going to

throw his ass out you know, th is is what we to ld um, " I f you won' t let

us come in see Reuther, don't you send your administrators out to our

bu i ld ings , we ' l l t h row them r igh t th rough the door w i thou t open ing the

d o o r s . "

I : So what were they doing, they were act ing as the committeemen and

chairmen?

R : Ye a h . T h e y w e r e a c t i n g w e l l t h e y w e r e i n c h a r g e . T h e r e g u l a r

committeemen functioned but they were the overseers.

I : They were l i ke the cha i rman o f the un i t wou ld have been.

R: Yeah, they were over the chairman and everybody. You know they had,so

they went through all the buildings and so Walter made an announcement

short ly af ter that that e lect ions would be scheduled and so we ran an
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elect ion and Wal ter ran out o f the in ternat iona l reps Gene Prato ran

fo r p res iden t he was Bannon ' s Admin i s t ra t i ve Ass i s tan t . Jack

Pe l ig reno ran fo r Vice Pres iden t , he was Admin is t ra t i ve Ass is tan t to

the Regional Director and I th ink there was about 50,000 votes cast .

I th in Ste l la to go t about 35 ,000 and I th ink the res t go t about 6 ,000,

Reuther took such a beating there that, in them years we used to have

e lec t ions every year. The nex t e lec t ion Reu ther wou ln jd ' t suppor t

nobody in the race . No p lace . Eve rybody wen t uncon tes ted . The le f t

w i n g . T h e r e w a s a l l t h e l e f t w i n g e l e m e n t s . A n d t h e n a f t e r t h a t

Reuther wou ldn ' t , we l l he s tar ted mak ing over tures towards the loca l .

S te l l a t o was b i t t e r abou t i t . And he wou ld ' t t r us t Wa l t e r, because he

ran w i th Wa l te r as the cand ida te fo r the in te rna t iona l un ion aga ins t

Tommy Thompson. Thompson Thompson was a left wing candidate and that

was a bi t ter campaign.

I : He was runn ing as a r i gh t w inge r t ha t yea r r i gh t , i n 1950?

R O h y e s , S t e l l a t o r a n i n 1 9 5 0 a s a r i g h t w i n g e r. H e , J o h n F i t z p a t r i c k

was chairman of his campaign committee. He was chairman of the ACTU
\ H

at the p lant . And a f ter he got e lec ted and wi th in th ree or months he

broke wi th Reuther because r ight a f ter that i t was when the five-year

c o n t r a c t d e a l c a m e u p . A n d t h a t ' s w h e r e t h e fi g h t s t a r t e d . I t w a s

someth ing e lse that had occurred that , what the heck d id Wal ter do. I

c a n ' t r e c l a l i t i n m y m i n d b u t i t w a s t h e fi v e - y e a r c o n t r a c t , i t w a s
Q

bet ter, you know i t was at that t ime, we fe l t throughut the whole war

the Ford Motor company and these corporations made huge profits. We

had a contract in 1947 and before the workers could get organized i t

seemed l ike the top made the decision in negotiat ions and we got

no th ing p rac t i ca l l y you know. I th ink they g ive t foo l and d ie makers
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18 cents an hour increase and product ion workers 11 cents, af ter war,

yea rs o f p rofi t s , t r emendous p rofi t s , we l e t f ou r yea rs go ou t w i t hou t

any increases and everybody was just get t ing ready for i t and before

you get star ted and the negot iat ions were over they said here is a ^

s e t t l e m e n t , t a k e i t o r l e a v e i t . A n d t h e r e w a s a l o t o f r e s e n t m e n t . \

And one of the th ings that they had in that contract was a no-st r ike

c lause . They pu t the no -s t r i ke c lause in the re and few o the r fea tu res

that were new and there was bitter resentment over that and so we had

meet ings , the vo tes were taken a t the meet ing ha l ls . And in the

meet ing ha l ls a l l the in ternat iona l reps was there and people were

afraid to vote and, and many of them didn' t vote, you know they just

w e re i nd i f f e ren t . And t hey ca r r i ed t he con t r ac t by a ve r y sma l l

margin, you know. And so then we star ted a fight that we want secret

bal lots none of this nonsense so they promised us X 1950 that 's the

way i t would be, you know, the 47 contract , '50 contract , and Wal ter

goes r ight back aga in s igns a five year cont rac t w i thout even, you

know he had a couple of good features, I 'm not questioning that, we

talked 23$ percent annual improvement factor and the cost of l iv ing

index was good but the 2k percent we says before we get 2k percent we

should at least get 50 cents to make up for al l those war years, you

know that 's th is wasn ' t what they pr ivate d iscuss ions were go ing on,

we would get a sizeable increase and nobody even thought about the 2k

percent o r the annua l improvement , in fac t i t was Wi lson 's cont rac t ,

G.E. Wi lson, so Wal ter thought i t was a good idea. Wel l the cost o f

l i v i ng f o rma l l y t u rned ou t t o be a ve ry s i gn i fican t t h i ng you know

because, but s ince the contracts are s igned s ince '50 I bet you the

cost of l iv ing must be at least 4 or 5 dol lars per hour by now, you
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know. But i f we didn' t have that we would have been gett ing i t anyway

in a contract by, I th ink we would have got i t anyway but that made i t

automatic and the company, it may be easier for the company because

they de l t i t ou t in penn ies ins tead o f a b ig lump at one t ime. Those

are the issues that Car l fought on, you know, he was b i t ter about i t .

I know Carl , we organized together and we're good fr iends to th is day.

I : When did you start working with him? He was on the r ight when he was

in the Tool and Die?

R: He wasn ' t in the Tool and Die, he was in the Motor p lant .

I : O h y e a h I ' m s o r r y .
I

R: He was in the motor plant. /He was on a bargaining committee there and

then he went to the in ternat ional un ion on s ta ff and then they

conv inced h im to run. But he was a le f t w inger in the p lant . And he

ran on the r ight wing t icket for President of the Local 600 and msj j t

have won by maybe 300 or 400 votes. It was such a, maybe one had

15,300. I t was a very close race. But Tommy Thompson gtt t got beatTl

And then when Carl broke with Reuther he was way left.

I : Yeah he d i d t ha t f o r po l i t i ca l r easons a l so , he needed supo r t f r om the

lef t to oppose Reuther?

R : I t h i n k h e b e l i e v e d i n i t . H e b e l i e v e s i t t o t h i s d a y. H e b e l i e v e s

in a shor ter work week. I th ink, I know Car l good enough to bel ieve,

tha t those are h is be l ie fs . I don ' t th ink he went because he wanted

the l e f t ' s suppo r t . I t h i nk even tua l l y he wou ld have go t i t you know

by taking posit ions he did, but he was astute enough to know that

these are the issues that, he was a Ford worker, and he erne from that

area and he had to pay for his jobs and he had to stay in the bull pen

just l ike everybody else you know. You know the torments of being an
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employee in a Ford Rouge plant and I think he, in my opinion is, that

h e s i n c e r e l y b e l i e v e d i n t h o s e t h i n g s , I t i l l t h i n k h e d o e s .

I : W h a t a b o u t h i s t r i a l ; r i g h t w h e n h e g o t e l e c t e d , t h e t r i a l o f t h e 5 ?

R : Th i s i s s t i l l du r i ng t he Reu the r pe r i od be fo re we conv inced h im t ha t

i f you want to s tay there and s ince you d idn ' t run out on le f t wing

t i cke t , you go t t o smash a l l t hese l e f t w ing l eade rs i n t he p i l ce t he r '

eyou know. I t ' s a g rand iose scheme. I t a l ked to h im abou t i t a

number o f t imes. He sa id I was young, he sa id I jus t so ld a b i l l o f

goods, Ruether sa id you are very successfu l and i f you don ' t the le f t

wing is going to defeat you in the next elect ion. We used to have
> I

e l e c t i o n s e v e r y y e a r. B e f o r e t h e e l e c t i o n , b e f o r e t h e b a l l o t s w o u l d ,l>
the ink would dry, they would star t another campaign, and he did, they

4
presses charges aga ins t five , the counc i l vo ted i t down, the t r i a l was

t h r o w n o u t , t h e c o u n c i l w s a a l l l e f t w i n g . I d o n ' t t h i n k t h a t ' s

r i g h t . I ' m n o t s a y i n g t h a t I d o n ' t t h i n k i t w a s l e f t w i n g , I t h i n k

tha t the guys seen in tha t tha t , i t was jus t a d iv ide , a un ion

techn ique you know, ca l led th is guy a catho l ic or ca l led th is guy a

commun is t , o r ca l l ed th i s guy a soc ia l i s t o r Tro t sk i t e o r wha teve r,

and I th ink tha t the counc i l a t tha t t ime was s t i l l made up o f the

guys who helped bui ld th is union and I th ink they just saw the fact

that , i t was a lmost unanimously voted out , even r ight wingers, some of

t h e r i g h t w i n g e r s t h a t w e r e i d e n t i fi e d w i t h t h e r i g h t w i n g c o l d n ' t

conce ive o f i t , except aga in the s t rong ACTU, I th ink John F i tzpa t r i ck

said that he was strongly behind it, you know. I loverall I know when

the hearings were held and tr ials and the hundreds of people used to

come there and they int imidated the r ial judge and the committees and
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everything you know and the committee was made up of five ACTU guys as

a ma t te r o f f ac t .

I : O h r e a l l y ?

R: I th ink so yeah, i f I remember the i r names. We ta lked about i t many a

time. And I said to him how can you be so stupid? You know, I have

never known you to be a guy that bel ieved in these techniques. Young

and stupid, he says. But he stayed 15 years as President and I

succeeded him. I

I : How do you th ink tha t some o f those o ther th ings tha t passed in

L o c a l 6 0 0 , t h e r e d - b a i t i n g t h i n g s l i k e h a v i n g t o s i g n t h e Ta f t - H a r t l y

Ac t and a lso dur ing the Korean war tha t l i t t l e p ledge tha t a l l the

o f fi c e r s h a d t o s i g n ?

R: Wel l , there was a whole deve lopment that took pa lce a t least I was

before the Internal Secur i ty Commit tee in Washington, I was before the

UnAmerican Activi t ies Committee in Detroit and each one of them they

said they had cited me for contempt 45 t imes, 55 t imes, Walter Reuther

had me up before his trial committee he was bitter because he knew I

wrote the stuff about h im, a l l the mater ia l that came out condemning

h i m o n h i s . C a r l w o u l d t a l k t o m e , w e w o u l d s i t d o w n I w a s

in charge of publ icatons and I was wr i t ing h is ar t ic les when i t came

out, and we blasted Reuther you know, and we had a guy in our staff

who t o l d Reu the r abou t i t . H i s name i s Ea r l Ave r i l l , I don ' t know i f

you have ever heard of him. Earl went down and talked to waiter

Reuther and so when we had the hearings we went up there and Earl said

t h e r e i s t h e s c r o u n d r e l r i g h t t h e r e .

I : Ye a h t h e y c a l l e d y o u t h e g h o s t w r i t e r .
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R: Yeah it wsja before the UnAmerican Activities Committee too. Because

he had laid it out before the UnAmerican Activities Committee too,

Earl Aver ill. And he says that what happened was we were writing

articles against Reuther's policies, the 5 year contract. And some of

the plant chairmen, had great difficulty in compsoing material to put

in the Ford fact's so I they would come to me and say well write it

for me so I wrote it for several years you know and when I got before

the UnAMerican Activities Committee Congressman Rankin says to me, did

you write this article, did you write this article and Earl said, Earl

Averill already told him. Not Earl, Dave, told him that I wrote all

these articles I wrote Stellato's articles, we had some guys who were

proficient writers themselves,/Paul Boatin could write himselfJand/Ed

Lock^ used to write himself.{ There were some guys, we had one

chairman who couldn't even write. He agreed with the sentiments, I

said you want me to write it, I'll write it for you, and yeah, put his

name on it.

I: Yeah the way those were structured it really didn't sound l ike, i t

didn't say that it was written by this chairman.

R: I t just had his picture up there.

I : Y e a h . ^

R: But his allegedly was his, you know.

I : Y e a h .

R: Well, I don't know we talked about it, there was a great bit of

discussions and everybody voted. /They said look this is only a

devicive tactic. I f we fai l to sign these pledged al l i t wil l mean is

that they will have officers take our place under the law, you know

and they would contest us to the labor relations department. We
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ta l ked to a t t o rneys , we ta l ked to l i be ra l a t t o rneys and they sa id

signing don't mean a gooddam thing. Al l you can do is vacate these

jobs for guys who may not want to carry on the struggles, you know,

don' t deomonstrate the same consciousness. Based on th is d iscussion

we a l l fina l l y says okay l e t ' s ac t , so we a l l s i gned t hem. Bu t i f we

were communists al l they do is prove i t and we would go to ja i l . None

of them were proud of i t . Nobody was prosecuted. I went before the

publ ic review board, let 's see you know what the pbul ic review board

is, the UAW public review board?

I : Y e s .

R : I w s t h e fi r s t c a s e b e f o r e t h e p u b l i c r e v i e w b o a r d a l s o . A t t h a t t i m e

the chairman of the committee was, what£ was his name, a Rabbi from

Dewtroit, Adler, cal led me up and he told me that! Walter Reuther says

tha t } tha t was in ' 53 , i t was r i gh t a f te r the ' 53 e lec t ion I was

elected again to Record ing Secretary to the bargain ing commit tee in

the Tool and Die and it was a ve;$r hot heated election and they used

the UnAmer ican Act iv i t ies Commit tee mater ia l and everyth ing and that I

was a big Red and workers said I don' t care what he is. Al l I know is

h e ' s o n a j o b , h e d o e s t h e j o b t h e y s a i d ; I d o n ' t c a r e . I t d i d n ' t

bother them. ^/There were five people that ran for the job, Recording

Secre ta ry and I ba t five w i thou t a runo f f by 2 -1 ma jo r i t y a f te r coming

back knd I had left the plant in 1950 I had resigned the job and then

I went, Stellato asked me to come, he said I got to have a guy who can

wr i t e and take cha rge o f Loca l 600 pub l i ca t i ons . I t hough t abou t i t

and I hated to g ive up being on the l ine I th ink being on the l ine

being a commit teeman is the greatest th ing in the wor ld. You have

d i rec t con tac t w i t h wo rke rs and you j us t f ee l t he i r s t r eng th , you
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cou ld fee l the sen t imen ts genera te . I cou ld a lways p red ic t wha t the

heck was going to happen. Get on the floor you were always talk ing to

p e o p l e . Yo u h e a r a l l t h e i r p r o b l e m s , i t j u s t e x a c t l y, a n d I k n e w

every guy by h is fi rs t name, h is badge, h is sen io r i t y and h is fami ly

problems and everyth ing you know, i ts just .

I: You were on half t ime whenyou were committeeman?

R : F u l l t i m e .

I : Fu l l t ime. J Fu l l - t ime you go t a commi t tee desk and you a re fu l l t ime

p o n t h e j o b . A n d i t s t h e g r e a t e s t s t r e n g t h i n t h e w o r l d . I t ' s t h e

b e s t j o b i n t h e w o r l d . I t w a s j u s t a g r e a t f e e l i n g , y o u k n o w. I

hated to give that up. When I was on the bargaining committee when I

gave i t up. I was in charge of the whole plant and you don' t have

that d i rec t fi rs t s tage, you have the second s tage, and I was very

re luc tan t to g i ve i t up and na tu ra l l y I had gone to the loca l un ion ,

and then you sit in the chair and you're busy with the brass you know

and you don't have that daily contact you know, that is great.// So when

I went back Carl says you know after he won the election cone on back,

no I says, I don ' t want to go back there I love be ing r ight here.

We l l t hen Reu the r con tes ted i t . Reu the r con tes ted i t and sa id , t he re

were 5 of us, I think he contested the plant and we cannot serve

because we are communists and we have been communists, so I went

before the review board and Monsinger Higgins and Weinstein he's a

judge f rom Chicago, he was then I don ' t know i f he s t i l l i s now. They

had th is 7 man pane l . They ask you ques t ions and a l l tha t . I sa id

look I 'm go ing to be here , conv ic t myse l f , i f you go t ev idence tha t I

a m , l e t Wa l t e r, Wa l t e r d i d n ' t s h o w u p . D i d n ' t s h o w u p a f t e r t h a t . S o

they just dismissed the case, you know there was no evidence to prove
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i t . / I know wha t happened the re . A f te r tha t Wa l te r s ta r ted ge t t i ng

f r i e n d l y w i t h m e . I t w a s i n 1 9 6 1 w h e n I g o t e l e c t e d t o n e g o t i a t e . I

knew h is wi fe before, wel l I knew Wal ter and h is wi fe together, but I

knew her before she marr ied Walter. She used to be in the old Seatt le

headquarters in the Hoffman bui ld ing and she used to col lect dues.

She was a secretary in the office there. Her name was May Wolfe,

Wolfman. But we used to know her by Wolf. So I knew her real good

and when I got e lected to the Ford nat ional negot iat ing commit tee

Walter got worried about i t because we had Carl, jne we had 4 elected

from Local 600 and it was 11 on the committee and we had 2 other guys

we had enough votes on the committee to stop Walter from doing

anything. So when we met the first t ime and Walter says to me he

wanted to talk to me and he says when he was young he would do a lot
v

o f f oo l i sh th ings l i ke you do . He sa i s I d id some th ings I 'm so r r y

f o r b l a , b l a , b l a . H e s a y s l e t ' s l e t b y g o n e s b e b y g o n e s . L e t ' s

concen t ra te on he lp i ng t he wo rke rs and t he nego t i a t i ons . I sa i d fine ,

t ha t ' s a l l I 'm he re f o r. We go t no p rob l em i f i t s on beha l f o f t he

worke rs .

I : T h i s w a s i n ' 6 1 ?

R: Yeah 'y l . Then af ter we completed negot ia tons he asked me to come

work for h im. I sa id no way, no way.

I : Go ing to work fo r Reu ther a t the in te rna t iona l mean t yub had to adop t

a l l h i s v i e w s ?

R : H e w a s , h i s , m a n , p e r i o d . T h a t ' s a l l . R e u t h e r r a n t h a t w i t h a n i r o n

fi s t . B u t h e m e l l o w e d , i n h i s l a t t e r y e a r s I k n o w. H e c u t o u t a l o t

o f t h i s r e d - b a t i n g a n d a l o t o f h i s d i v i s i v e t a c t i c s . I g o t t o k n o w

Wal ter very we l l I went ou t w i th h im o f ten . I was cha i rman o f the
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ford negot iat ing committee and then I was also chairman of the

resolut ions commit tee Walter appointed me for that job and the next

five convent ions we used to have a lot of fights but then he began to

suppor t every reso lut ion that I suppor ted he had mel lowed. Wel l we

had some pr ivate ta lks and I guess he fe l t in h is lat ter years he was

secure in power they needed no other techniques or tactics and he was

al l pwoer. but I t ink, l ike I says, when you age yoy mel low somet imes

too . I hope I neve r me l l ow. Tha t ' s why I 'm re t i r ed I was

administrat ive assistant wi th Leonard Woodcock and then I worked for

Fraz ie r bu t I d idn ' t work w i th h im as h is ass is tan t , I worked w i th the

ski l led Trades Department and when they started making al l these

concess ions I s tar ted argu ing wi th h im, a l l the guys, you know, the

l a s t c o n t a c t n e g o t i a t o n s . I s a y s t h i s c o u n t r y, t o a l l t h e b a s i c

things I learned in th is t rade union movement, and I projected when I

r a n f o r e l e c t i o n , 11 p r o j e c t e d a p r o p o s i t i o n , o k a y, I s a i d o k a y,

instead of making these concesisons to the company, let 's put them in

a bank, let the company put them in a bank for us. They owe us this

money you know we take 40 cents cut. Put 40$ in there. When the

company profits i t can give ths money back, you know. I 'm not

interested in breaking a company. He said oh we are going to break

th i s company. Don ' t wo r r y abou t t hese cap i t a l i s t s , t hey t ake ca re o f

themselves. They don' t need you to do the bidding for them. So we

had a big argument on this and I resigned and I went back and ran for

pres ident o f the Local 600 in 1981 and I got in to the race just before

the dead l ine and cou ldn ' t pu t a team together. /

I : W a s t h a t o n e R i n a l d i ?
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R: Yeah I ran aga ins t R ina ld i . I b iased , because he was my Vice

President and I left, I turned it over to him you know and he had my

whole staff and everyting there and so the guys all come to me and

sa id Jesus , you pu t us in a he l l o f a pos i t ion . I f you 'd h jave done

I fthis six months "we could have made the adjustments. You got in the

day be fo re e lec t ion , l i t e ra tu re i s coming ou t you know. I was so

bit ter about i t . We had a meeting and we had a discussion on this the

staff and I spoke against th is and I ra ised hel l about i t and I was up

ta lk ing to JDoug about i t and to me i t seemed l ike fa l l ing on deaf

ea rs and I sa id I j us t can ' t go a long w i t h t h i s . I 'm no t go ing a long

w i th t h i s . S teve Yock i sa id t o me you ac t l i ke a rank and fi l e r, he

says why don' t you go back and run for President of Local 600. I said

you know you give me a good idea. I said that sounds l ike an

exce l len t idea so I 'm go ing to res ign and go back to work . I th ink

i t ' s a n e x c e l l e n t i d e a . I s a i d t h a t ' s w h e r e I b e l o n g . Yo u c a n ' t d o

nothing in 3 months because I come back and he beatg me by 7,000

vo tes . He go t 12 and I go t 5 . Jus t cou ldn ' t ge t the th ing go ing you

know but Iput the l i terature out the same way. I came out and says

I 'm against concessions and concessions and sel l outs.

I : / B u t R i n a l d i i s m o r e o f a r i g h t w i n g l e a d e r.

R : Ye a h . A r i g h t - w i n g e r .

I : Was he one back then?

R: A lways was. He was v ice pres ident when I was pres ident . He d id what

I t o l d h i m .

I : H e d i d n ' t r u n o n y o u r s l a t e ?

R : Ye a h h e r a n o n e e l e c t i o n . H e r a n o n e e l e c t i o n V i c e P r e s i d e n t . I g o t

h im. He never go t e lec ted a job in h is l i f e . He was s ta f f member fo r
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30 years and he always said, you don' t , he didn' t know the feel ings of

the guys in the p lan t the^p ianT. You know he opera tes jus t l i ke a

bureaucrat, you know, move heads around and make this deal and make

these concessions and when Jim O'Rourk who was my Vice President the 8

years I was there he got e lected, Mike got e lected in the last term I

was in. He was elected two years I got elected in '63 and Mike got

e l e c t e d w i t h m e . N o . I l e f t i n ' 7 5 , y e a h ' 7 3 a n d I l e f t i n ' 7 5 . J I

d idn ' t wan t tha t j ob e i the r. Tha t was a m is take on my pa r t . I knew

Leonard very well and he begged me to take the job. He didn't have a

Ford man on his staff. He wanted a Ford man. And before I knew what

I was thinking I agreed to go work for him.

I : / Do you think that there was a di fference between the workers that were

around dur ing o rgan iz ing per iod in the ear l y par t o f the un ion d r i ve ,

l ike the whole '40s and the newer workers that came in later?

R : O h s u r e t h e r e i s a d i f f e r e n c e .

I : N o I m e a n i n t h e s o l i d a r i t y a n d t h e m i l i t a n c y. Yo u s a i d e a r l i e r t h a t

you th ink tha t youth makes fo r mi l i tance.

R: Yes the answer—the o lder workers knew the mean ing o f so l idar i t y they

d idn ' t want nobody to—

End Tape 2, Side B
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W. Dorosh
Tape 3, Side A

R : B y t h e t i m e t h e b e l l r a n g , t h e s t a r t i n g b e l l u n t i l t h e q u i t t i n g b e l l

these young guys come in there . . . they chal lenge, i ts more

c h a l l e n g i n g , a n d i t ' s g o o d , I l i k e t h a t . I t h i n k t h a t ' s v e r y g o o d . I

don ' t l i ke t o s t i fle young peop le , t hey a re t he f u tu re . They a re mo re

educated, they understand more. Sometimes I wish they learned more in

schoo l bu t t hey don ' t . I guess you go t t o l ea rn i t i n t he co l l ege o f

hard knocks or something. You got to learn i t through your own

•oexperiences. I But there is a cycle that these companies go through.

I t t akes five yea rs fo r a pe rson to ge t acc l ima ted to a shop i /You

h i re in to a p lan t , you w i l l no t be acc l ima ted to the su r round ings

u n t i l fi ve ye a rs , a t l e a s t fi ve ye a rs . An d t h e w a y w e kn o w t h i s i s

whenever a new industry goes up and the Ford Motor Company puts up a

n e w p l a n t , f o r t h e fi r s t fi v e y e a r s t h e y w i l l l o s e m o n e y o n i t . T h e y

cou ldn ' t ge t t h i ngs ha rmon ized . (

I : Worke rs have to ge t used to the jobs?

R: Get used to the job and beg in to move w i th the . . . . You can go in to

the plant and watch some of these production workers work on jobs, i ts

so techn ica l and they can do i t w i th the i r eyes c losed . They do i t

because they get in to the flow of i t . Some jobs you look a t peop le

and jus t p ick ing up fenders, pushing up a l l day. How do they do i t?

One o f o f the mos t d i f ficu l t j obs I used to observe i s pu t t i ng

head l i ne r i n a ca r. Do you know wha t a head l i ne r i s? I t ' s t ha t t h i ng

that goes ins ide a car that c lo th . And you out to see these guys.

They put , he ' l l jump in to one car i t w i l l run about maybe f rom the
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wid th o f th i s house , 20 fee t , he w i l l ge t in there and he w i l l l ay on

his back and push i t up in there and tack i t on the gun by the t ime i t

gets to 20 feet he wi l l get out and get the next one. E ight hours a

day, pu t t ing head l iners on . See the c lo th i s hooked to the back

a l ready and he pushes i t a round . We l l I cou ldn ' t do tha t i f the ca r

w a s s t o p p e d f o r t h r e e h o u r s . T h e y j u s t b e a u t i f u l . I f t h e y l o s e a g u y

then he is what they cal l , experience, you need experience on a job

l i k e t h a t . Yo u a r e j u s t n o t g o i n g t o g e t i t . T h e y k e e p b r i n g i n g i n

guys a f ter them, you know. I t takes years to put the guy on that job.

Boy when that guy is off from work they have conections, you know.

They have to have fou r guys work ing to t r y t o ge t i t ou t . I t ' s t he

m o s t b e a u t i f u l w a y h e d o e s i t , j u s t l a y s i n t h e r e . I ' m s i t t i n g t h e r e ,

I walked through the p lant many t imes wi th the officers, we looked,

i t 's just amazing I said I don' t know how the guy can do i t . Some of

these jobs and i t takes them five years to get acc l imat ised to that

par t i cu la r job . One o f the th ings I l ea rned , A /hen I was p res iden t o f

the local un ion, one of the th ings I wanted to correct was a compla int

that reg is tered for years that the foundry workers are B lacks and the
0

Blacks are confined to the Sundry operat ions and I said when I 'm

elected I 'm go ing to do someth ing about that . I 'm go ing to reach an

agreement w i th the company I ta lked wi th our o fficers , the e lec ted

officers, we reached an agreement that Ford Motor Company, we were

prepared to s t r i ke the p lan t on th is i ssue . Tha t when they h i re new

employee in the plant he is going to replace a Black with a high

sen io r i t y i n t he f ound ry and t he B lack w i l l ge t t he j ob t ha t ' s

ava i lab le in the p lant and he takes h is to ta l sen ior i ty wh ich means he

can bump into the other jobs, so I went into the foundry, met wi th the
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foundry commi t tee and, beaut i fu l , good, good, ok . So I met w i th the

company and I said to the company this is what we are going to do. Oh

we can ' t do that , he says, we fou l up our foundry operat ions. These

guys you know in the smelt ing operat ion^nd they don' t need no

formulas they have done th is for years and they got to rep lace. . . .

Wel l you screw up the whole operat ions you know. I 'm sorry, I sa id ,

bu t tha t ' s the rou te we ' re go ing to t rave l . We wen t to the foundry

meeting, and at that t ime we had about 2500 foundry workers and I 'd

say about 80 percent were Ba lck in the foundry, then. And I sa id a l l

r i g h t , o h t h e y a p p l a u d e d , t h e y w e r e h a p p y. I s a i d t h i s i s i t , w e ' r e

no t go ing to mess a round w i th th i s you e i the r ge t i t o r e l se . There ' s

going to be a shut down. And the company knew I was a member of the

Nat ional Negot iat ing Commit tee, I was chairman, they knew that , they

wou ldn ' t g ive i t to me in be tween the negot ia t ion bu t they sure ly

would see me at the big table with all the big brass up there you know

and as a ru le they l i ked to se t t l e the i r own p rob lems. They don ' t

want i t to go up there because general ly they wi l l say Jesus what do

we need you here fo r? They sa id fina l l y okay. So we fina l l y reached

an understanding and the understanding was that when they hired new

people in the plant they would move these guys out They moved about

four or five guys within two or three days they wanted to go back in

the f ound ry.

I : W h y w a s t h a t ?

R : C o u l d n ' t g e t a c c l i m a t e d t o t h e o p e r a t i o n s . T h e y w e r e s o s e t . S e e t h e

f o u n d r y w h i l e i t h a s d i f fi c u l t i e s i t ' s d i r t y a n d h o t , t h e y h a v e j o b s

that are one hour on and one hour off . So they actual ly work four

hours a day or ha l f hour on hour and a hal f o ff , ha l f hour on,hal f
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h o u r o f f . T h i s i s w h a t t h e y c a l l h e a t — h e a t e x h a u s t i o n t i m e . I w a s

kind of amazed that the guy comes to my office and said look—he went

to the assembly plant, he says, man I can' t keep up l ike that for 8

hours a day. I sa id are you k idd ing. I sa id you know I 'm embarrassed

I got to go back to the Company. He said look man, Mr. Dorosh, do

anything you can Brother Dorosh, please get me out of there. He said

I w o n ' t l a s t a w e e k . H e s a i d I ' l l b e i n t h e h o s p i t a l . W e l l , I s a i d

okay. Let me see i f I can get you back and first th ing you know that

whole committee came to see me. Scrap it. Nobody wants to go over

t h e r e n o m o r e . T h e y a l l t a l k e d a b o u t i t a n d t h e y ' l l s t a y i n t h e d i r t

and they ' l l s tay w i th th i s bu t t hey know the opera t i ons . They a re

acc l imated , you know. Th i r ty years , 25 years . Now they know tha t

job , and tha t ' s ano ther th ing tha t occurs . You work w i th these peop le

you know them al l . For 25 years, you've spent more t ime with them

than you spend w i th you r f am i l y. Jus t t h ink abou t i t , e igh t hou rs a

day, day in and day out , you know a l l the i r p rob lems they, jus t l i ke a

community you know. I And the same thing in other buildings we have

w h a t t h e y c a l l p l a n t w i d e s e n i o r i t y a t t h e R o u g e . I f y o u g e t l a i d o f f

from building A if you got more senority you can bump a guy in

b u i l d i n g C , D , o r E . Y o u h a v e t o t a k e i n t h e p l a n t . W e l l

when we negotiated it cone years ago everybody was real pleased about

i t . But you know what? They don' t implement i t because people want

to go back to the same bu i ld ing where they work . I t cou ld be d i r t i e r,

h o t t e r , m o r e d i f fi c u l t , l e s s p a i n . B u t t h e y k n o w e v e r y b o d y, i t ' s j u s t

l ike a community. They come in in the morning they ta lk and they

exchange food sometimes and you know they just won't break i t up. You

put in 25 years, 10 years in a plant you knkow you put in a lot of
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t ime . You ' re j us t l i ke as I say eve rybody i n t he i r ( ? ) - t own you mee t

them on the streets and ta lk to them and they don' t general ly apply

i t . T h e a g r e e m e n t i s o n p a p e r i t i s t h e r e i t ' s u s a g e i s v e r y l i m i t e d .

Every once in awhile a guy may get mad and I say the hell with them

b a s t a r d s , I ' l l t a k e t h e l a y o f f a n d g o t o a n o t h e r b u i l d i n g . I w e n t

through this so many times where the guys would bumped" and said I want

to get back to my bui ldl ing, can you do something about i t Mr. Dorosh?

I took th i s layo f f I had tha t j ob . P lease I wan t to ge t back to my

bui lding. I miss them guys, you know they are a bunch of bastards but

they a re my bas ta rds . And th ings o f tha t na tu re .

I : /Was there much oppor tun i ty fo r men to ta lk on the job or d id they jus t

do t he i r t a l k i ng a t l unch t ime?

R : We l l , s e e a f t e r w e i n t r o d u c e d t h e r e l i e f t i m e t h e y a l l o t a t i m e .

I : W h e n i s t h a t ?

R : We i n t r o d u c e t h e r e l i e f t i m e i n 1 9 6 2 n e g o t i a t o n s . We s t a r t o f f w i t h

12 minutes before lunch and 12 minutes af ter lunch. Twenty- four

minutes a day. And then we increased i t to 18 minutes before and

18 minutes after. And there is a release man that comes around and

releases these product ion people. He says, you are supposed to go for

12 minutes at a time. So he takes your job and when you come back,

ano the r guy. Bu t i n t he mean t i ne , he says , t h i s ope ra to r ' s go t t ime ,

you can go upstairs in the cafeteria or go down to the o^offee machine

and they talk so they have got a lot of t ime you know, not lots of

t ime, but they got more t ime than they, they got t ime that they never

had before.

I : W h a t a b o u t b e f o r e l i k e i n t h e ' 4 0 s a n d ' 5 0 s ?
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R: Oh they didn't have no time. I told you ;you didn't know the guy's

name next to you. One guy was telling me one time he worked with a

guy and they worked on the, in the motor building and the crankshaft

job and when a carckshaft come out of the foundry they have burrs on

them that have to be ground off and you ground them off with a big

heavy grinder and when you use this, in these days they never had that

modern air suction system like they have today in a plant. They put

goggles on people and they put a mask on them and you grind on this

job for 8 hours a day. He says, this is nice to come on this job,

this guy was an Italian guy and the guy that worked with him was a

Black and never knew it, he said he made a lot of slurry remarks about

Blacks and this guy never said a thing and he said I'm so shocked one

day when he took his goggles off on the job, I guess after so many

years the guy got t ired of l istening to him he finally figures it 's

about time I let this Iman know I'm a Black. He said I always thought

this guy was a white guy the one he was working with. Well this

happened many of times before. As I said you went by numbers. There

was no seniority list, there was no names posted no place. The boss

would come up to you, are you 1682, yep. Cone on with me. He didn't

say are you Walter dor ash or Tom Brown. They used numbers in the

plant at that time. 1682, yep that's me. Come with me. Where are we

going? You're going to transfer to another department. That's the

way you- went by. We never knew names and then the first time you run

for elections some of the names we saw and tried to get familiar with

people and when the union come in it was just like a community, great

fee l ings•:?
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I : O k a y n o w I w o u l d l i k e t o t a l k a l i t t l e b i t a b o u t t h e p o l i t i c a l

d i f ferences between the r ight and the progres ive caucuses. Can you

talk about what teh di fferent groups were that made up the

I p r o g r e s s i v e s a n d h o w t h e y d i f f e r e d ? v

R: We l l t he p rog ress i ves were a lways in i t i a t i ng new ideas and ( the r i gh t

w ing genera l l y wanted to jus t leave th ings a lone and th ings w i l l take

care o f themse lves ._J Progress ives were genera l l y i n i t i a to rs o f new ,

d imensions for negot ia t ions and th is is the way I had a lways seen i t .

/ J u s t l e t t h i n g s g o , t h i n g s w i l l b e a l l r i g h t . T h e s e g u y s a r e l a z y n o w

they ought to have some of th is Fordism, every so of ten you' l l hear

some old t imer say that, boy we ought to put this union out of

business for about 6 weeks and let these guys know. I said we are not

going to do any experiments to teach anybody anything. People have
j

no t ions tha t yu cou ld s top p rog ress . I t can ' t be done . The road you

traveled is gone. And you could never turn the c lock around.

> road you

I . / I d o n ' t

care how the Ford Motor company tr ies, I don't think feye, no matter

who 's in leadersh ip , I don ' t th ink they cou ld ever bus t the un ion . As

a mat te r o f fac t I th ink in many respec ts i t benefi ted them too . We

used to s tandar ize so many th ings for them. They to ld us th is a

number of t imes in negot ia t ion. And we taught them, as a resu l t o f

unions, by standard weight scale, because they used to have a

d i f fi c u l t y a l w a y s w r e s t l i n g w i t h i n y o u r w a g e r a t e . Yo u d o n ' t e v e n

have to a rgue . I 'm go ing to qu i t , you know, espec ia l l y among sk i l l

t radesmen. Sen io r i t y, wh i le i t was good fo r the workers a l so he lped

the Ford Motor Company considerably. The guys always come back. They

know when you have recal l , you know. Years ago they were tel l ing us

when they layed off guys they had to go to other jobs because they had
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no seniority there was no such thing and they would have to go on down

south and out west and all over to try to hire people into their

plants. They used to spend thousands of dollars and they said, this

way we know we have experienced people always coming back and it helps

them considerably. I don't think, the union has done them some good.

They benefited from it and we benefited from it. I think it 's sort of

a m u t u a l t h i n g I t h i n k t h e y r e c o g n i z e . N o t i n a l l r e s p e c t s

we make demands on them that are always new, and it seems outrageous

to them but/when I was the chairman of the Ford Negotiating Committee

there are people within the companies within some higher echelons too,

I believe, who would like to see the workers get a bigger share of the

earnings of the company. I had that experience when I was chairman of

the Ford Negotiating I can't remember what negotiations it was, '67 or

'70. We were, it was something to do with pensions, women's rights,

the pension programs and things of that nature and the Company had

just stood on it and we had, we put up publicity on this and we

couldn't budge the company and I thought we were going into a strike

we could feel it, if you know the experience of the committee, it came

close to settlement. And you could feel it, we weren't far away from

settlement, this comes after years of sitting on a committee, as I

say, I was on it for at least 25 years and we had the kind of start to

think about reevaluating our position because the company was telling

us look this is a strikable issue. They don't generally say this

except then you are going into strike. Because one of the things they

learn in negotiatons, they never say no because they know that gives

them trouble. They will say we will study it and we'll get back with

you and give you a counter proposal, they never say no. Or they'll
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neve r say, t hey l im i t i t t o t he ex t reme , bu t we ' l l t ake t h i s ou t as a

s t r i ke i ssue , we ' re p repa red to t ake a s t r i ke on th i s i ssue . And you

ge t in to tha t k ind o f a th ing you know i t ' s se r ious and espec ia l l y

w h e n i t c o m e s f r o m t h e t o p g u y s o m e t i m e s t h e ( ? ) n e g o t i a t o r s

may say don ' t pay i t ' no a t ten t ion to them. Bu t tha t top guy ra i ses

h is comments very care fu l ly, he don ' t jus t th row words out . He has

l ike I say when he says something boy, i f we think he's sl ipped, oh he

g e t s s l a c k a l l o v e r t h e p l a c e . A b s o l u t e l y. H e i s v e r y, h e s e l d o m

does any ta lk ing, he le ts h is o ther guys ta lk , every once in a whi le

he'll make a comment and they summarize, we've gone this far we have

a n a g r e e m e n t w e g o t a l l t h i s b e h i n d u s . Ye s . O k a y. We l l , I w i l l

have our papers ready for in i t ia l ing. When I was there we had, Bugus

was ther e in the first set of negot iat ions and Malcom Denise was in

al l the others. Malcolm was vice president of Ford Motor Comapny and

top attorney for the Ford Motor Company and you could tel l by his

comments when you were, you know, going into, heading into a strike

because if he says too many times that we had really slapped him

around. And we would l ike to get him to sl ip up, and every once in a

whi le ^ ie got in a caucus and get ready for negot iat ions we wi l l t ry to

t r igger someth ing to get the company to sp i l l someth ing. They sent

one of our guys af ter h im, go get th is guy and get him real ly upset,

ca l l h im a l i a r and ge t h im angry see i f he w i l l s l i p up on

someth ing. Somet imes they get so/ anx ious and especia l ly dur ing the

c ruc ia l pe r iod o f nego t i a t i ons , and s l i p up . We d id too , somet imes .

They'd get us so mad, we'd sl ip up. But any way in this one set of

negot ia t ions we ta lked about i t and in a meet ing, I don ' t remember i f

i t was Wal ter or Leonard now, and we final ly sa id wel l le t 's get back
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tomorrow and see what the he l l happens. . . . I le f t and I went back to

Local 600 I 'm s i t t ing in the office and working on something and a

spec ia l de l ivery one o f these spec ia l de l ivery serv ices guy knocked on

the door and comes in to the Pres ident 's office, my secretary, he says

I go t t o g i ve t h i s t o Mr. Do rosh on l y. She sa i d we l l , he ' s he re . He

took i t in, handed i t to me and said I 'm supposed to give this to you

only and then it was the breakdown of the companies proposals somebody

from the company had slipped them to me and their techniques and

tact ics where they said that i f we have, we are prepared to grant

t h i s .

I : Somebody on the Ford s ide?

R: Somebody on the Ford side you know. He sent i t to me because I

suspected, again I 'm thinking out loud here that he might have been

gett ing ready for ret i rement and he wanted his too, because whatever

we get they get too and he was probably b i t ter about i t . He probably

figu red i t was sma l l on t he company ' s pa r t I go t a l l t h i s i n f o rma t i on !

so, we went in l ike t igers the next day, and said, ok you want th is

s t r i k e , y o u g o t i t . Yo u t e l l u s , t e l l u s n o t o d a y, w e w i l l b e o u t

tomorrow. No wait a minute back up because we had the material. And

a number of t imes a couple of , another, I got couple of phone cal ls

from sane company official , you had to be a company official to know

i t . I n s o m e k i n d o f n e g o t i a t i o n s , y o u s t i c k w i t h i t . Wa l t e r y o u w i l l

g e t i t , I ' m j u s t g i v i n g i t t o y o u s t r a i g h t , y o u k n o w. W e l l , t h e r e a r e

sane people I remember even one Ford negot iator. I 'm going to put

th is o f f the record . Peop le a re peop le , you know. Because a guy i s

management doesn't necessarily mean he is stupid, you know, f

I : Were there a lo t o f un ion guys that went in to management?
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R: Oh no t a l o t o f t hem, some o f t hem d id . A l o t o f peop le l i ked to s tay

wi th in that secur i ty, as I said last t ime. ^ Once you go on to

supervis ion they could say to you Ford's got 17 plants assembly plants

and about 8 stamping plants and about 6 or 7 other manufacturing

p lan ts . I f you a re a superv i so r i n the Rouge p lan t , they cou ld say

tomorrow you are Louisv i l le p lant and they moved them. And that 's

happened to several of their people, and they stay wai t a minute.

They s tay w i t h i n t he secu r i t y o f un ion s t ruc tu re . They know the i r j ob

2_ i s t he re , t hey a re go i ng t o l i ve t he re . They go t eve r y t h i ng t he re .

They get some of the rough treatment. A lot of them people in

management get some very rough treatments. Oh they have come to me

crying at the local you know l ike this one guy told me he was in the

Rouge, went from Rouge, went to Chicago plant stayed there about a

year or year and a half and he transferred to Cleveland and he did

this just because they wanted him to qui t , and from Cleveland they

were ready t o t r ans fe r h im to Bu f f a l o . And he sa id l ook , I 'm qu i t i ng .

I 'm no t go ing to t rave l a round over th i s coun t ry l i ke th i s , you know.

And at every place they were giving him the roughest jobs, you know.

He msut have been somebody that didn't square up with them you know

and they just wanted to get rid of him or maybe the word was out to

g e t r i d o f h i m .

I : D id the superv i s ion change f rom p lan t to p lan t , were the re some p lan ts

that were more antagonist ic, towards the union and the workers and

others that were more easy.

R: I t d idn ' t change f rom p lan t to p lan t . Every bu i ld ing had the same

thing. (jThey had some good supervisors and some rats. There is no one

that has a spec ia l d is t inc t ion , you know. You had some superv isors
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and some locations in some places you know, people are people, there

i s no p l a i n , se t l i ne t ha t t hey a re a l l good he re , a l l bad t he re . I

Just l ike al l whites ain' t good. / I remember we were carrying on a

discusison one t ime about Black people and people who just repeated

the same cliches about Blacks you nkow, and one of the white guys

popped up and he said you know one of the worse no good son of a bitch

I can th ink o f in my l i fe t ime was Hi t le r and hwas whi te , you know. I

don't know of any Blacks that was as bad as that guy you know. He

made a profound statement. He said the worse son of a bitch I ever

met in my life or know in my lifetime he says was a white man and his

name is Hi t ler. He says goddamit I can' t a Black that comes no place
. " I *n e a r i t .

I : W h a t w a s t h e l e v e l o f r a c i s m ? Wa s t h e r e a l o t o f t r o u b l e s w i t h t h a t

or d id most workers to lerate?

R: We l l , o r ig ina l l y the company as I sa id had B lacks on ly in a few

buildings. And then I would say the war came on the scene more Blacks

were around in the o ther bu i ld ings. And there were then people that

were rac is ts , no ques t ion abou t i t . We wou ld be l y ing i f we sa id tha t

they weren ' t . There would be people saying rac is ts comments, say ing

racists stor ies they hear over and over again. And we had some

d i f fi c u l t i e s . I w o r k e d i n a p l a n t t h a t w a s e x c l u s i v e l y w h i t e a n d t h e y

s ta r ted ge t t ing some B lack sk i l l ed t radesmen in the re , appren t i ces ,

bu t the bu i ld ing was p redominant ly wh i te . When I ran fo r p res iden t o f

t h e t o o l a n d d y e I e l e c t e d t h e fi r s t B l a c k r e p o r t i n g s e c r e t a r y t h a t

ran on my t icket . I was concerned about h im. I wanted h im to get

e lected to the degree that I was prepared to go to the opposi t ion to

name, I went to the opposition and I said you name a Black for
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recording secretary and I wi l l support h im, you know, so I went , I was

fear fu l that the whi tes would defeat h im and I was great ly mis taken.

He ran wagainst a white and got elected.

I : W h o w a s t h i s ?

R: H i l ton Rob inson was h is name. He was the fi rs t B lack ever go t e lec ted

to o ffice and th is was in 1963 in the Too l and Die un i t . He ran wi th

me. And I said I went to the opposi t ion and I said because I was in

office I rep laced, I was v ice pres ident I moved up to pres ident in l j

1961 and that was an o ffice, and so I was runn ing for ree lec t ion. /One

of the B lack record ing secre ta ry, I d idn ' t want to run h im fo r t rus tee

because I thought that a recording secretary was important he recorded

membership meetings, he read the reports, he read the communications

and the general comment is always that Blacks can' t read, he can' t

write, Hi l ton Robinson I knew did because he graduated from Trade

School with me. Went to the Hendry Ford Trade School together so he

was a graduate and he graduated from Trade School, so they couldn't,,

use the arguments that we don't have a tradesman to represent us J/So

I was very concerned about it because I didn't want him to run and

lose and I wanted tha t very bad. I wou ld ra ther no t run . Nobody

s t o o d u p t o f a c e t h a t k i n d o f s i t u a t i o n . A l l i t d o e s i s p e r p e t u a t e

racism. And so I ran him and I went to the candidate who was running

o n t h e o p p o s i t i o n s l a t e a n d I t o l d h i m , I s a i d w e l l I d i d n ' t t e l l h i m

I had a candidate yet , but I sa id i f you name and I 'm sat isfied that

you can do the job, I 'm wi l l ing to jo in wi th you I won ' t run nobody

fo r r eco rd ing sec re ta r y. I won ' t even pu t h im on my t i c ke t I sa i d ,

you know, run it blank or I said i f you want me I wil l run him on my

t i cke t too , you know run them toge ther. He wou ldn ' t accep t i t . /He



72

though t i t was some k ind o f t r i ck , he wou ldn ' t buy i t . I sa id okay

because I 'm going to run on i t and I to ld him, I said I was going to

run Hi l ton Robinson. So he says to me yeah I don' t think he is going

to go a long w i th tha t , the wh i te workers in th is p lan t won ' t go fo r

i t . I s a i d w e l l w e c a n fi n d o u t . H e g o t e l e c t e d . H e r a n a w h i t e

recording secretary on his t icket and we beat them.

I : W a s i t c l o s e ?

R : I c a n ' t r e c a l l t h e r e s u l t s . I c o u l d n ' t t e l l y o u m y r e s u l t s , I w o n ,

and my who le s la te won. I cou ldn ' t te l l you i f i t was c lose and I

don't remember now.

I : u Did th is guy have a reputat ion in the p lant?

R: / He / 'was we l l l i ked . I appo in ted h im a th le t i c d i rec to r. He was a vey t r

good basketbal l p layer. He was an outs tanding ath le te and I apponted

h i m a s a t h l e t i c d i r e c t o r i n b u i l d i n g , B l a c k o v e r a l l w h i t e s , a n d t h e y

accepted h im. You know i f you know the bus iness . I th ink tha t

he lped . I t h i nk t ha t t he younge r peop le , t he ba l l p l aye rs knew h i s

fairness you know and they knew he was the right guy and I think that

helped but I think the young bal l players supported him. [rwe had a

basketba l l team, basebal l team, sof tba l l teams in the p lants and 17

plants , wel l I don ' t th ink they have any now I th ink they got about 12

plants now. And each plant has i ts own recreat ion program they have

the p lant league the loca l un ion schedules the e lect ion, I mean the

contests, you know.

R:

I : I n o t i c e d t h a t a l o t o f s p a c e i n F o r d F a c t s i s d e v o t e d t o t h a t .

Oh yeah, /well you take young people when they get out of high school

they go work in a p lan t , they se lec ted to p lay a th le t i cs and i t ' s good

rec rea t ion , i t ' s good because the wh i tes and B lacks they p lay
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together you know and they drink beer out there years ago I think the
i f

l oca l i s comp le te l y r eve r sed now, I t h i nk t he ma jo r i t y o f . . .

End Tape 3, Side A
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W. Dorosh
Tape 3, Side B

R s . . . B l a c k b a s e b a l l . T i m e s c h a n g e d . T h e w h i t e s d o n ' t w a n t t o w o r k

i n t h e p l a n t s r i g h t n o w J

I : W e l l , g e t t i n g b a c k t o t h i s i s s u e o f t h e r i g h t w i n g , l e f t w i n g t h i n g .

What were the groups besides the ACTU people that made up the right
L

wing? Was the Soc ia l i s t Worker Par ty par t o f i t?

R : No I don ' t t h ink so . / I t h ink the r i gh t w inger was made up o f mos t l y

ACTU, former people of the AFGfc-ClO I'm talking about the basic, you

know the leadership of course, not al l of them arej They are made up

of and those who supported the AF^L-CIO, those who supported Reuther,

those who l iked Walter Reuther would automatical ly be on the other

side because we'd always oppose them.

I : Wo u l d y o u s a y t h a t t h e i r p r a c t i c e s o n t h e s h o p fl o o r, h a n d l i n g

grievances and attending to the committeeman type dut ies were

d i f f e ren t f r om the p rog ress i ves?

R: No I t h ink they were the same. I t h ink they bo th wen t ou t and t r i ed

to do the job once the pol icy was set . They were obl igated to , you

know. I d idn ' t a l l t he yea rs I have seen them opera te I don ' t t h ink

t h a t t h e y d i d n ' t a t t e m p t t o d o t h e r i g h t k i n d o f j o b . I t h i n k t h a t

they wou ldn ' t pu rsue i t as d i l i gen t l y maybe bu t I don ' t t h i nk they

c t r i e d t o s a b o t a g e t h e u n i o n .

I : / But you would say that the Progressives were out there in the
/ I—'

f o r e f r o n t ?
/

R : Oh yeah . They were a lways ou t push ing , fin o the r words the d i f f e rence

the b ig i ssues tha t d iv id ied the two fo rces espec ia l l y wh ich was very
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/
embarrassing to Reuther was the Black and white issue./ In the 19,

what i t , 1946 convent ion I th ink i t was, the UAW, the le f t w ing

introduced a resolut ion at the convent ion suggest ing that a UAW Black

v ice p res iden t be c rea ted . The Reuther fo rces ob jec ted to th is and

sa id tha t i t was reve rse d i sc r im ina t ion pu t t i ng the B lacks in a box ,

he cou ld on ly run fo r tha t j ob . /The le f t w ing i f you ge t the

proceed ings o f the 46 th conven t ion i t was a t Bu f fa lo , I t h ink , the

le f t w ing sa id noth ing o f the case. The reason we are suggest ing th is

is because there are a lot of Black workers in the UAW they have no

representat ion and they ought to have at lesat one Black

rep resen ta t i ve t ha t t hey cou ld po in t t o . Bu t t he boa rd cons i s t ed o f

26 representatives and the UAW membership is comprised of at that

time, if I remember, one quarter of the membership of the UAW, and

they have on representa t ion , you know. And surpr is ing ly one o f the

chief spokesmen against i t was Horace Schefield. He was one of the

-VBlack community leaders.

I : I s h e s t i l a r o u n d ?

R : Oh yes he i s s t i l l a round . And he spoke aga ins t i t . He po in ted ou t

tha t , he i s the guy tha t co ined the ph rase tha t i t ' s reve rse

d i sc r im ina t i on . He admi t t ed s ince tha t i t was a ve ry sa id m is take ,

that he was deluded by Walter Reuther.

I : He was one of the most prominent r ight wing Blacks?

R: Oh yes . Yes he was . fa l te r used h im ex tens ive ly whenever there was a

Black and white issue, Horace Schefield would be there always taking a

s ide o f the admin is t ra t ion^ ] But tha t was one issue tha t d iv ided us

considerably. Everyt ime, I remember when Wal ter Reuther, and Wal ter

Reuther was good on the Black issue, he was very good on it, you know,
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he suppor ted, le t 's say a f ter the Buffa lo convent ion he saw the

mistake but he couldn ' t reverse i t because the people that compr ised

h is r igh t w ing leadersh ip were an t i -B lack , you know, a t tha t t ime .

I S t rong l y an t i -B lack and they d idn ' t ca re , t hey were i nd i f f e ren t abou t

i t . In o ther words , they had in some respec ts the same a t t i tude tha t

the AF0L hadJyou know, the AFOL had the same attitude towards

product ion workers . You should be organ ized in to a sk i l l and we

couldn ' t conv ice them to organ ize the product ion workers , the bas ic
/ 25

s te e l i n d u s t r y w o r k e r s . i u t t he C i v i l R igh t s i ssues d i v i ded the two

groups cons iderab ly. The ques t ion o f open ing new oppor tun i t ies fo r

B lacks . The progress ives were a lways pro jec t ing ideas , p rograms fo r

p romot ing B lacks in to j obs . In o the r words g i v ing them the i r day inc

£ou r t , t hey cou ldn ' t see i t and i t was t ha t k i nd o f ph i l osophy, I

b e l i e v e , t h a t t i m e w i l l t a k e c a r e o f e v e r y t h i n g . I t d o e s n ' t a l w a y s

hold true because so many things can happen._/ 7

I : I s t h a t t h e p e r i o d w h e n a f t e r t h a t ] R e u t h e r b r o u g h t u p t h e i s s u e o f

reverse discrimination, was that when he cal led on Tapp£ to come up to

in te rna t i ona l? I s tha t t he one B lack spo t t ha t he had?

R : I ' m t r y i n g t o t h i n k w h e n Ta p p ^ w e n t t o t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l . I t w a s i n

c.the '50s somet ime. I t could have ben around there, yeah because i t

was in '46 convent ion and this annoyed Walter considerably having to

defend ornot be ing ab le to de fend h is pos i t ion on the B lack

communi ty. The B lacks a t tha t t ime were qu i te upse t about i t . Horace

and Buddy Batt le, Shelton Tapps was on the other side of the issue at

that t ime. 1/Shelton Tap^s was one of those people who supported the J

fi g h t f o r a b l a c k r e p r e s e n t a t i v e o n t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l e x e c u t i v e b o a r d . J

He supported;Schefield, Buddy Batt les, Jimmy Watts, who was the
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director under Coleman Yuong; opposed it(because he was Walter

Reu the r ' s adm in i s t r a t i ve ass i s t an t . He was B lack .

I : J i m m y W a t t s ?

R : Oh yeah . Wa t t s was Wa l te r Reu the r ' s adm in i s t ra t i ve ass i s tan t a t one

t ime there, Wal ter Reuther h i red h im.

I : A n d Wa t t s w a s r i g h t w i n g h i m s e l f ?

R : Y e s .

I : | So they came to d i f fe rences po l i t i ca l l y, Reu ther and Wat ts?

R: Reuther fi red Wat ts and Wat ts was back a t Loca l 600, Sta le t to put h im

on the s ta f f . S te l la to a t tha t t ime was an t i -Reuther so Wat ts became

t h e h e a d o f t h e I . i f y o u w a n t e d t o w o r k f o r C a r l h e h a d

to be ant i -Reuther. But there was some pro-Reuther i tes on the

^ S t a l e t t o s t a f f . I c u l d n ' t s a y t h e y w e r e a l l a n t i - R e u t h e r ,
I: I What were some of the things that allowed Local 600 to be such a,

p e o p l e c a l l e d i t t h e t h o r n i n R e u t h e r ' s s i d e . I t h a d a l o t o f p o w e r,

a l o t o f p e o p l e . We r e t h e r e a n y o t h e r c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s o f t h e l o c a l

t ha t you t h i nk a t t r i bu ted t o i t s a l l ow ing i t t o be so i ndependen t?

R: Wel l , they worked together. I ] l remember one person we got I th ink h is

name was Walter Cassidy he was president of our transport ion unit

wh ich i s a t ruck ing , ra i l road indus t ry and he says I suppor t Car l

Ste l la to as my pres ident fo r Loca l 600 because Car l S te l la to is the

bes t guy tha t Loca l 600 can se lec t . I n sp i t e o f t he fac t t ha t he i s a

l e f t w inge r. Bu t I a l so suppo r t Wa l te r Reu the r as p res iden t o f t he

in ternat ion un io l fn because he is the best pres ident that the

i n t e r n a t i o n u n i o n c a n s e l e c t . A n d I c i t e h i m t o p o i n t o u t t h a t t h e r e

were several others who felt the same way, you know. They knew that

Car l was a le f t w inger at Local 600, in honest op in ion they says that
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Carl is the best th ing for Local 600 and his program the supported his

program at 600 and so when we used to go the conventions and we used

to ride and kid Walter Cassidy and some of these other guys you know,

h e s a i d I c a n l i v e w i t h i t . H e s a i d i f t h i s c o n v e n t i o n a d o p t s

Wa l t e r ' s p r o g r a m s I ' l l s u p p o r t i t . I f t h e y d o n ' t I w o n ' t s u p p o r t i t .

In o ther words , we l l they weren ' t l eaders in o ther word s they d idn ' t
l

have a posit ion, I guess. Good guys I guess and the workers Iked them

and they go t e lec ted . Bu t the re were severa l o the r peop le l i ke tha t

in the local union that I know of that supported Walter Reuther and//1

neve r vo ted fo r Wa l te r Reu the r f o r p res iden t o f t he i n te rna t i ona l

union except the 19, what convention was it , 1970 convention was the

~2-

fi r s t t i m e I v o t e d f o r Wa l t e r R e u t h e r, and I voted my local union in a

block and it was one vote couldn't cast because the guy that was
p.

running was Art iox who was from the Tool and Die unit and he was

running for President and it seemed so strange, you know, he's from my

unit , my own local union, I was president of the Local 600 and I said

I 'm cast ing the vote and the block for Wal ter Reuther and let Ar t Fox

cast his ow vote you know get up and cast his own vote. Well, I knew

Art Fox he was on the bargaining committee in the Tool and Die unit

and his word was never any good. Never any good. You could never

bel ieve him and I would, I said I would be playing a game if I would

support a person, to cast a vote just because he came from my local

un ion . He had a l l t he th ings tha t h i s word jus t d idn ' t mean any th ing .

J u s t —

I : S o h e v o t e d l e f t w i n g ?

R : W h o ?

I : F o x , a g a i n s t R e u t h e r ?

H
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R: He was runn ing aga ins t Reuther.

I : Oh a t t he conven t i on . I t hough t you mean t i n t he Too l and D ie un i t .

R : No he ran aga ins t Wal te r Reuther a t the 1970 convent ion . And I sa id

the only t ime I voted for Reuther was that t ime.

I : O h . O k a y .

R: And then besides that I have always voted against h im and the

st rangest th ing was that he came f rom my loca l . I t was my uni t . They

sa id why cou ldn ' t you suppor t h im . I says th i s guy i s j us t I sa id I

d o n ' t w a n t t o g e t i n t o i t . B u t h e j u s t r e a l l y a c h a r a c t e r . I f t h e

sun was shining and you would go out and say gee the sun is shining he

w o u l d s a y h e l l i t i s . W h a t a r e y o u t a l k i n g a b o u t i t s h i n i n g . W h a t d o

you mean it 's shining. You know he would come up with the most

id iot ic arguments. When I was president of the local union he came

over one day to see me about someth ing. I sa id okay I ' l l see i f I can

get i t taken care of with the company. He was on a committee in the

Tool and Die. So I went to the cmpany and negotiated with the company

and I told him about i t and he he said okay no problem. I went to the

next Tool and Die meeting and I told membership and all that and he

go t up and sa id I d idn ' t te l l you tha t . Who to ld you tha t , you know.

What the he l l you ta lk ing about . I sa id you know there is a person

that h is word was jus t .

I : How can a guy l i ke tha t , f rom the l eadersh ip i n the Too l and D ie un i t

expect to ge t a la rge amount o f vo tes a t the in ternat iona l?

R : We l l h e w a s j u s t p r o t e s t i n g . S e e h e p l a y s t h e r o l e o f b e i n g a g a i n s t

e v e r y t h i n g . Yo u k n o w a g i n e r . N e v e r f o r a n y t h i n g . J u s t a g a i n s t . H e

was against Reuther. He wants to come back and say I took that

Reu the r on . I r an aga ins t h im . You know, t ha ta boy, you w i l l ge t
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that man. And everybody l ikes to see somebody take the big Gol iath

o u t . H e w a s a l w a y s a g a i n s t i t . I h a d n e v e r s e e n h i m f o r. I s a i d t o

him one day, Art wil l you tel l me someday what you stand for so that I

can make my mind up. If he tel ls you to do something or he projects

someth ing and i f you agree wi th h im, he wi l l back o f f . But he is

another case. I don' t want to ta lk—he is deceased now, he has been

d e c e a s e d f o r y e a r s . S o i t ' s n o t i m p o r t a n t . I s a i d t h e o n l y t i m e w e

voted for Walter Reuther was because I d idn' t want to vote for h im.

And you know what , workers in the p lan t a l l unders tood i t . We l l a l l

the leadership knew him too. He would get up on the General Council .

He had charged in 19, was it '67, yeah 1967 negotiations he put out a

leafle t w i th in the p lan t , we had a s t r i ke , we had a 30-day s t r i ke

against the Ford Motor Company final ly we had a sett lement. We put

ou t a leaflet tha t Wal te r Dorosh, Pres ident o f Loca l 600, cha i rman o f

the Ford Negotiating Committee along with Walter Reuther and he named

Ken Bannon and a few others, had sold out. He knows, he could prove

that there was a se t t le , tha t we cou ld have se t t led th is s t r i ke when

we were negot ia t ing , he was argu ing. We shu ld s t r ike to get a l l our

demands that we put on the table. Not one demand should go off the

table. And when we went on str ike, he said the str ike was needless.

We l l fie so l d ou t . The re was no r eason f o r t h i s s t r i ke . Worke r s l o s t

thousands and thousands of dollars, you know. How do you work with a

pe rson l i ke t h i s . Bu t you know wo rke rs say we l l a t l eas t t ha t w i l l

keep you guys on your toes. There are some people who say it keeps

you guys on your toes you may be an idiot but by god he keeps you guys

on your toesj Oh what k ind of men—there was a lot of people wel l I

had a Dr. Fisher who was a counselor in the City of Dearborn for years
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and he says you know how I get elected, by being against. I said what

do you mean? He said he never stuck wi th anything. I f you are

against i t he says and I voted in that cunci l i f you check them

counc i l records Wal ter, he says you wi l l see that I never voted for

anyth ing. They can never b lame you for anyth ing. I sa id wel l how can

you g t e lec ted , you know. I j us t l ook a t the bad par ts o f i t he sa id

and I come out and I tel l the people to do the job on you, which is

true when you think about it you know and you take a bigger portion of

people go to the pol ls l ike he said more people go to the pol ls and

vote against a person not for one. Do you know that? More people go

to, you ' l l never hear f rom someone, I 'm vot ing because I l ike h im.

I ' m v o t i n g f o r h i m b e c a u s e I c a n ' t g o f o r t h a t s o n o f a b i t c h . I s n ' t

that the common comment.

I : Ye s , t h a t ' s t r u e , i n U . S . p r e s i d e n t i a l e l e c t i o n s .

R : Ye a h . T h e y a r e n o t f o r . T h e y a r e n o t f o r . I d o n ' t t h i n k n o n e o f m y

people were for Reagan, they were against Carter.

I : I t ' s j u s t t h e w a y c a m p a i g n s a r e s t r u c t u r e d , t h e y a r e a l l t h r o w i n g m u d

at the other person.

R : T h a t ' s r i g h t . T h e y a r e n o t t h e r e f o r . T h e y a r e a g a i n s t a t l e a s t t h e

biggest percentage of people are against the candidate and not for.

I t ' s t he t r u th when you t h i nk abou t i t because you can ' t t r us t h im . I

don ' t know abut th is guy I 'm not fo r h im but he 's bet ter than that

guy. And F i sche r neve r l os t an e lec t i on . Yeah he sa id I neve r

u sp p o r t a t h i n g i n / y l i f e a n d h e sa i d ch e ck t h e co u n c i l r e co rd s . I

sa id wel l how do they operate, you know. I was the president there

when I ta lked to h im. I sa id how the he l l do they opera te . He says ,

I 'm success fu l , used to ge t e lec ted to dunc i l , he ' s deceased now. I
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said my God Doc, I says, we went to see him about something I forgot

what it was about, he wanted something from labor and Local 600 was in

Dearborn and I had a relationship with Hubbard and I talked to Hubbard

he said look I'm willing to go for him if you can convince Doc Fisher

and some of tehse other guys. Don't worry he will not support

anything, he will never take a positive vote. He will abstain, he

will absence himself, he will not project. He was elected every damn

election. But if you talk to the people, yeah but he won't hurt you

though. What will he do for you. There is not a positive person.

Everything is negative. That's the way a fox was. You can think

about this thing, a President, vote for international president for

(?) 1 said this is unthinkable, you know. I said I want to

make it clear I am going to vote for Reuther this time so they

understand, and I convinced my whole delegation. Would you have done

anything differently under the circumstances?

I: You never know how a guy is going to operate if you don't know what

his policies are.

R: That's right you know he drifts, just like a board on the water, you

know. I'd rather, I have more respect for a person who stands for a

position I may not agree with it, you know, it's an honest position.

I h a t e a g u y t h a t w a v e r s . ,

I: Talking about people with strong positions. J How could the people who

were open communists or communist sympathizers and such, how do they

operate on the shop floors. Do they talk politics a lot or do they

just stick to militant trade unionism or how—

R: Well, I don't know who all the communists were in Local 600 or any

place else as far as that goes. I could assume who was a communist
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who wasn't a communist but I think that would be unfair for me to

state that he was a communist. yBut people that made up the left wing

as I sa id be fore genera l l y s tood fo r a pos i t ion . They were a lways

pro ject ing something. They were a lways moving in . They were a lways

in t roduc ing reso lu t ions and the o ther group a lways opposed i t vo te for

anything and they always opposed i t . As I sa i d , t he r i gh t w inge rs i n

the p lan t I t h ink they fough t fo r g r i evances j us t l i ke anybody e l se

did. I can' t deny. /Joe McClusfcer was on a bargaining commit tee wi th

me in the Tool and Die and he ran as a right wing president for the

Local 600 and was e lected. He d idn ' t deny i t . He was pro Reuther,

pro yu know, but a job, well we worked on bargaining committee, man he

did a good job. He wrote the gr ievances, processed the gr ievances to

go in there and bat t le . They never pro jec ted never, le t me g ive you

a n i l l u s t r a t i o n . I f t h e r e i s s o m e t h i n g w r o n g w i t h t h e s e n i o r i t y

agreement and we know it's wrong and it benefits the company and

doesn ' t benefit the worker you don ' t know these th ings somet imes unt i l

you negotiate them and then in pract ice and you say, holy God, we left

a b i g ho le t he re . They won ' t t ake s teps t o co r rec t i t . You know they

won ' t p ro jec t . They won ' t , ) I i n t roduced a reso lu t i on when I was

president of the Tool and Die uni t , we had a separate tool maker trade

and a separate d ie maker t rade. And the work is a lmost ident ica l .

When you go through the apprenticeship program you got to take the

same class and everything with the except ion of the last 500 hours.

You read the bluepr ints of the tool maker instead of the dye maker.

A l l t h i s 7 ,500 hours , schoo l hours and every th ing were iden t i ca l .

Tool makers they work on changes that they place in the engine, rear

ax le, these par ts of the car. Die makers work on the body design,
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bodies, body fenders, floor pans. When the company is making major

changes in the bodies they are hir ing diemakers f rom the streets and

tool makers are layed off because their work is, see they don't make

the changes simultaneously. The body design is made,changed

s ign ificant change, they put the i r money in the body des ign and a l l

the engine work and everything would be almost the same. When they

don' t make the, they run to the body designs in three years cycles.

They don't make, al l they do is move the crome some place di fferent ly.

Th e d e s i g n s , t h e s i l h o u e t t e , i s a l m o s t i d e n t i c a l . Wh e n t h e y d o n ' t

make those then they go into extensive changes in the engine design

and change the engines or and they do al l their experimental work on

t h e r e a r a x l e s , t r a n s m i s s i o n , a n d a l l t h i s o t h e r s t u f f . A n d t h e y w i l l

make changes in body die work, they lay off the diemakers and they

hire toolmakers f rom the street . And we've always had amongst our

group about 400 people layed off at one time or another they would
t

never get them back because, and so I bgan to think about it, and I

sa i d , t h i s i s w rong . Why don ' t we conb ine t hese c l ass i fica t i ons?

Normalize our group and then we would have ful ler employment for al l

our members. I took i t up with the committee and the committee said

i t 's a good idea. The toolmakers have a t radi t ion and d ie makers have

a t rad i t ion , and they don ' t want nobody to b reak t rad i t ion here , you

know we are pure dieknakers. Al l over the country there is pure die

makers , pu re too l makers . I says we ' re go ing to b reak t rad i t i on .

L e t ' s t r y i t . L e t ' s t r y i t o n f o r s i z e . S o I i n t r o d u c e d i t i n t h e

next membership meet ing and got the resolut ion and put together al l

the sequence of events. Hal f o f them didn ' t know how i t would occur.

These changes would take place in five years and they appeared at, the
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reason I establ ished the 5 years because there is 4 years

apprent icesh ips. There wi l l be new people coming in and they wi l l be

coming in from the bottom they would be coming in as tool and die

maker and after i t appeared in maybe 10 years with a sufficient number

of people come in, I let that 10 years quest ion mark because I said I

don't know how developments are, because we would speed it up or you

could slow it up depending upon the employment. You know, there is a

lot of people are being hi red in and you could speed that operat ion

u p . A n d t h e n y o u t h e r e w o u l d j u s t b e ( ? ) o n e

c l a s s i fi c a t i o n . S o I i n t r o d u c e d t h i s i n 1 9 6 2 I t h i n k i t w a s . A n d I

brought i t to the membership meet ing and Jesus, holy hel l broke loose.

God almighty the tool makers were insensed that they would be working

as die makers and die makers says tool makers are stupid and we had at

that time maybe about 700 die makers and maybe about 400 tool makers

and they were hot. I said, I made my step. We came back after the

membership meeting and I said to, our membership meetings are always

on Sundays. I came into the plant on Monday and I met with some of my

good f r iends. Oh you bet ter back o ff f rom that you are go ing to get

m u r d e r e d . N o , I s a i d I t h i n k i t s r i g h t , I ' m g o i n g t o g o t h r o u g h w i t h

i t . H e s a i d , O h , I ' v e b e e n o n t h e fl o o r a l l d a y t o d a y, b o y, t h e y ' v e

been givng me hel l . You go down to that die room they' l l eat you up.

I sa id we l l , t ha t ' s where I 'm go ing , I sa id , l e t ' s go , do you guys

want to come with me? So anyway, the long and short of i t was that I

went down there, and I must have been down there for a week. Those

guys just age me up. My throat was hoarse form talking and shout ing,

t ry ing to conv ince them, g iv ing them the facts . And then I went down

to the tool and boy i t was the same thing in reverse. What are you
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t ry ing to do . God a lm igh ty. You a re he lp ing the company, you ' re a

company s tooge I never be l ieved tha t o f you Wa l te r. I sa id th i s i s

go ing to s tab i l i ze employment . I sa id i t ' s a b ig s tep bu t someone has

t o d o i t . I ' m g o i n g t o d o i t . A n d t h e y s a y s w e l l . I s a i d I w a n t t o

t r y t o d o i t b e f o r e e l e c t i o n w h i c h i s i n ' 6 3 , ' 6 2 . W e l l , I c o u l d n ' t

get, before you take anyting up with the company you got to get

membership approval. So I met with the committees and we talked and

talked and I said what 's wrong wi th you guys don' t you admit i t 's

r i gh t . Yeah bu t you can ' t conv i nce t hem peop le ou t t he re . I

unders tand i t , I sa id you go t to ge t ou t the re and you go t to se l l i t .

You know you got to go out and do the job. They were convinced after

a lo t of se l l ing jobs af ter d iscussions and arguments and I showed

them figures and I showed them the seniority l ist we had the names and

eve ry th i ng . They wou ld no t t ack le i t , no way. You a re t ak i ng a b i g

b i t e . T h e y s a i d , n o w a y. I g o t t o t a k e t h i s b i t e . W e d o n ' t w a n t t o

go back to work . I sa id I 'm prepared to go to work . I sa id i f we can

ge t th i s passed , I 'm p repared to go to work on i t . I f I can ge t bea t

I won ' t m ind i t I sa id because I know I have a be t te r j ob secu r i t y. I

sa id , as a un ion leader, a t l eas t I improved the s t ruc tu re to thep

r ^ o i n t t h a t I t h i n k e v e r y b o d y c a n b e n e fi t o u t o f i t . I d i d n ' t l e t i t g o

because I thought i t was bad. The long and shor t o f i t i s tha t I

cou l dn ' t ge t i t passed be fo re t he nex t e l ec t i on . They used i t aga ins t

me i n t ha t e l ec t i on .

I : O h y e a h .

R : Bu t I go t e lec ted anyway. They though t I was go ing to take the

bea t ing o f my l i f e . Bu t t he worke r sa id he s tood fo r someth ing . And

so what happened, after I got reelected i t took me two more years
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b e f o r e t h e n e x t e l e c t i o n s a n d I s t i l l c o u l d n ' t g e t i t p a s s e d . T h e y

e lec ted me bu t they wou ld no t , they cou ldn ' t accep t i t . A f te r I went

to the local in 1965 I went to the membership meeting and I spoke as

e lec ted pres ident and I sa id le t me te l l you someth ing. And I went

t h r o u g h t h i s t h i n g w i t h t h e m . I t b e g a n t o h i t t h e l i g h t . I s a i d i f

you had done it, I said in 1962, I said, we would have been three

years in that agreement . I sa id , so I checked wi th the company, I

found out how many apprentices they put on. I can't remember about

400 apprent ices. I sa id i t would have been graduated, i t would have

been less than 400, I said instead, and I had i t broke down in tool

makers and die makers and pointed out yu would only have 25 guys would

be loaded this way you would have had 400, you know. You began to

show - im the fac ts . I fia l l y go t i t passed a t a membersh ip meet ing

but I wasn't around the membership as they went in to negotiate with

the committee and MacCinzori was my successor, and he got it negotiated.

-SiI : I n o n e o f t h o s e s e p a r a t e c o n t r a c t s ? J

R: Wel l , see each un i t they had what they ca l l supp lement agreements . So

h e n e g o t i a t e d t h e s u p p l e m e n t . S e n i o r i t y s t r u c t u r e b u t I b r o k e i t

down , he sa id 1962 I d idn ' t t h i nk abou t i t , 1966 to ge t i t up . Bu t

after they saw I showed them all the guys that come on after that and

I kept talking with them and the guys began to say he didn' t get beat

b y i t , i t d i d n ' t h u r t h i s e l e c t i o n , I o n l y t r i e d , y o u k n o w. B u t t h i sv
is what I 'm saying, nobody would tack le i t . /The r ight wing would say

l o o k , t h e y w o u l d c a l l i t p o l i t i c a l . W e l l s u r e i t ' s p o l i t i c a l b u t i t ' s

good. You know, pol i t ics , good pol i t ics make good government , good

pol i t ics , you know, bad pol i t ics make bad government , j But I 've got to
0 t

ge t t o—gt a d r i nk o f wa te r.

End Tape 3, Side B

v-
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Tape #4, Side A
W. Dorosh

fR: It kind of spli t the local, you know. The supporters for Harry

Truman. I think most of the people, while there was a lot of activity

for Wallace—

I: Did i t sp l i t the depar tments, or just the—

R: Yes i t created a l i t t le spl i t there but some of them, felt that this

is an adventerous thing that Wallace didn't have an opportunity to

win, and consequently you're helping to elect Dewey. These kind of

discussions. Some guys were just hurt by it, you know they said that

Truman was Roosevelt's, I'm talking about the older progressives who

grew up in the Roosevelt era. And that created quite a division.

While the Wallace forces were numerous, I think it would be about a 3

way split. Well, maybe not 3 ways, because there was no Republican

support. A 2 way split, the right wing was 100% behind Truman of

course. They just thought it was the wrong thing. A lot of

progressives changed their positions, and went with Harry Truman. The
d

people in the plant, I was in Tool and Die then, kidde^ us, they said,

you guys are foolish you'll just get Dewey elected.

I: / Do you think that you got out a good size vote from the Ford workers

for Wallace?

R: I don' t know. I couldn' t say. I don' t know I have no idea. I can' t

remember that period now. But there was a lot of activity. I lived

in South Dearborn at that time and Wallace finished first in my

precinct. There is no question about it.

I : O h y e a h .
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R : Ye s Wa l l a c e fi n i s h e d fi r s t i n S o u t h D e a r b o r n . I f y o u c h e c k e d t h e

r e c o r d s i n D e a r b o r n y o u ' l l fi n d t h a t t o b e a f a c t . I t h i n k i t w a s

prec inct 5 , I was in , a t that t ime.J Everybody on my st reet , I was

prec inct capta in and we were very act ive. I would p ick the people up

and took them to vote and everyth ing. They said that 's the guy you

s h o u l d g o f o r. Ye a h , o k a y. I w a s a c t i v e i n t h e u n i o n . We fi n i s h e d

first in South Dearborn. _J

I : I t h i n k I ' l l j u s t t a k e a l o o k a t a l l t h o s e —

I : I 'm go ing to have to l ook a t t he reco rds o f t he p rec inc t vo te because

they have those in the, they had them in, some counties do and some

c o u n t i e s d o n ' t .

R: I f they had them they probably got r id o f them now. What good are

t h e y.

I : I know I was look ing a t Ohio , in Mansfie ld and they had good records

from way back then.

R : O h y e a h .

I : T h e p r o j e c t t h a t I s t a r t e d w o r k i n g o n b e f o r e t h i s I w a s l o o k i n g a t 3

i n d u s t r i a l c i t i e s M a n s fi e l d , E v a n s v i l l e , a n d B r i d g e p o r t , C T. A n d t h e

vote for Wal lace in a l l those came nowhere c lose to a p lura l i ty.

R : Oh I know tha t . I t s ca red a l o t o f peop le . Dewey was a co rpo ra te

lawyer, the workers were rea l ly scared of the guy and they figured I

a i n ' t g o i n g t o c h a n g e . T h a t ' s a l w a y s t h e c a s e . I t ' s t h e c a s e e v e r y

year you know and Anderson ran last time as an independent candidate

whi le there was some that agreed with him. They said I 'm not going to

lose my vote, I 'm going to make sure that , because they d idn ' t l ike

Reagan.
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I: J How important do you think the House UnAmerican Activities Committee,

which we talk about before, and about the whole series of committees,

the senate committee and the house came tiwce and the

administratorship. How much influence did you think that had over the

curtailing of involvement by progressives?

R: I don't know. I don't think it changed anything. Everybody continued

activities. The changes that occurred were theQ Lee Romano, who was a

left-winger up to that time, Shelton Tappfs were the 2 that fingered,

were the guys that were, the people that went out and named Local 600

and it seemed like in most instances ex-left wingers went in the other

localsJjfYou know they went around. That's why labels about right

winger and left winger sometimes throw me you know. I moved [during

the UnAmerican Activities Committee period there were some right

winters who rejected quite desperate, that thought this was

dispictable to do this to people, you know. I know a lot of right

wingers who took that position and they said the guys any belief you

wants, you know, and whether I agree with it or don't agree with it.

They said I think this is damning, unless they got the evidence, they

ought to put them on trial. | That was their position, you know. But

just to have this, ithey didn't like Lee Romano and Shelton Tapps.

Becuase you know the reversal was they used to do that to the right

wing. They felt their bite(?) you know. Lee Romano was one of the

most outspoken persons in the local union, challenging the right

wingers as company agents, company stooges, you know he always put

labels on people. I He was vice president of Local 600 and if, he was

part of the Tommy Thompson Administration. And he went, when they

presented their programs, reports every month, and somebody would
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quest ion i t , he would take off personal ly on these people you know,

th i s was the who le h i s to ry o f we l l , t he le f t w ingers l i ke tha t because

i t w a s k i c k i n g t h e d a y l i g h t s o u t o f t h e r i g h t w i n g e r s . T h e r i g h t

w ingers were in i nfl iab le . /The lash , wh i le he was a le f t w inger

understood how the left felt when he was going out and he would say

this guy is a communist , th is guy is communist , th is guy is a

communist , when Rankin was saying what bui ld ings are the kind.. . .

Wel l in th is bu i ld ing here is so and so and so. You know he jus t le t

i t o f f l i k e i t ' s a g a m e w i t h h i m , y o u k n o w. I t ' s o b v i o u s t h a t t h e

scoundre l a lways wraps h imse l f up in the flag as a las t resor t . And

he goes where he can get i t easier. When the left was in power, he

was a lef t winger, then Reuther offered him a job, he went wi th Walter

Reuther and he was ant i- , you know,/this is not a man, in my opinion.

He was a left winger I know r ight wingers who were strong r ight

w ingers and jus t d idn ' t app rec ia te i t , you know. They though t i t was

wrong I remember at the General Council meetings this just come up

and, there was some discussion on i t , what should they do. And they

said nothing, what should we do. Because somebody says something

T ^about this guy especial ly Romano, they knew Romano.^Shelton Tapps

wasn' t v ind ic t ive, but they had Shel ton Tapps on someth ing e lse.

I : Y e a h .

R: I know. The government had him on something else, so he had to sing

whatever they wanted. They d id that around the count ry they jus t

t r i ed t o d i s rup t t he l abo r movemen t . Bu t I don ' t know i f t he

act ivi t ies had changed. There were some who, I don't know what you

would call them, mudwamps, and they decided to go where it was better

for them, at the t ime i t was more convenient for him I guess, you
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know. LThe good progressives they still stood together. They still

stood. After it was all over, they used to run Local 600 stil l hell

you know. Walter Reuther recognized that. | |

I: How lQng do you think it ws that the progressives were in?

V rR: Well,|the first election was in 1941, Paul Ste. Marie got elected.

Paul Ste. Marie was an ACTU. He was replaced by Percy Llewellyn. I
■ \ —

missed Joe Twyman. Joe Twyman succeeded Llewellyn. ■ Llewellyn won, he

became the 2nd President, he was a left winger and then J Llewellyn got

elected to the International Executive Board land was succeeded by Joe
' 1 rTwyman who was a left winger(and then/Bill Grant succeeded Joe Twyman

was a left winger jandjjoe McCuster defeated Bill Grant and he was a

right winger and Joe McCuster was a right winger and Paul Ste. Marie
- j r

was a right winger, they were in there one year, one year each. /Then— 2
Tommy Thompson got elected with the left wing, he stayed four yearsT \

£Carl Stellato got elected as a right winger and within a year he was
back into the left wing where he started and he was in there for 15

years jknd I replaced him and I was in there for 10 years. So there is

10, 15, that's 25, Thompson 24, Grant 25, 26, 27, 28 out of 30 years,

28 years were left wingers.

I: What about in the building units themselves. I know you can read the

different papers. . «

R: L?° tel1 y°U the trUth fr°m 19 I,d Say ab°Ut 1972' '73' *74 the win9s
kind of disappeared. Because from 19—1 was selected in '65 and in

19—we have a different, with Walter and about 1970 Walter was making

all kind of concessions to us, he called me up we would sit down and

we would talk about different programs you know. I'm not saying he

went along with me on everything but he wanted to know our views which
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was important. We had a dialogue in other words. And I went on a

resolutions committee he asked me to go on the resolutions committee

at the conventions the convention was in '66 chairman of the

Resolutions Committee '66, '68, '70, '72 convention, '74 convention, I

think. No we didn't have one in '74. But at least five conventions I

went, meet with Walter and he wanted to know what our position in 600

was. I think it was. the wings kind of disappeared. The right and

left. I think. Now at Local 600 I couldn't, I never find who is left

or the right myself.

I : N o s l a t e s ?

R: Oh they have slates, but the slates I think both slates now support

the international union. /Owen Bieber. As a matter of fact, I think

he's a pretty good guy. \ I know him very well. He is a liberal guy.

He doesn't drink, he doesn't smoke, he doesn't fool around. He's a

guy that is strictly business. Good guy, very good guy. He is a lot

different from Doug Frazier. /jFrazier took to the bottle and ran

around and couldn't take care of his men and he made concessions. I

happen to know that Doug didn't care for the concessions but once the

board makes a decision and the President carries them, you got to go

along with it. I But I think if I was the vice president of the undin I

would tell them to go jump in the lake. I will negotiate for my

department myself. He oculd remove you. I'd rather he remove me

instead of participating in the negotiations and making conessions.

You see there is a history to this, in all the negotiations that I sat

in, and I have been in there a long time. /And as I said, I'm an old

timer at this, the company used to always say to us, we don't want you

to tell us how to run our business. That's management's perogative.
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Wa l te r used to sugges t i f you ca l l , mak ing a , ge t r i d o f a l l t h i s

crome, make a cheaper car that1 wil l se£ on the market, cut the price

of the GM cars so the public will go for them and he used to resent

that we would even dared to in tervene in manager ia l areas. Wel l they

told us that for years and they used to always, and when he used to go

up to the negotiating table and we used to say to them well, open up

your books. We ain't got the money. Remember what Walter Reuther

used to say, you know, let 's open up your books, let 's see your books.

Get them out here , you know. I 'm not say ing we ' re broke. You jus t

put the i tems on the table and we wi l l discuss the i tems, the cost I

leave to us, they used to jus t tee us off to no end. • J

I : I have a couple more quest ions. /How d id be ing so act ive as a un ion

member a f fec t your persona l l i f e? I t mus t have taken a lo t o f

pe rsona l sac r i fice and t ime invo lvement .

R: My wi fe can answer that bet ter than I can. She thought I was some

kind of goofbal l I guess when we got marr ied,spend al l my t ime in this

un ion she d idn ' t know the d i f ferent between un ion ism and reumat ism. I

used to go membership meetings on one Sunday, General Council next

Sunday and another membership meeting the next month. When I was

President of the Local 600 I had a telephone at my bed. Anyplace I

had to leave, I had to leave my number because when I was there we had

42,000 members. I was on cal l , I would get ca l led in the middle of

the night. You see the plant, the Rouge plant, we had a seven-day

opera t ion and a th ree sh i f t opera t ion . >

I : S o t h o s e a r e c a l l e d 1 , 2 , a n d 3 . D a y i s 1 . S h i f t i s m i d n i g h t .

R : / D a y s i s o n t h e s e c o n d s h i f t w e c a l l i t . T h e t h i r d s h i f t i s a f t e r n o o n

t h e fi r s t s h i f t i s m i d n i g h t . /
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I: How do you get name recognition on the other shifts?

R: Well, they get their committeemen. Every shift has their

committeemen.

I: Yeah but for example you are trying to run as president of Tool and

Die and you work on day shift. How do the guys on the other shift

know about you?

R: j Well, I generally started at 8 and I'd go till 5. You know and our

plant they used to quit at 8:30 and the day shift used to quit at

3:30, I think. See because the midnight shift overlaps. It 's not a

full complete because there is a half hour lunch break. So there is

one hour overlap. And so you can see if you get in concise, if you

could get in at 7:30, as the unit chairman, I used to go in there and

I would see the guy, if they wanted to see you they would wait in the

committee room because they know you are going to be in there.

Between 8 and 8:30 because you would be talking to somebody on the

floor, somebody may stop you on the floor, but eventually I got to get

in the committee room, you know. And then you have the schedules and

you got your briefs and you got your local board meetings you got to

attend, you got then your numbrs of committees of the local board,

you're got to serve on. So there's all the assignments you have in

addition to that. So you don't just have that one particular job.

You get elected as chairman of the unit, you're an executive board

member and they got about 7 committees on that board that they put you

on one of them and you have to go to other units. And if you are on a

committee you can't be in front of a unit hearing the compalints,

complaints committee of the local uniibn. You might have a complaint

against a chairman you got to go in that other building and interview
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these people and yuou schedule hearings. Where the local president

can't be involved in this. It's another a board committees, a

grievance committee, complaints committee, seniority committees, of

the board we have recreation committees of the board, in other words

when some problem comes up in recreation, he goes to that board that

five-member board and they were all five members.

I : E lected or appointed?

R: Well, the President recommends it to the General Council so he takes

office and sets up all his committees and he takes it to General

Council. And of course you talk to the board member before you put

him on. You say, when the elections are over, you say all right, you

are the new elected people, these are the committees, I'm going to

give you this, if you have any special preference, let me know. If

you don't will you accept the jobs I gave you unless there's anything

special, I don't want you to bring it up at the board. I don't want

you to raise it because it might be personal. Bring it up with me and

I will make the changes, you know. Some guy may not want to say up

there, but he won't like it you know. Call me up and we'll meet in my

office and we'll go through it. So you got all these other functions

and you serve on the area CAP councils, which are politics. You have

to attend those meetings.

I : Po l i t i ca l Ac t ion commi t tees?

R: Oh yes. You have area cap meetings, we have them. Thenyou have the

district CAP meetings, and you got the state board meetings. So I was

on all these when you are elected to that job you get paid an expense

to make sure you attend them all. If you don't attend them then your

expenses are withheld unless you got a good reason like you say^whii*
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I was s ick , I can prove I was s ick . But you got a l l these o ther

func t ions . In o ther words tha t ' s why the UAW has a good po l i t i c^

s t r u c t u r e . P e o p l e a r e t h e r e , y o u k n o w. Yo u h a v e t h e d i s t r i c t s , t h e n

you have community, I l ive in the city of Dearborn then I have a word

to say in th is Dearborn, you know. The UAW endorses, pass i t out to ,

the i r commit tee. / But i t keeps you busy. Bel ieve me when I te l l you. \

When I left Local 600 I went to the International and became an

admin is t ra t i ve ass is tan t to Woodcock and then I t rave led a l l over the

count ry. You know I was a t roub leshooter.

I : O h .

R : P o s s i b l e s t r i k e s a n d n e g o t i a t e s w i t h t h e s t r i k e r s . A c o m p l a i n t , s o m e

guy wrote a letter to Woodcock making charges you have to, you fly al l

ove r the coun t ry, fo r two and a ha l f yea rs , I flew a l l ove r the

country, I said god what a job. And every place you go you are a no

good SOB, you know somebody is mad at somebody in there if you make a

decis ion. So then they got to come back and prepare a report , submit

i t and g ive i t to Leonard, Leonard reads i t and i f he agrees wi th i t

he signs i t and sends the report back on his signature and your

s ignature and you got to s ign i t . So I cont inued tha t two and a ha l f

years and I sa id good Lord I go t to ge t o f f th is mer ry -go- round. And

you a re ca r r y i ng you r su i t case i n you r ca r. You d r i ve t o a c i t y, t he

UAW has most o f i ts loca l un ions in Ohio , Ind iana, I l l ino is and

Michii^ga that is generally the UAW then we got some from New York a

few loca l s i n Ca l i f o rn ia , maybe abou t 10 l oca l s i n Ca l i f o rn ia , sane i n

the south, very few in the South. A couple in A labama three or four

in Alabama and most of them are out here. And I should get in the car

and just drive here and then we tr ied to group them together too and a
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lot of them used to get 100 letters a day average. The retirees,

somebody always sends a complaint. Some guy in the shop. But you got

to remember we, maybe had 500,000 members and some of these signs a

letter, and so what he does his secretary, he had five administrative

assistants and this guy covers this area and this guy covered this

area well they changed, they rotate you, they don't keep you, for

awhile I had Michigan and I'd go all over the state and I had a '67, I

had '66 Mercury, I msgt have put 100,000 miles on that car in a year.

I was driving here and back and up north and back and if you come

back, you got to make a report. He says I got to have it by Monday

you got to be there Sunday working on it you know. Here again it's an

administrative job, it's got to be done. There are many times the

guys I would say 50 percent of the times the people are right in the

plants when they are complaining about something. The local

leadership didn't care about it. Most of the cases we got were

cmplaints from Blacks. They wereiit* given a promotion to a job. The

local union does not have a baseball team because the Blacks could

dminate on the team, the vice president cancelled the team, they had a

team for years. The whites had predominanted now with the Blacks are

coming in, he cancelled the team. We said wait a minute. The guy

would say, well our members don't want to participate when you go in

there you have to send a telegram y& are going to be there so there

is no excuse. You can't drive 200 miles and make sure the guy isn't

there, you know, you come by chance. So you send him a telegram or

you send a registered letter saying if you cannot be available please

notify me when you can be available. We will handle this matter and

you send a copy of the letter, so he can't say well I didn't know
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abou t i t . Here i s a copy o f the le t te r we go t ou t , you a re to

investigate when I come down to see you I want you and this guy, the

ipar t ies invo lve^ , to meet in your o ffice a t 10 :00 o r you se t the t ime .

I f you can't make i t you are supposed to let me know. You don't say

well let me know you say this is the t ime and I 'm going to be there

and we send a te legram to the compla in tant . Wel l i t seems l ike that

don ' t mean no th i ng bu t t o t ha t pa r t i cu l a r guy, i t was impo r tan t . So

you go in there and you l isten oh no we ain't got no money. So you

say to someone did you cut any expenses off? Are you st i l l earning

your fu l l wages? Are you s t i l l ge t t i ng your expenses? What a re your

expenses? Now wai t a minute that 's none of your bus iness. I say I

g o t t o m a k e a r e p o r t . I c a n fi n d o u t i f I w a n t t o . I s a i d w e ' l l j u s t

get your records, yoiu know. And he wi l l te l l me yeah we got

increases you know you got to justi fy why you are canceling something

that's been in existence and when the Blacks come in and they are

bet ter p layers and the whi tes don' t want to p lay wi th them or

something you know . If you want answers we said look, you better

s t i ck to your baseba l l t eam. We a re o rde r ing you to es tab l i sh th i s

team to keep this team up. And they have al l k ind of complaints you

know and some are legi t imate. You know very legi t imate complaints and

most o f the by laws of the in ternat iona l un ion and the loca l un ions are

t o p r o t e c t a g a i n s t r a i l r o a d i n g t h e a c t i v i t i e s o f t h e m e m b e r s h i p , t h e y

must be a cer ta in percent , they vary you know. This one loca l un ion

and keep th is off the record. Walter you got to go to Chicago so and

so is happen ing so and so . I says when is th is . Tomor row he says . I

th ink you be t te r fly down there because i t ' s impor tan t . You go down
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t o t h e a i r p o r t , y o u r t i c k e t w i l l b e a t t h e a i r p o r t . Yo u n e v e r k n o w

what you can do you know.

I : Talk ing about quorums and having that , what was the membership

par t i c ipa t ion a t the Loca l 600. D id you used to ge t good tu rnouts jo f

d i f f e r e n t m e e t i n g s ?

R: Wel l , le t me te l l you th is our by laws o f Loca l 600 says tha t you must

call a membership meeting once a year—

I : T h a t w a s ?

R: Local 600, yeah. Each uni t must cal l a membership meet ing once a

month.

I : { O h .
i —

R: A l l loca l un ions in the UAW are ob l igated to ca l l a membersh ip meet ing

once a month . They can ca l l sh i f t meet ings , they can ca l l , you got to

ca l l a meet ing where the peop le can par t ic ipa te , you know. In o ther

words if you cannot call a membership meeting bn a Strike vote or

contract vote where the membership is employed in the plant, in other

words I can't schedule a meeting on Tuesday when the guys are working.

On a Sunday for that matter i f there is a big Sunday group working.

I : How do yu schedule the uni t meet ings, then once a month.

R: Wel l Sunday they had to schedu le them, most p lants le t me put i t th is

way. Mos t seven day opera t i ons p lan ts have sh i f t mee t ings . I f you

read the Ford Fac ts you ' l l see they w i l l say sh i f t mee t ings tha t

d e c i d e d u p o n fi r s t s h i f t d i d t h i s . . .

End Tape 4, Side A
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Tape 4, Side B
W. Dorosh

R: So they are obligated under the constitution of the Local bylaws,

Local 600 used to call, schedule shift meetings. As a rule, you

schedule meetings on Sundays or Saturdays if there is nobody working.

You could schedule them on a Saturday or a Sunday if a percent is

working, you know, in other words, if 5 percent is Qwrking well there

is sti l l 95 percent that can participate in the meeting. But if there

are full shifts working you schedule a meeting you conduct business

that's controversial you can challenge them and they will make them

schedule another meeting.
ofI: What kind of percentage do yta get for attending the different

meetings?

R: It depends upon the issues. Sometimes in the periods sometimes like

in the summer months the meetings, well they got so bad that they

cancelled the meetings in July, August, September and move the meeting

and each unit was obligated to schedule the board meetings and make

the board decision available to the membership by posting on the

bulletin board those months where you don't have membership meetings

so they can keep abreast with the developments, if this nation has

cause again anxiety they are obligated to call a meeting. The bylaws

provide that they can get a petition circulated, but generally what

happened was if they wanted a meeting, they could get it. We never

had no difficulties. The local union, we used to get, well 1967

strike for, we rented the Cobol Arena and we got about 8,000 people in

there and we had 42,000 at the plant. We bussed them from Local 600.
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We got around 8,000 members. The next year I scheduled a membership

meeting at Local 600 and we could seat about 1500 people in our hall

there. I think only about 400 showed up.

I: How about back in the '40s and '50s?

R: Oh we had to have, we rented the Drake Stadium one time, we had about

25,000 people.

I: Oh yeah. Was that for a str ike?

R: It was on a contact. Then we had one time the, we rented the fair

grounds we must have had about 15 or 20,000 there too. Again it was

on contracts you know, it was contract issues. And this is the way

they voted in them days on a contract. They never had the procedures

that they got. Everybody in the hall—all those for, all those

against then they were walking out, half of them didn't understand

what they voted for, you know. It was just too unwieldly. A guy

wanted to speak, I want to speak on it. I want to speak on it. You

know you would have to spend 15 hours there to let anybody speak.

Guys raising hell we were sold out because I couldn't speak. We had

the one in Drake Stadium! it was hell. You know we had a platform out

there and you couldn't see nobody, it was just... We finally

abandoned that idea but I rented the Cobol Arena that was good because

you could see everybody. It was kind of compact and we had the

auditorium there. And I told them Walter Reuther would be there and

he was there and he spoke on the contract. That was when we had the

strike. The strike was on then. No it was after the strike. About

8000 showed up and then as I said the next few months, the next year

see it says every July you are supposed to schedule, no one shows up,

you know. See they liked the unit meetings because it deals directly
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with their problems, shop problems. The local, what are you talking

about parking lots and bigger things that we are responsible for in

the Local negotiatons.

I: So, for example, in the Tool and Die, what kind of turnout did you

have?

R: Oh the unit meetings as a rule, we used to get maybe 300 a month.

I : 300 ou t o f . * . .

R: Oh we had then about 2400 when I was president of it then. We would

get about 10 percent—five percent. Again it would depend upon the

issues. When we had the first two contracts, we used to rent the

Shatsy High School, and we used to seat 1500 people.

I: Was this in the 40s?

R: Yeah and all the plants had such big membership turnouts that we used

to rent all the high schools around the area.

I: Yeah I remember W were at Cass a lot.

R: Cass Tech, yeah we rented Jdb Cass Tech, Stellato scheduled about 5

meetings in their and that thing would be jammed right out in the

street, we would put speakers outside. That was the biggest place

they would get rentals, you know. You couldn't rent like the big

arenas in them days. And every unit, 18 plants this local this unit

would rent Western High School and you would go there and it was

packed, you couldn't get in there. But at that time we were talking

about the basic issues and you know what happens and we've been

analyzing this for years. / Why did the membership shrink and it's the

par t ic ipat ion in the loca l un ion act iv i t ies or un i t ac t iv i ty? Wel l ,

you can offer two answers. One answer is all the problems that

bothered them had been resolved, you know. What were their problems?



104

Senior i ty, wage structures, promotional act iv i t ies. Everything

spelled out now you kow. In those days in first meetings a guy would

say this guy I remember one of the first memberships in Tool and Die I

went into he says this guy here was denied the leader's job for 10

years. I make a motion that the bargaining committee go in and

negotiate to get this guy a leader's job you know. Everybody says

yeah he's a good guy okay I'll favor it. Well that was a decision and

we got to go in to negotiate. Well today there are rules that says

twice a year anybody who desires sane promoting to the following

classifications, they put his name on the list with his seniority date

and his badge number, you know. It's really on the list. And so what

happens when we were still there when I was still there we would take

them in seniority order. Let's see we have an agreement now with the

company that people would be placed in seniority order on the list and

when promotions are available, they will be given the job unless the

company can offer substantial evidence to prove that he doesn't have

the qualifications to perform the job. In other words maybe a person

is, some of the arguments the company advances we cannot handle

people, they are always fights or arguing. Can't afford to appoint a

leader over six people, we had a grievance that said that the

leadership, you would have 6 to 8 people, working for them. Well, if

you can't get along with people, well he said, how could you prove he

doesn't. Well, we gave you the evidence, well let's see the evidence.

We are not prepared to g ive th is (?) because you come in there

and some foreman says, Let's see the evidence, you know. If we think

it 's significant the evidence, we'l l take it into acocunt, or we say

to them okay if you say that's the case we are prepared to do this, we
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are prepared to say give him six months. And we will talk to the

people, I worked with them if he's not satisfied, we're prepared to

pull him off the job, and they have no grievance. This is what you

call giving the guy the opportunity to prove or disprove what they are

saying is true. Well, today all these things are out. Everything you

do, it tells you how you get promoted, it tells you how you get your

shifts, another issue that used to bring out a big membership isVshifts rotation. What that meant is, under the Ford setup, before

they had the union they used to change two weeks, two weeks you would

be on days, two weeks on afternoon, two weeks on midnights. Two weeks

on days, two weeks on, God, your whole system would get all screwed

up. So when the union came in people were kind of acclimated to the

rotation they liked it because they had certain things that over the

years that, you know, they probably bowl on those two weeks, and in

the different leagues and they didn't want to foul it up, you know.

So what the issue would come to, the next membership meeting, instead

of two weeks, I make a motion that we change shifts once a month. And

I want three... In other words, it 's an issue that directly affected

them. So that really created all kinds of anxiety and so all shifts

would come out. Man you would have 2500 people and so they argued

back and forth and finally somebody would say Mr. Chairman I make a

motion that we make this a secret ballot vote and that the elections,

that the unit chairman scheduled elections within two weeks within the

next month and let the membership make a decision and that the

election be conducted by the election committee. Every unit has to

have an election committee under the constitution. Okay they'll vote

it unless the guys figured they got enough votes to reject it, you
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know. And vo te i t ou t vo te i t ou t . Mr. Cha i rman I wan t to speak in

oppos i t ion . You can ' t speak on a mot ion to tab le o r someth ing . They

get into a b ig d iscussion and al l the counter-mot ions and mot ions and

t a b l e , a n d fi n a l l y t h e y g e t t h a t o u t . B u t t h o s e a r e t h e k i n d s o f—*
issues that wi l l get b ig votes, j Or i f they say that the damn

senior i ty agreement shouldn't be by, sane of the young guys would get
-72-7al l k ind of worked up. j fi t wi l l take us 15 years before we get to be

leaders and leaders as a rule get 25 cents an hour minimum above the

d ie makers . We l l , you take 25 cen ts , adds up . So they sa id le t ' s go

to the membership meet ing and then they say le t 's establ ish a rat io ,

for every h igh senior i ty guy, one low senior i ty guy, you know and you

wil l have a packed house there. And the young guys wil l get up and

t h e y w i l l s t a r t r a i s i n g h e l l . B u t t h o s e a r e t h e k i n d o f i s s u e s . B u t

everything else is spelled out and I says we have done such a good

job. £ j5ee a l l our agreements are in a l i t t le book. There might be

about 45 to 50 and i ts f rom A to Z, tel ls you everything. How do you

get your med ica l leave how to do th is , and i t ' s a l l spe l led ou t , and

they've got these books so they figured what could they do with the

agreement, and to change any unit agrement must be posted on the

bul let in board at least two weeks before the membership meet ing. So

they say, I just don' t want to hear about Tom Brown's gr ievance the

hell with Tom, you know. Most of the meetings they come up with

gr ievances. And the only guys who show up for the gr ievances is the

guy who is directly involved in the grievance or somebody who wants to

recommend something new but generally all just become so routine and

drab today. And the only t ime you get maybe a bigger membership is

dur ing an e lect ion, they wi l l say Senator so and so is go ing to be
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t h e r e . Yo u s a y o h I w a n t t o s e e t h a t g u y. O r D e t r o i t e l e c t i o n s , t h e y

may bring some counci lman or yeah unless there is something specific

or they wi l l say the local President wi l l be there you know and you

can't be at eveyfc meeting every month because there are 18 units, i t 's

j u s t i m p o s s i b l e . S o o k a y h e w i l l b e t h e r e . S o h e ' l l s a y I w a n t t o

ta lk to that son of a b i tch I got something to square up wi th him.

I ' l l never forget the t ime one guy came up in the membership meeting

and he says to me, how did he put it, I went to some membership

meeting and he says boy he says I'm going to tell you something I

voted for you and he says I think you are a good guy, but I 'm not

go ing to cas t ano the r vo te fo r you aga in . I sa id gee I ' d l i ke to hea r

an exp lana t ion why, I sa id then I th ink you a re ob l iga ted to te l l i t to

the membership. He says you endorsed some guy that is running in his

c i t y on the c i t y counc i l who had ag reed to i nc rease the i r t axes . I

s a i d h o l y G o d , I s a i d l e t m e t e l l y o u s o m e t h i n g . I s a i d , I d i d n ' t

endorse him. I t was in Ford Facts, you put i t in Ford Facts and you

endorsed him. Wait a minute I said, I endorsed him and I backed him

because the UAW did i t . But I said, we can' t select candidates on one

issue. You go t to use a ser ies o f i ssues . I f the guy is good on one

issue but bad on 15 issues and we can't consider him either. He may

be good on 15 issues and bad on 1 we have to support him. You know we
f

got to cons ider h im on the to ta l bas is . I don ' t g ive a damn he says,

I wil l never cast a vote for you anymore because you endorsed him.

And you know, ( i t was the funniest th ing?) I sa id okay. But you know

the next day he wi l l ca l l you up and say look I 'm sorry I apologize.

I f t h a t ' s y o u r e x p l a n a t i o n , I ' l l a c c e p t i t . | I t e l l y o u t h e m o s t

i n t e r e s t i n g t h i n g i s t o b e w i t h w o r k e r s , i t ' s g r e a t . I m i s s t h a t
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part, you know when I go shopping I meet hundreds of retirees or

workers and they wi l l t ie me up and we wi l l stand, as a matter of fact

the last t ime I went to F lor ida, I was walk ing through, my wi fe does

knitting she makes these pil lows and so she went to buy some crochet

s tu f f she says we a re go ing pas t Lake C i ty I t i nk i t , l e t ' s s top a long

there there is a K-Mart here I can see the sign we wi l l stop there and

she says I want to buy some crocheting stuff . I said okay we have

been dr iv ing fo r a coup le o f hurs and I cou ld use a l i t t le wa lk ing ,

and I pul led into the park ing lot . We walked in there and somebody

said hey Dorosh you no good son of a b i tch. I found a ret i ree. We

had re t i rees f rom Loca l 600 l i v ing a l l a round the count ry. We go t a

lot of them in Flor ida. We must have abouve 3000 of them l iv ing in

Florida. And my wife said everyplace you go you get stopped, and you

g o t t o t a l k . P a r t i c u l a r l y r e t i r e e s t h e y g o t a l l k i n d o f p r o b l e m s t h e y

te l l you about they a re s ick and th is , you l i s ten and you s i t there

a n d o h I t e l l y o u Wa l t e r . I t ' s a g r e a t l i f e . G o d , I d o n ' t w a n t t o

hold you here too long, you kow i ts 10:30, quarter to 11. *

I : I ' ve one o the r t h i ng . ^One th ing I wan t t o go th rough , wh i ch you

r epassed over quickly. / I remember reading this book called Ford Men and

Method by Bar i i iey and i t was wr i t ten in the '30s and i t was explain ing

the product ion methods at Ford in a very superfic ia l way but they

talked about the Henry Ford trade school there. And when I was

r e a d i n g t h a t , t h e y p u t i t a l l i n t h e c o m p a n y l i g h t , b u t i t s o u n d e d l i k e

the t rade school would or ient k ids , you go there ins tead of h igh

schoo l , r igh t and that i t wou ld get them ear ly, and peop le 'wou ld go to

that trade school would end up being more pro-company. That 's the way

i t sounded by the way that they were descr ib ing i t .
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R: Well I ' l l tell you tehre were two people that put that trade school

out of business, me and John Orr.

I : Oh yeah .

R: Both graduates from the Henry Ford Trade School. The reason we put

them out of business is they had a big layoff in jl9—the period I was

telling you about, '51, '52, no it was later than that, about '58,

1957-58. /We had about 800 Tool and Die makers layed off and they sent

all the work into the trade school.

I: Were they paying much lower wages?

R: Oh certainly, we were making at that time about $3.50 an hour and I

guess they paid them about $1.25. So we went into the trade school

which was located right in the Rouge plant, it was located in the

B building. We went to the trade school and we got all the work

orders, and we noticed the work orders were transferred from tool and

die to the Henry Ford trade school. We met with the company and we

wrote a grievance on it and the company said it's not a grievance, it

says we can't jump out of work, it's in the plant, it's our school; we

did some research too. We had a lawyer do some research for us. ]

Lacey, who was president did that. I forgot which attorney it was,

bu t they go t some (? ) a t the schoo l (? ) f r£m tha t k ind o f work ,

they cannot compete, in other words, with adult community. And we

went back into the, we were still in second^ stage of the grievance

procedure and said to the company okay here is our disposition. The
jr—

company said I the labor relations guy at that time was Doug Knott who

was an ail-American football player with the University of Detroit,

Detroit Lions, he was a halfback on the Detroit LionsTjhe says I

talked with the company on this, there was going to be a meeting with
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the company legal department and we want the international involved

and nobody else. Very serious thing you are dealing with here. And

they made us believe that we were committing a big crime by

( ? ) o f t h i s k i n d . I t w a s a g o o d s c h o o l , I w i l l h a v e t o

admit. They put on some very good mechanics. I don't think that

there is an ounce of, as a matter of fact most of the people that

graduated out of the Henry Ford trade school don't go into the shop

itself, they promote up. Most of them are engineers. Well I'm

talking about the period of the '40s, '50 I think that showed up about

the '60s when the engineers become organized and they have to have a

degree now, to go to college. Go into engineering now, they become

more sophisticated too. We were talking about the schools. He said,

you guys, I want you guys to know you are responsible;this union will

be responsible for closing down this school. I said you don't have to

close this school down. We said you can keep that school open. What

the company did for years, we worked on this work for tools, dies and

fixtures, and rates of pay, when I went to Henry Ford trade school I

got 15 cents an hour and we competed with, that time the rate of pay

in the plant was 75 cents an hour for the tool maker. I'm not saying

that our work was quality but it was substantial to perform the work

that you were doing, it require that finness. After I was in there

for about the fourth year I was doing fine work. I worked on tools,

fixtures that was used right into the plant. We were competing, Ford

was competing since 1927 he started the school and it was closed in

1954 I think, it was '54 I think because we filed the grievance, '50

or something I can't remember the exact date but anyway by the time

all that went through we agreed that the school would close after the
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class graduated, four year period, it started '49 or '50, it was

during that period of layoffs right after the war. Took all the work

in there. So when you claim, or the claim is made in the book

somebody lays a claim to the fact, I don't think that's the case.

When I was on the national negotiating committee one of my tasks was

to go around all four plants around the country and talk to the

membership and go and visit the plants I didn't go to all of them

there was too many of them. But I picked a certain number of them.

Every plant I went into I found Ford Trade School graduates as

managers of the plants. What I'm saying is they are highly trained in

there, very good mechanics and I'll tell you something else, if you

visit the job shops in the greater Detroit area they are owners of

plants. They all went out. They are kind of elite, you know. They

belong to the (?) group gol f c lub here the Henry Ford t rade

school alumni association club. I never belonged to that stuff. To

me it seemed high brow. But they do, they have an alumni association

and they are owners of all these small plants.

I: So besides going into be engineers or owners of their own plants the

only other place they would go would be the tool and die shop or would

they be distributed all around?

R: Job shops. Most of them went out, see let me tell you about a tool

and die maker. /A tool and die maker is kind of a unique animal, he

can figure, first he can figure percentage and everything and he will
Can

go where he will get the last penny if he^get a quarter penny more he

will go across the street and get that job you know. They are very

funny people I never seen nothing like it. The more money they got

th^more they wanted. And let me tell yu something else. I'm a tool
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and die maker and I'm talking about them all. Every so often Ford

Motor Company, when I was at the local union, Ford Motor Company would

call me and say that the, I don't know what they called it, UAR lunch

company wants a meeting with you. When they do, nine out of ten times

they want to raise prices. They have to meet with you to tell you,

unless you can disprove that, you know. So they will come and go meet

with them the officers will meet with them the company will take us in

there. And they will say look here we haven't raised prices on coffee

for seven years and we have been selling it for 15 cents a bottle 20

bottles, we got to go up to 20 cents, well you just can't do that.

And so finally we will argue and finally we will get it down to 17

cents, you know, it could be one of those things. No come on 15

cents. You know 20 cents God damn it all these years, why didn't you

raise it a penny every year. Nobody stopped you because you're not

going to tell 'em. We can't take a five cent bite. And then they

will go on they will call you, okay we will settle on 17 cents, we

will cut down someplace else. Well anyway we go back to work, you go

in the plant, you know, and guess who the (?)will come from in the

first place, the most highly skilled, highly paid guy, Tool and Die

(?)and he's complaining, and they are making at least 1.00 an hour

more than the production workers do. I can't believe it. Everybody

in the plant accepts it. They want to have a picket line around the

lunch counter. So I go to the meetings and said wait a minute we

negotiated on 17 cents an hour I mean 17 cents a bottle, they were

going to put up the 20 and I'm not going to keep you, if we were

victorious^ 3he fact is you are still paying 17, you are paying more.
But they got to proof. They show** us the bills. All you guys have
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got increases in the last 7 years how much cost of l iv ing d id you get ,

you know. That has noth ing to do wi th i t . Goddamni t , 3 cents and you

know they give me more hell on money on one penny^ the production

workers won ' t say noth ing they wi l l accept i t , because we te l l them

when you put those in, they generally put on the wagons or in the

ca fe te r ias , new cos t as a resu l t , and they te l l you the mee t ing w i l l

be wi th your loca l leadersh ip , and the loca l leadersh ip agrees you

know and they got my signature on there and it 's on there someplace to

show that i t ' s leg i t , you know, they look and say our loca l agreed,

there must be some reason for i t . But them ski l led guys they are so

cr i t i ca l . And I sa id they can figure , they can , and you know what our

guys used to do, if they found out that a job somewhere down the

s t ree t i s mak ing more oney, they qu i t and go over there . And i f tha t

job shop was working 5 days a week and we were working 6 they would

q u i t , j

I : I f y o u c a n d o t h i s I d o n ' t k n o w, w h a t I b r o u g h t h e r e i s a l i s t o f t h e

d i f fe ren t p lan ts and someth ing I 'm do ing i s compar ing the d i f fe rences

b e t w e e n t h e d i f f e r e n t u n i t s . O n e o f t h e v a r i a b l e s i s p o l i t i c a l a n d

a n o t h e r i s m i l i t a n c e o r, y o u k n o w, i f a c e r t a i n n a t i o n a l i t y g r o u p

dominated, or so on. I f I can tel l you the name of the unit ^and can

yuto tel l me some impressions that you have that character ize that

u n i t ?

R: I don ' t know what per iod we are go ing to be ta lk ing about .

I : A b o u t t h e ' 4 0 s .

R : Okay. The re i s a cons ide rab le change I cou ldn ' t g i ve you no th ing on

i t . ' 4 0 s ?

I : ' 4 0 s a n d e a r l y ' 5 0 s . T h e e a r l y p a r t o f t h e u n i o n .
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R : We l l t h e y u s e d t o b o u n c e b a c k a n d f o r t h . T h e y ' d s t a r t o f f w i t h , t h e

motor p lant . They 'd e lec t a le f t w inger maybe for two terms and

they 'd e lect the r ight winger for two terms. There never was one way

al l the way across and l ike I sa id that people I can th ink o f are ,

Bi l l Cooper was Pres ident there, Paul Boat in was pres ident there,

Johnny Kerr was president there, Humphries was president there and

l ike I said one was left , they used to go back and forth. Remember

those s t ra ined, cont inuous. The nex t bu i ld ing over was the assembly

plant and there too, you had the same thing you know one year you

would get a Johnny Quil l ico elected, he was a left winger [and the next

t ime you'd elect Mike Donnelly was elected, and then you would get,

and i t used to just go back and forth. You would never have a
.7- "fl

stra ight . \ The next bu i ld ing come in would be the g lass p lant . Here— f
again theiused to change/Johnny Roebuck was president. He was a left

winger. Wasn' t a bud guy for maybe two terms. And af ter Roebuck, I

can see the guy's face, I can't remember his name now.

I : W a s t h a t Z a r r o ?
/

R: J Mike Zarro was a left winger.

I : He was k ind of an he was a le f t w inger and r ight winger. He was k ind

of in the middle. He was a photographer and he used to get business

by t ak i ng p i c t u res du r i ng e l ec t i on t ime f o r t he r i gh t w inge rs and l e f t
Qwingers . On i ssues he wu ld s ide w i th t ^h r i gh t , some w i th the le f t ,

he was a photographer.\ >Mike Zarro was, I can see his face but I can't

t h ink o f h i s f ace . The nex t bu i l d i ng wou ld be the !P ress S tee l .

End Tape 4, Side B
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Tape 5, Side A
W. Dorosh

R: J im Tamoor was a le f t w inger, was a Pres iden t 2 te rms , o r 3 te rms . I t

. j was one year electi ions. And then Lee Ramono for about two terms.

Then Archie Acciacca, a lef t winger for two terms. \

I : D id McPhau l come in the re?
A *

R: / No, McPhaul was never elected President.

I : O h , h e w a s V i c e P r e s i d e n t .

R : V i c e P r e s i d e n t . A s a m a t t e r o f f a c t I r a n f o r P r e s i d e n t w i t h h i m i n

t ha t bu i l d i ng , I was l a i d o f f t hen as a t oo l and d i e make r. I n t ha t

bu i ld ing , McPhau l go t e lec ted on my t i cke t . McPhau l , Anderson, there

was 3 o f them. And that was a very in terest ing th ing, he got e lec ted

and never served a day (McPhaul) . He got fired. See what was

happen ing, th is was the mi l i tan t days o f our un ion , th is was the '50s ,

'48 . I go t la id o f f , and I cou ld have gone o f f and got ten a job as a

t o o l m a k e r o r s t a y i n t h e p l a n t . I a g r e e d t o s t a y i n t h e p l a n t , i n

the s tamp ing p lan t . I wen t t o work i n t he s tamp ing p lan t . I was

working for a Pol ish boss, a personal f r iend of mine I knew, but I was

working for him anyway. And what we were doing, we were caryring on a

campaign during our lunch period we used to get up in the lunch room

and speak I 'd charge Archie, I was runnig against Archie Accaicca, and

I charged Arch ie Acca icca , wh ich was t rue inc iden ta l l y, ag ree ing to

speed up in the plant. He agreed with the company to put counters on

machines before they never had no counters, you know. And Archie said

well everybody is going to do their share of work and he became

concerned about the company's effort. Anyway there was a number of
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other th ings he had agreed to and we contested him on i t . I t was

those th ings that bothered me that , the workers a lways had fau l t wi th

di fferent management and that 's the approach that k ind of stung me.

So this Polish guy comes up to me, his name was Barny Gotch and said

come on , I ' l l g i ve you a t i p . I sa id wha t ' s happen ing . He sa id I was

jus t ca l led down to Labor Rela t ions, he sa id , I unders tand you ' re

s p e a k i n g i n t h e l u n c h r o o m s . Ye a h , I s a i d , I ' m u p f o r P r e s i d e n t . I

know you are, he says. He says to me there is going to be Ford

Serv ice, Labor Rela t ions in there and under the cont ract I unders tand

you guys can' t speak in the lunchrooms, which is t rue, you can' t speak

in the lunchrooms. They are going to have your speech on a recorder,

w i t h t h e s p e e c h t h e y ' l l n a i l y o u . Yo u ' l l b e d i s c h a r g e d . S o I s a i d ,

wow, I better get down to McPhaul, McPhaul was a committeeman full

t ime committeeman. So I said wi l l you excuse me a minute, I said I

want to go talk to somebody to make sure he don't get hurt either and
f i—

so I go down and get all of them./ McPhaul, and Max Chait and I says

to them, it was Max Chait, Anderson, Dorosh, we had nine men on the

slate but there was only about 4 speakers the other 5 were just good

guys , you cou ldn ' t ge t them to ta lk in f ron t o f a c rowd. I was a

rabble rouser. McPhaul was a rabble rouser, Max Chait was a rabble

rouser, land so was Anderson. And so the 4 of us were making a lot of

noise. So we had spoke already they had 3 main lunchrooms and they

used to get about 500 people in the lunchrooms. And we would stand up

on the tables and speak. The first day I got up and spoke and Atfchie

wasn ' t there . He sa id , boy i f you say a word aga ins t me aga in I ' l l be

there. I sa id okay you be there I 'm go ing to be there the next day.

So I was in the next lunchroom which was the bigger one they had two
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on one end and the biggest one in the center. And Archie was there

and he got up and he said he's not a production man he's a tool and

d ie , he don ' t care about you guys, he d idn ' t h i t the issues though,

and well he beat me bad there. I got in again, I said about maybe

four months before the e lect ion they d idn ' t know me in the bui ld ing

4there. So I got down and when I got ahol?' of McPhaul at the committee

desk and I says hey I 'm not speaking today in the cafeter ia, I sa id

you shouldn' t , Max and Andy, let Archie speak. And he says, are you

tak ing te jh word of a foreman. I sa id what have we got to lose. I

said if nothing happens to Archie today you can go speak tomorrow.

What 's the prob lem. Look I 'm not go ing to be a qu i t ter, we got these

g u y s o n b l a , b l a , b l a . I s a i d o k a y. I ' m n o t s p e a k i n g . I f y u w a n t t o

speak I 'm going to take that, you know}word that was given to me. And

so they got out there , and they got Arch ie and everybody. They fired

them a l l . Wel l I went to the hear ings I had to go to the hear ings

downtown before the umpire and I defended Archie and all of them, you

know. They wanted a witness for and against and nobody would go up

there fo r Arch ie because they d idn ' t ca re too much, and I sa id I ' l l

go. And my story up there was that they've always done i t , you know.

What 's a l l the concern about . So anyway the long and shor t o f i t , the

umpi re re ins ta ted Arch ie bu t he kep t the o thers fi red . And we cou ld

n e ve r u n d e rs ta n d t h a t . A r ch i e w a s r e i n s ta te d t o f u l l e mp l o yme n t . Bu t

McPhaul, Anderson and Chait . / Wel l Archie gave a story up there also

that he went up there too. He did say and I have to admit i t , but

t h e y d i d l e a v e i t o u t o f t h e i r t e x t , t h a t I k n o w t h i s i s i l l e g a l b u t I

don't want people to consider me as a coward to get up to speak if

they speak, you tyow and one of those things. I 'm forced to do this



118

th ing on whichever s tand. Th is was h is cho ice, and we s tar ted th is

and i t i s impor tan t fo r th i s guy to ge t up .

I : S o i t s o u n d s l i k e P r e s s S t e e l w a s p r e t t y l e f t i s t .

R : Yeah i t was l e f t i s t . Fo l l ow ing A rch ie was Joe A l l en and Joe A l l en was

in o ffice about 3 o r 4 te rms, I guess . And then rep lac ing Joe A l len

was John Szluk was a right winger.

I : T h a t ' s S z l u k ?

R: Sz luk t ha t ' s r i gh t . He rep laced them and then the w ings k i nd o f f aded

the re , r i gh t a f t e r t ha t pe r i od . Some o f t he l e f t w inge rs we re gone

some of the r ight wingers were there the opposi t ion that was, Andy

someth ing . J A l l r igh t your nex t bu i ld ing over was the)Ax le bu i ld ing .

T h e t r a n s m i s s i o n p l a n t . T h a t w a s t h e r i g h t w i n g e r s . L e t ' s s e t ' t h e

r ight wingers, were Andy Ignasiak, he was there at least 4 or 5 terms.

And then after Andy Ignasiak, Eddie Plawecki at least 4 or 5 terms but

a f t e r h e l e f t t h e r e , h e w e n t r i g h t o n t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l p a y r o l l ( a n d
1

after Andy, wai t a minute I forgot , a couple of terms there was Joe

Hogan.- Joe Hogan was a left winger and Blackie Backaruso. One term

each, j I t was 2 years I th ink. Then the bu i ld ing went out o f

b u s i n e s s . T h e y t r a n s f e r r e d t h e i r j o b t o L i v o n i a . I t ' s n o w L o c a l 1 8 2 .

I : So that one was go ing back and for th too?

R : N o . I t w a s r i g h t w i n g e r " f o r t h e m a j o r i t y o f t i m e .

I : Oh because Ignasiak had such a long term.

R: Yeah. Ignasiak had about 5 years and Plawecki had about 4 or 5, about

10 years straight thereJ And then we gojfc to the Foundries, the

Foundries bounce back and forth. There was Otis Eaton.

I : When Found ry a re you ta l k i ng abou t? Was he l e f t o r r i gh t?
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R: / The I ron Foundry. I don ' t know, he was jus t a t rade un ion is t . He

didn' t have a wing in them days. And then there was Eddie Hester. He

got e lected as a lef t winger and then he went to r ight wingers the

next election then back to left wingers and he went, he bounced around
7

a coup le o f t imes . I th ink he won th ree e lec t ions . Then you had o ld

man Johnson. Harold Johnson.

I : O h h e w a s r i g h t w i n g , r i g h t .

R : R i g h t w i n g e r . H a r o l d J o h n s o n w a s a r i g h t w i n g e r . H e w a s o n t h e }

internat ional , then he came back and he went back on the internat ional

and then Sheffield was on there one term.

I : I n t h e I r o n F o u n d r y ?

R: Yeah he was President of the Iron Foundry for one or two terms, and he

went to the in te rnat iona l and then\B i l l Johnson was Pres ident . He was

a l e f t w i n g e r . I t h i n k i t w a s o n e t i m e r I t h i n k t h r e e y e a r s . 1 A n d s /

then there was a Dick Bantom for about 2 terms, he was a right winger. I

Lef ty Set t les , he was about 2 terms I th ink.

I : He was a l so I r on Found ry?

R: Yeah . Le f t y Se t t l es . Some o f these guys , Edd ie Hes te r wou ld w in and

Johnson would win and Hester would come back and win again and Johnson

wou ld w in . You know I 'm no t t a l k i ng abou t con t i nuous . Bu t l i ke I

said they each had a couple of terms and they bounced off,

Scheffield would go in and Scheffield would go up.

When he got beat, Scheffield would come from the internat ional run and

then ? Asd a matter of fact it was on account of him we changed the

cons t i tu t ion . He had come back and ran fo r p res ident in the^ i ron
p
foundry a t leas t 4 t imes . I th ink he won tw ice and he los t tw ice bu t

he never worked in the foundry. He would be on the in ternat ional
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payrol l and staff and he would come back and run as an international

rep. There was so much noise raised at 600 about th is that they

changed the const i tu t ion saying a person must res ign at least three

months in advance o f an e lec t ion to be e l ig ib le to run fo r o ffice

because of him, and then if he would wotr±d he would never nothing, he

w o u l d j u s t s t a y o n t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l .

I : Where d id he come f rom to begin wi th?

R : D e a r b o r n I r o n F o u n d r y.

I : So he was there and then he went f rom there to—

R : To t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l u n i o n . H e w e n t o n t h a t s t a f f o f R e u t h e r . F i r s t

t ime Reuther got e lec ted in '47. He was in a foundry up to '47, I

guess. And then he went on international and was gone for years and

come back and run. I f he won he would go back as president. After he

los t he wou ld go back on i n te rna t i ona l pay ro l l . You can ' t do tha t

t o d a y 7 c o u n c i l . O n c e y o u r e s i g n y o u r e s i g n t h a t ' s i t . Yo u d o n ' t

have no c la ims. Wel l okay le t me see now. /Going in to Rol l ing Mi l l

i t ' s been a lways r i gh t w ing , a l l t he way th rough . Neve r a l e f t w inge r

e v e r e l e c t e d i n t h a t b u i l d i n g . S t e e l m i l l .

I : R o l l i n g i M i l l , t h a t w a s —

R: Wel l , i t was the ho t bed , Har ry Bennet t , you heard o f Har ry Bennet t .

I : Y e s .

R: H is b ro ther Hays Bennet t was the manager o f tha t p lan t . And they

h i red eve ry scoundre l you cou ld th ink o f i n t ha t p lan t . tHays Benne t t

was the manager at that t ime for 15 years and every, they hired them.

I : Was tha t ano the r o f t he d i r t y j obs a long w i t h t he P roduc t i on Found ry?

R : T h a t w a s t h e e l i t e j o b , t h e b o n u s . P e o p l e i n t h a t p l a n t t o d a y, t h e

sweeper must make about $60,000 a year. The wages the bonuses equal
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their wages that 's why they just cut back, just now, on wages, they

took a $4 an hour cu t . They are s t i l l way up there . The ro l le rs make

about $120,000 a year.

I : Why so much? How do they get that k ind of leverage?

R: Do you know what a ro l le r i s?

I : N o .

R : H u n ?

I : N o .

R : A r o l l e r i s t h e g u y t h a t r o l l s t h a t b a r s t e l l a n d i t s g o t t o b e j u s t

perfect and he's got no gages to go on. I t 's hot and he knows, he

lea rned on every exper ience . And i t t akes you th i r t y years to ge t to

be a number one ro l le r. Then years th i rd ro l le r and second ro l le r and

fi r s t r o l l e r . H e s i t s o n t h a t b o o t h a n d w a t c h e s t h a t s t e l l r o l l

th rough there . Bar s tee l , the most expens ive s tee l you can get .

C h r o m i o m s t e e l a n d a l l o f t h a t . T h a t ' s e x p e n s i v e s t u f f . T h e y d o n ' t

le t nobody play wi th i t . So he makes about $120,000 a year. But he

may work maybe 72 hours in a row once they start rol l ing that steel he

c a n ' t g o . H e s t a y s r i g h t t h e r e . H e ' s g o t a n a i r c o n d i t i o n i n g r o o m ,

and when he gets t ired, the second rol ler moves in i ts place and he

goes back there lays down sleeps for an hour, they now, they don't

c a r e . T h e y g o t a r e f r i g e r a t o r t h e r e f o r f o o d a n d e v e r y t h i n g . B u t

e v e r y r o l l e r i n a l l t h e s t e e l p l a n t s t h e r e . N o w t h i s i s a n a r t . T h i s

i s t he a r t t hey say t ha t you can ' t t each . You go t t o l ea rn i t by

fee l i ng t he s tee l and t he ro l l s . You know they s ta r t o f f on a b i g

b l o c k , y o u h a v e s e e n h o w t h e y d o i t . A n d t h e y k e e p r o l l i n g i t . I t

goes back and for th unt i l i t ' s maybe three b locks long, you know. And

t h e n t h e y s e l l t h a t s t e e l , t h a t ' s e x p e n s i v e s t e e l . A n d t h e n o u t o f
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tha t s tee l they can make sheet meta l ou t o f i t . They can se l l tha t

bar. And then they would heat i t up again and they would make sheet

m e t a l . T h a t ' s r e a l l y g o t t o b e r i g h t . A n d t h a t s t u f f i s e x p e n s i v e .

I : S o t h e y r o l l o u t a b a r a n d t h e n i t ' s m a d e i n t o s h e e t .

R: Yeah or they can make a bar. Once they get tha t t ransfer red there and

t o t h e s h e e t a n d t h e n t h e y s t a r t r o l l i n g i t , i t g o e s i n t h e r o l l i n g

mi l l . Bu t i s t he bonus p lace , l i ke ou r t oo l and d ie maker i n t he

plant make maybe today $45,000 a year and tool and die makers in stell

make about $70,000, 50 percent more bonus. But they are on 7 day

operations you work Saturday and Sunday and you would be maybe off

Monday, Tuesday this week and the next few weeks you keep changing.

I : So that was separate f rom the s tee l foundry or was that the same?

R : O h n o , t h a t ' s a d i f f e r e n t o u t fi t . I t ' s t h e r o l l i n g m i l l . S t e e l

o p e r a t i o n a t t h e r o l l i n g m i l l . A l w a y s r i g h t . / A n d t h e n y o u g o t t h e

b last furnaces and then—

I : Was tha t t he Open Hear th?

R : Ye a h , |Qp e n H e a r t h . Th e y c a l l i t t h e B l a s t Fu r n a c e t o d a y. Op e n H e a r t h

was the old operat ion. They got these basic oxygen furnaces now, put

this new operat ion in there and i t used to take them 8 hours to melt

so much steel, now they can, with these new basic oxygen furnaces i t 's

forced air, pure air they heat up the metal and they can make three of

them a day now. They introduced that in Germany. Germany is the one

that 's got the patent on what they ca l l the bas ic oxygen furnace

operat ions. /That 's been, there was on ly one le f t w inger to my

knowledge ever got elected and that was Johnny Duncan and beside

Johnny Duncan I think he was two terms or three terms,! it has always

been, I hate to label them r ight wingers because there were a lot of
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the guys that voted on good l iberal issues, you know. Because we had
' r

another guy who was President his name was Carl Smith. /Carl Smith was

one o f the fi rs t o rgan ize rs we had in the s tee l opera t ions . And he

devoted many hours and hours and hours to the operations in

o rgan iz ing , bu t I don ' t cons ide r h im a l e f t w inge r o r a r i gh t w inge r.

He was just, he was never a gungho guy who was going for reforms. He,

I wouldn ' t say he was a r ight winger though. Car l Smith was pres ident

there for five terms probably, maybe even longer. 1

I : R i g h t a t t h e b e g i n n i n g ?

R: Yeah. /And the guy who replaced him was Pete Kasper, was considered a

l i be ra l guy. He was one o f t he p ionee r o rgna i ze rs . Bu t I aga in

wouldn' t say that he was gungho. He was just a good trade unionist .

/ A lot of t imes I am one of the guys who don't believe in, because a

guy makes lo t o f no ise , i t ' s good fo r the opera t ion , because a lo t o f

times you know again you don't go hunting in the woods with a brass

band. It 's always good, and I guess the t imes have changed where you

Miscel laneous which is known as adon ' t te leg raph a l l your punches .

b l a s t f u r n a c e o p e r a t i o n .

I : M i s c e l l a n e o u s i s a B l a s t F u r n a c e .

R : Ye a h i t ' s B l a s t F u r n a c e n o w.

I : What is the Open Hear th ca l led now?

R : B a s i c o x y g e n f u r a n c e .

I : O h , B a s i c o x y g e n f u r a n c e .

R : I t was dur ing my nego t ia t i ons tha t tha t was changed .

I : (So m isce l l aneous was mos t l y r i gh t?
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and just about a l l o f them were. /B ishopJoe Berry was r ight winger

was a r i gh t w inge r. He ' s admins t ra t i ve ass i s tan t t o P roc to r now the

Wayne Country Drain commissioner. 1 ^J

I : I t r i ed t o ge t i n t ouch w i th h im bu t t he pe rson I w ro te t o was ano the r

bishop, I guess it was two M. Bishops.

R : T h i s i s J i m B i s h o p .

I : O h J i m . I w a s t h i n k i n g , w a s t h e r e a M a u r i c e ?

R : M i l t o n .

I : M i l t o n . T h a t ' s t h e o n e I w a s t h i n k i n g o f . T h i s o n e i s —

R: J im Bishop. He works now for Assistant Drain Commission at Wayne

County. I go t h im tha t job because we suppor ted Proc tor. I t was a

c r u c i a l fi g h t . H e s a i d w h e n I ' m e l e c t e d , I ' l l g i v e y o u t h e

appointment, boy you th ink these guys got these union jobs got lot of
V Q

power. /Well we elected Coleman Yung, the UAW wouldn't support him.

Did not endorse him. I knew Coleman from Local 600 before we were

o r g a n i z e d , j u s t c a n ' t u n d e r s t a n d t h i s . H e r e i s a g u y t h a t ' s l a b o r a l l

the way through.

I : W h y w o u l d n ' t t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l s u p p o r t h i m ?

R : A t fi r s t I d o n ' t t h i n k t h e y t h o u g h t a B l a c k w o u l d w i n . A n d a t t h a t

t ime they suppor ted a guy i n De t ro i t , he l os t . I don ' t kow bu t t he re

was a per iod there we had th is act ion and counter act ion. Dur ing a

period that when we lost some benefits concessions a lot of these

people took i t out on our decisions later on. And when we asked t j iem

to suppor t they sa id the he l l w i th you guys . We had reca l l d r i ves

going on Michigan, I don't know if you heard about i t and had two

d e m o c r a t i c s e n a t o r s g e t r e c a l l w h i c h i s t h e fi r s t i n t h e h i s t o r y o f

M i c h i i ^ g a , i n a l l i t s h i s t o r y. S e n a t o r M i l l i g a n a n d S o r o p k i n , t w o
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democratic senators and the issue is that they voted for a 38 percent

increase in the state income tax program now the whole, everybody sat

down, everybody got into it business, labor, everybody says unless

Michigan doesn't in the next three years get this kind of tax program,

the welfare program, something is going to have to stop. And they

said well jeez, those pepole, the workers should at lesat assume some

obligation, continuing to pay the income, the unemployment benefits,

that unemployed, you know we had a hell of a situation here and so

everybody agreed they said it's an unusual, very abnormal situation we

have people who are, need aid for children, dependency children, we

have people are unemployed, we have elderly people, they all need

help. These places are bankrupt they will go to the federal

govenrment hasn't contributed its funds. We have taken emergency

step. One of the steps is that we should increase income tax to a

point where we think we can take care of all the people in our state

of Michigan, and also society. Everybody agreed to it. Labor we were

down there when I say, not me but our people that understand economics

at Solidarity House and Michigan State AFL-CIO council and their legal

people and their economists and you know they were down there, and

they said yes, its a terrible situation. And Mill lgan has been there

for 14 years and was a kind of scared to make, to do anything you know

just keep going. And it would drop and drop and it collapsed and he

said we are going to put the Michigan State back on the paying

proposition. We got to take some dramatic steps. And the whole

democratic administration voted for him. So they started the recalls.

So now they got my senator here, they are going after him, McCulloh

here. He's a democrat too and I have known McCulloh for umpteen
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years. But and i t was graduated back that as the people go back to

wo rk t he t ax wou ld f a l l . Th i s yea r s t a r t i ng i n Janua ry i t d ropped t he

unemployment dropped and i ts(?) unemployment in the state. And tax,

income tax applied 4 percentage points on one, .4, which means that

there is 6 more po in ts be fore i t ge ts to 1 percentage po in t and i t ' s

6.8 i t 's go ing to be 6.4. And i f i t drops some more every s ix months

t a x w i l l b e c u t b a c k , / w e l l , I a m l i k e e v e r y b o d y e l s e , I d o n ' t l i k e t o

pay taxes , bu t I don ' t wan t to see peop le go hungry. I don ' t wan t to

see o ld peop le th rown out o f work . So I ' ve go t someth ing I 'm w i l l ing

to share hal f a loaf of bread with them. But some of these people are

so, they ra ise taxes, they s tar ted th is reca l l movement and they got

the th ing in to hys ter ia now. So they had the e lec t ions and two o f

them were defeated. /

I : B y R e p u b l i c a n s .

R : We l l , a reca l l . You know they vo te them in , do you wan t to ma in ta in

them in o ffice or get them out . And you vote yes, get them out . And

they swept them out by big margins, you know two to one. But what

happened they got elected by 250,000 votes and they got defeated by

2 5 , 0 0 0 . N o t m a n y p e o p l e p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n t h e r e c a l l . T h e r e w a s j u s t

those wo had an ax to gr ind. And in th is instance the Republ icans got

their people out en mass. 25,000 people isn' t many people when you

compare to, I th ink Sorropkin said he got e lected by 275,000 votes.

He got defeated by what, 25,000 or something l ike that because people

don' t respond to recal ls . Two Democrats had been a l ready e l iminated

and one more is coming up McCulloh they just put the petition down and

th i s week i n t he pape r i t says 26 ,000 pe t i t i ons to reca l l i t , and say

they are going to put i t on the bal lo t . Wel l you know how people are
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they won ' t vo te . They j us t won ' t vo te . And he i s go ing to be

recal led because the Republ icans are going to get out en mass. So

that 's 3 Democrats that are gett ing whipped out and he said they are

going down the stream and they have been successful in everyone.
ft

There should be a lw that you couldn ' t be recal led unless i t was l ike

25 or 30 percent of the past vote is in.

R: [we l l , they ought to pass a lw the on ly t ime they ought to reca l l them

when he commits a crime against the state. You know what he did in my

opinion was good. I know i t 's going to cost more, but you know what

do you do forget about other people around you. You know, close yur

eyes, you know i f we are going to become cannibals the first thing you

know you are going to have to put bars and you won't be able to walk

outside. Are we going to be humans or what are we going to be. You

know we got people that are s tarv ing. You got jobs, haven' t worked

for two or three years. Now if we cal l employment out, some guys are

going to p ick up guns you know. I don ' t b lame them. I f we turn our

bakes ons them this is the issue so they got . . .

R: Where are we at now?

I : M i s c e l l a n e o u s t h e l a s t t i m e .

>,£<R: We stopped at Bishop,/Joe Berry, what was his name, i t was a Spanish
t

guy. He was a good rade unionist I wouldn' t say he was a lef t is t or a

r i g h t i s t b u t J o e B e r r y w a s d e fi n i t e l y a r i g h t w i n g e r. 1

I : And he was i n f o r qu i te a few te rms .

R: F ive te rms . Yeah I 'm go ing back a long t ime and I cou ld see the i r

faces but I can' t remember their names. Okay let 's see we are going

on into the Frame plant .

I : F r a m e ?
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R: \ Frame is as a general ru le good lef t -wing progressives.

I : I t w a s c a l l e d s o m e t h i n g e l s e e a r l i e r .

R : N e w s t e e l f o u n d r y.

I : I h a v e a l l t h e o l d n a m e s .

R: Yeah i t ' s been , New Stee l has gone ou t r igh t a f te r the war.

End Tape 5, Side A
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W. Dorosh
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R: George Knight. It was a left wing building. Once in a while you'll

get a guy elected there that doesn't represent either extreme.

Richard Wilkins he was in there about 4 years I think. He was a right

winger or a left winger. As a matter of fact this guy used to play

trumped for Erskine Hawkins Orchestra when Ella Fitzgerald started

singing and he is a Black guy and he traveld around the country and he

happened to be in Detroit, he was telling me about this, he was

President when I was president of the local, he come to Detroit and

Erskine Hawkins was in Detroit, he played at some ballroom, Black

ballroom and they were hiring in the Frame plant in the Rouge, and

some guy said I'm going to get a job so he went for the fun of it. He

got the job. And he kissed Erskine Hawkins good bye. He said what a

bum's life.

I: Wants some stability, hun?

R: Yeah, he said, what a bum's life. He said he used to ridge busses and

he says and played with his band in the '40s and he says he used to

have to go in the worse hotel in town beogre you could get in, and he

couldn't, 90% of the hotels wouldn't serve you, no bars, no

restaurants he says, you don't know when you would eat. /

R: How many plants you got there?

I: We already got production foundry.

R: L^ien there is Transportation.

I: Yeah that was not really a unit that had a locale. They were all

over.
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R: Yeah they had a bu i ld ing where they repa i red the t rucks and a l l t ha t ,

bu t t hey we re l oca ted a l l o ve r. Bu t t ha t ' s been a lmos t exc l us i ve l y

right wing. We had a couple of good guys in between that can't be

tagged one way or the other but , as a ru le, i t 's been a lways. Most of

the time they were ACTUers that were elected there.

I : T h e r e w e r e a l o t o f s k i l l e d w o r k e r s i n t h a t g r o u p .

R : W e l l , t r u c k r e p a i r , d i e s e l r e p a i r , r a i l r o a d r e p a i r , s k i l l i n t h a t

Now you go t /Ma in tenance un i t . P lan tw ide . A lmos trespect , yes .

exclusively r ight wing wi th one or two good guys in between that I

w o u l d n ' t c a l l l e f t o r r i g h t . T h e w h o l e h i s t o r y o f i t . t o o l a n d d i e ,

le f t w ing a l l the way through. Just about one or two in between wi th ,

l ike McCusker, no McCusker never got e lected, F i tzpat r ick got e lected

one year and he got wiped out. / John Blaich one term and got elected

r ight winger got wiped out . \ Then besides that they had been al l lef t

wingers a l l the way through.

I : John Or r was Pres iden t a long t ime, wasn ' t he?

R: No John Orr was pres ident I th ink one term.

I : O h j u s t o n e t e r m .

R: The firs t pres ident was J im Couser, the second pres ident was John

Bla ich , the th i rd p res iden t Vi rg i l Lacey and Lacey was in there fo r

abou t 12 yea rs . And then a f te r V i rg i l Lacey was John Or r. I t h i nk

John Orr was one term then he went to local as v ice president. Vice

pres ident I th ink th ree te rms and then he went on to in te rnat iona l

payro l l . Rep lac ing John Orr was F i tzpat r ick . Then Lacey came back

again and got reelected a couple of terms I th ink, and then he qui t

t h e p l a n t . H e w a s a q u a l i fi e d r e a l f a n t a s t i c n e g o t i a t o r . G o o d g u y.

Lord he was. He prepared for a case l ike an at torney d id . He d id
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research and oh he, any case he would take up boy he would win it, he

d i d t h e j o b . I f y o u d i d n ' t h a v e i t h e w o u l d t e l l y o u . H e u s e d t o

come in here, when he used to come in the committee room there was'r
many t imes, what they cal l nuisance grievances. / Nuisance grievance is

a grievance that you know, that the umpire has already ruled on a

s im i l a r case and i t ' s a l o t o f , u r ks t he guys , by w r i t i ng t he

gr ievance, a l l you do is c lu t ter up the procedure and in the end the

umpire wi l l just say we already made that decision back in 1902, you

know, and so Lacey used to come in every morning, I was on a

bargaining commit tee, he would come in the morning and the distr ict

committeeman would be in a slot on the wall and you could file the

g r ievances . And then the ba rga in ing commi t tee take the fi rs t s tage

grievances and look at them and then if we needed more fact sheets we

go on the floor and we locate the guy and say look, we've got to have

some fac ts . Th is i sn ' t c lea r. We read the compos i t un ion reques t and

the company dispostion and we say you got to have some more facts. So

we attach a fact sheet to i t yu know. We wri te up the second stage

and attach a fact sheet to i t , you know these are the facts and on a

second stage grievance, we say this, the aggrieved, the company

dispos i t ion does not respond to the gr ievance, the aggr ieved request

was from south center the company we say the aggrieved was penalized

f o r e t c e t e r a , e t c e t e r a t h e f a c t s a r e a s f o l l o w s . C h e c k w i t h t h e f a c t

sheet attachment A. And then we go on and find out the contract

prov ides the fo l low ing in a r t i c le so and so . You know, Lacey wou ld
ccome in before a bargaining committee and look at the grievances. He

would get fur ious i f you had a gr ievance that was not a gr ievance, you

know. He would read that gr ievance, he would look at i t , and would
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t e a r i t r i g h t u p . H e w o u l d t e a r i t r i g h t u p a n d t h r o w i t i n t h e

basket , because he used to te l l d is t r i c t commi t teemen, don ' t b r ing

gr ievances in here tha t a re junk . We are no t go ing to c lu t te r up the

procedure wi th junk . I f there is a prob lem you need the he lp o f

mysel f or o ther bargain ing commit teemen, you ta lk to the superv isor

about something we are prepared to do it. [(A grievance such as, the

foreman docked Tom Brown 6 minutes because he was standing at the

coffee machine for 20 minutes ta lk ing. That k ind o f gr ievance is a

nuisance grievance you know because nobody knows whether he stood

there 10 minutes, 20 inutes or i f he stood there 20 minutes, he ought

to be docked . You know th i s a in ' t a p layg round . Th i s i sn ' t a mov ie

house. This is a p lace of employment. You can go get your coffee and

brink i t back on your machine you can keep product ion. You can talk

for 2 or 3 minutes nobody is going to bother you but i f you stand

around and laugh and sit down for 20 minutes is pretty hard to defend.

So you get this here, so the committee said the company penalized Tom

Brown improperly. He was docked 10 minutes requesting the 6 minutes

and 10 minutes be returned to him plus have the foreman quit

h a r r a s s i n g h i m . W e l l t h e fi r s t p l a c e t h e d i s t r i c t c o m m i t t e e ' s j o b i s

to get the fo reman to qu i t har rass ing h im. He don ' t pu t i t down in a

gr ievance you know. You go up there and i f he's harrassed and i f you

keep your hands off this guy you got any complaints you go to the

depar tment don ' t you jus t go around har rass ing. That 's done, because

I was a distr ict committeeman I know I 'd cl imb al l over a foreman who

d id tha t imprope r l y. He ' s go t a r i gh t t o d ress a guy down tha t ' s

doing something wrong. But just to harrass h im, no d ice, you know.

A n d t h a t ' s a g r i e v a n c e t h a t i s y o u k n o w j u s t ( ? )
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procedu re . He wan ts some th i ng t ha t ' s l eg i t ima te , you know. And i t ' s

go t t o be f ac tua l . The re i s a m idn igh t sh i f t and t he re i s a day sh i f t

and there is an afternoon shift. And sometimes he may be gone for two

days because he may be in a board meeting all day, maybe he would be—

but i f he 's in a board meet ing he's got a, everybody has to r ing in

the p lant once a day. The chairman r ings in once a day. And

everybody e lse r ings in and r ing out . Now is the chai rman is

c o n d u c t i n g u n i o n b u s i n e s s h e m a y b e d o w n a t t h e ( ? ) f o r t w o

or three days, wel l he's not going to come running in the plant and

he'd ring £in down there. All he does is when he sees the company

down there, he just te l ls them, you know, look there is the empire I

want you to okay my time card. So once a week you take the time card

to the labor re la t ions and you okay i t . They put on there had the

umpire r ing for you, okay that the umpire r inged for you, had

negot ia t ions a t cent ra l s ta f f . You got to be in some uncy in bus iness

where they saw you, the company that you are with them. If you are at

the l oca l boa rd then the l oca l p res iden t , I used to s ign , I ' d g i ve h im

a note saying that we are a board meeting I cal led him at this t ime

you know, in my o ffice . In o ther ; they had to accoun t fo r the i r t ime.

They can' t be lay ing in bars and th ings of that nature. So when you

get th is k ind of gr ievances a l l these nuisance gr ievances an you count

them up l i ke th is , the guy tha t has a leg i t imate g r ievance rea l l y has

justice denied because by the time you get through them because you

have to take them at the dates they come in. They are stamped. Every

grievance that you get you give to the company, they stamp them in.

Da te rece ived . And then you take i t to the nex t s tage and i t ' s

s tamped again, second stage, you know, date received. Thi rd s tage.
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four th s tage. And everyone of them says that w i th in three days the

company has to respond to this disposi t ion. The company has to

respond. Meeting, you have meetings once a week with second stage and

they have to respond wi th in the next week. And general ly they respond

when we had the meeting wtjih them, the company makes up an agenda and

then tel l us these are the meetings these are the i tems we are going

to be taking up at the next meeting and we meet every week. And we we

look at the agenda we say well we got all these grievances and we look

through our grievances and we say look we got to get this and this and

this and i f we don' t get th is then we cal l the company and tel l them

we want a hold on this grievance a hold on this grievance because we

haven ' t go t a l l t he i n f o rma t i on we a re s t i l l seek i ng i t . The company

does that to us too somet imes. They wi l l say that these two

grievances we requested management to give us information from that

department and we have fa i led to get i t you know. And i f we don' t get

i t by next week we wi l l grant the gr ievance. We always said i f we

don ' t ge t i t by nex t week we ' l l pu l l the g r ievance . We are no t go ing

to wait for the guy. General ly what we wi l l do we send a note back to

the committeeman who wrote the original grievance and say get ahold of

t h i s g u y a n d t e l l h i m t o g i v e u s t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n . I ' l l g i v e y o u a n

i l lustrat ion a guy gets docked, he said I have been improper ly docked

for three and a half hours and I am requesting my pay. Well you want

to see the pay stub and you want to see date. You know, they think

you are a mind reader. But then you look at i t and you say what the

he l l , where is the in fo rmat ion . So te l l them to g ive us a da te so we

can check and go to payroll and see why he was docked, find out.

Because if I go up to the company and say look pay this guy for



135

docking, he wi l l say what day? What day are you ta lk ing about? That

k ind o f g r ievance, Lacey wou ld tear r igh t up . ; The t i re bu i ld ing is

gone. J The t i re bui ld ing was, the bui ld ing was there let 's see '41 and

the union days i t turned into a, they made army wings there in the war

and r igh t a f te r the war they s topped i t .

I : O h r e a l l y ?
> '

R : I th ink we had abou t 2 o r 3 p res iden ts in the re and bo th l i be ra l guys . " '
- J

They so ld the t i re p lan t to Sov ie t Un ion.

I : I hea rd some s to r y abu t t he sh ip ge t t i ng l os t a t sea o r some th ing a l l

the equipment going over there.

R : I d o n ' t k n o w .

I : S o m e b o d y t o l d m e t h a t .

R : T h e y s o l d i t t o t h e S o v i e t U n i o n r i g h t a f t e r t h e w a r. W e w e r e s t i l l

a l l i e s t h e n I g u e s s .

I: ^ Okay we've got Spring and Upset.

R: /Spr ing and upset . DeLoge, Mc in tosh le t me see the bu i ld ing, was on ly

there dur ing the war and then they d id away wi th i t . And they

expanded the Stamlp ing p lant in to that p lant . They combined the

bu i l d ings to bu i l d a c rossover. So they had th ree cha i rmen tha t I

know of there for a period of six years or something. They had a good

bargain ing commit tee together, i t was a le f t winger, was an Armenian

guy, Bagrad Var tan ian, he was a rea l le f t -w ing progress ive . P
I

I : W h a t w a s h i s n a m e ? * " " *

R : B a g r a d Va r t a n i a n . T h a t ' s A n n Va r t a n i a n ' s f a t h e r, y o u w e r e a t B o a t i n ' s

house?

I : O h y e s .

R : D i d h e t a l k t o y o u a b o u t h e r f a t h e r ?
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I : N o .

R: I t 's her fa ther he was an outstanding guy, when he d ied I was a

pal lbearer. He was a good union guy. He was on the bargaining

c o m m i t t e e f o r y e a r s t h e r e . G o o d . H e u s e d t o g e t e l e c t e d . I d o n ' t

th ink he even pu t ou t any l i t e ra tu re . \

I : Yeah I have never seen his name ment ioned.

R : Va r t a n i a n . A n n Va r t a n i a n ' s , P a u l B o a t i n ' s w i f e ' s f a t h e r .

I : { O k a y, t h e p l a s t i c b u i l d i n g .

R : ( T h e p l a s t i c b u i l d i n g i s t h e t i r e p l a n t .

I : O h r e a l l y. T h a t w a s t h e s a m e o n e ?

R: I t was the same th ing . A f te r the government ran ou t o f bus iness the re

for years then the company opened i t up as a palst ic plant for awhi le

then they c losed tha t down . We l l , l e t ' s see p las t i c p lan t Ed Lock^

was p res iden t the re . He was a good le f t w inger. One o f the o r ig ina l

pioneer organizers. As a matter of fact we used to meet by Ed's house

d u r i n g t h e o r g a n i z i n g d a y s . H e l i v e d i n D e l R e y. E d , w h o w a s a f t e r f

Ed . Ed was up four t imes . ! And then they c losed the p lace up I t i nk . f

I : How about the Jobb ing Foundry?

R: Jobbing Foundry. Wel l i t 's out of business now. We had George Popp.

He was jus t an o ld t imer. Th is guy cou ldn ' t even wr i te o r read.

Elected president and held that job for 4 terms, 4 one year terms.

But he was a guy who could go on a floor and negotiate all

se t t l emen ts . He was an o l d t ime r, one o f t he o r i g i na l o rgan i ze r s . He

was Romanian nationali ty, j But he was, there were very few whites in

the Jobbing Foundry, most were Blacks. And the Blacks had enough

respect fo r h im to e lec t h im. Then a f te r h im when they s tar ted

e lec t ing B lacks. One o f the guys, that was B lack, was e lec ted, what
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was his name? He was in there about three or four terms and then they

- ^closed the place up. \

I : W a s i t P e c k ?

f^ / l i \ \C leve land Peck. / C leve land Peck was in the Armour P la te bu i ld ing,

that was a wart ime plant. Cleveland Peck was in the Armor Plant and

so was Jimmy Watts. To show you how injustice is committed, there was

an elect ion in the armour plate and the elect ion was between Cleveland

Peck and Jimmy Watts, this was back in 1944, '45 or something l ike

that . Dur ing the war years. The UAW used to schedule convent ions

every two or three years and in the war years they didn't schedule any

conven t ions . The p rocedure in the cons t i t u t i on was tha t any p ro tes t

o f e l e c t i o n s i t g o e s t o t h e i n e r n a t i o n a l c o n v e n t i o n . T h e c o n v e n t i o n

made the decisions. So Jimmy Watts was elected President of the

Armour Plate bui ld ing and Cleveland Peck contested i t on the basis of

s o m a n y i r r e g u l a r i t i e s . ( I d o n ' t k n o w w h a t t h e i r r e g u l a r i t i e s w e r e b u t

everyplace i t went i t went to membership meeting, i f the membership

meet ing suppor ted the protest , then they appealed at the /next s tage,

the next stage would change i t back, you kow, and return i t and i t

would go to the next procedure. At that t ime i t would have to go f rom

your l oca l un ion , I mean f rom the un i t , t o the loca l un ion , the l oca l

un ion to the reg ion , the reg ion to the i n te rna t i ona l boa rd , f rom the

i n t e r n a t i o n a l b o a r d t o t h e c o n v e n t i o n . We l l a n y w a y i t j u s t t o o k f o u r

years to go through.

I : The bu i l d i ng was c l osed up by t hen .

R: Yeah so what happens, at the convent ion i t was academic, you know, the

bui ld ing was c losed up and every th ing. Then when, I th ink i t was the

'48 convent ion, i f I remember so, the commit tee came into the local
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un ion to inves t iga te i t and a l l tha t and we sa id what the he l l—yeah

but i t went through a l l the procedures and the convent ion gr ievance

committee the grievance committee has got to come up with a decision

because there might be a s imi lar s i tuat ion, you know, that may

corespond to i t , and you have a convent ion dec is ion . So i t goes a l l
Pthe way to the convention and Cleveland eck and Jimmy Watts at that

time, Jimmy Watts was on the staff of the local union and Peck was on

the bargain ing commit tee in the engine p lant and so they were s i t t ing

together and i t just so happened and they were reading the decision of

the convent ion commit tee, sa id therefore the commit tee concludes that

the, J immy Watts has improperly been elected and therefore shal l be

removed and Cleveland Peck be declared the winner as president of the

Jobbing Foundry. J immy Watts got up and said wel l I 'm sorry I 'm a

g o o d l o s e r . I t w a s v i c t o r y. T h e b u i l d i n g ' s g o n e . E l e c t i o n ' s g o n e .

So they changed i t around. Changes now, now the administrat ive

ass i s tan t goes ou t and i nves t i ga tes i t r i gh t away. He ' s go t t o gfie t a

d i s p o s i t i o n w i t h i n 6 0 d a y s . B u t t h i s w e n t o n f o r f o u r y e a r s . Ta l k

about a bureauracy. God almighty. But they had many of them cases.

They done away with that procedure. There is no more grievance

r e p o r t . I t a l l b e l o n g s t o t h e p r e s i d e n t a n d t h e y s a i d n o w a y. T h e r e

is a prob lem, you cor rec t i t . I f you need some more admin is t ra t i ve

ass is tance we g ive you more o f i t . By God le t 's get these th ins out

o f he re , wh i ch i s r i gh t . The peop le wan t immed ia te j us t i ce , t hey
3

don't want to wait 4 yars where it becomes academic.

I : O k a y P r o d u c t i o n F o u n d r y.

R : I j a v e y 3 o t h a t o n e .

I : Was t ha t t he same as—
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R: I gave you Produc t ion Foundry, Johnson, Hester.

I : O h t h a t w a s I r o n .

R : T h a t ' s t h e s a m e o n e .

I : Oh I ron and Product ion are the same.

R : I t w a s t h e p r o d u c t i o n f o u n d r y fi r s t a n d t h e y c h a n g e d i t t o I r o n . I

don ' t know what the d i f fe rence is .

I: Okay jhow about Foundry Machine shop?

R: That was in product ion foundry and Jack Poole was present there for

many years.

I : H e w a s a —

R : L e f t w i n g e r .

I : L e f t w i n g e r ?

R: I wouldn' t say he was a lef t winger I 'd say he was, he a good, he

wasn ' t a r igh t w inger e i ther. He was a good t rade un ion is t . He was

one o f the o r ig ina l o rgan izers . / Le t ' s see a f te r Jack Poo le there was

one more president and then they done away with that unit.

I : W a s t h a t F r a n k l i n ? H a r o l d F r a n k l i n ? 3
rR: No. He never was e lec ted pres ident there . [ Godf rey Frank l in was

elected the president of the Product ion Foundry now that you ment ion

i t . He jus t go t de fea ted as cand ida te fo r Mayor o f H igh land Park .

Just defeated, he's got an appeal in the courts now.

I : What was he a t tha t t ime, was he a le f t w inger?

R: Yeah he was a le f t w inger. Then he worked on the s ta f f . Then he

r e t i r e d n o w h e i s r u n n i n g i n c i t y p o l i t i c s , f

I : How abou t Pa r t s and Accesso r i es .
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R : J Pa r t s and Accesso r i es , r i gh t w ing , a l l t he t ime . And l e t me te l l yo

w h a t t h e r i g h t t i t l e f o r t h a t i s t o d a y. D e p o t . T h e r e i s a B r o w n s t o w n

Depot and a National Parts Depot. There are two depots.

I : Was Aluminum Foundry?

R : Tha t ' s gone a l ong t ime ago . No l onge r t he re . And I t h i nk t hey done

away with it right when the war came out.

I : D i d w e d o t h e s t e e l f o u n d r y ?
e

R : I s a i d t h e r e i s n o s t e , l l f o u n d r y.

I : B e f o r e ?

R : The A rmou r P l a t e , t ha t ' s A rmou r P l a t e .

I : T h a t ' s t h e s a m e . A n d t h e l a s t o n e i s A i r c r a f t . T h a t w a s o n l y d u r i n g

the war too.

R: That was in war t ime. Let 's see J fow as the cha i rman dur ing the

war t ime. Tha t ' s the Eng ine P lan t now. I t was abou t two years .

I : Was tha t McCusker, Henry o r Yos t?

R : L a r r y Yo s t . N o w y o u g o t i t . / L a r r y Yo s t d u r i n g i n t h e w a r t i m e p e r i o d .

Larry Yost, I don't know where he's at now.

I : Ye a h I t r i e d l o o k i n g h i s n a m e u p i n t h e p h o n e b o o k , b u t d i d n ' t fi n d

i t .

3 rR: ^Wel l Larry Yost openly procla imed that he was a Socia l is t , member of

t h e S o c i a l i s t P a r t y.

I : O h r e a l l y. S o c i a l i s t s w e r e , h e w a s t h e o n e t h a t l e d t h e - -

R : L e d t h e s t r i k e .

I : The movement aga ins t the no s t r i ke p ledge .

R : Y e s , t h a t ' s r i g h t .

I : H e w a n t e d t o g e t r i d o f i t .
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R : T h a t ' s r i g h t . H e l e d a w i l d c a t s t r i k e i n h i s p l a n t t h e y g o t r i d o f

him during the war and about 27 other committeemen and officers and

everybody. He wiped them a l l out .

I : T h e y n e v e r g o t r e i n s t a t e d ?

R: No t dur ing the war. Government moved r igh t i n on them. We l l th i s i s

what I say, he was an adventurer you know. He told everybody he was a

Soc ia l i s t , and we a re go ing to s ta r t w i th Soc ia l i sm.

R : A n d I s a i d w h a t k i n d o f i d i o t i s t h i s , y o u k n o w. S o h e l e d a w i l d c a t ,

I don ' t know what the heck i t was a l l about . And they got them. They

got a whole mess of them. I remember some of the names and they went

to the ^mpr ie and the Empire sa id no way. They v io lated a no-st r ike

pledge. They made so much noise and I 'm against a no-str ike pledge

a n d i f I g o t a p r o b l e m . . . . H e ' s a v e r y fl u e n t s p e a k e r a v e r y g o o d

look ing k id , he was b lond, I th ink he was Swed ish i f I 'm cor rec t^

I : Ye a h , I j u s t s a w a p i c t u r e o f h i m t o d a y.

R : Ve r y b l o n d h a i r , g o o d l o o k i n g , v e r y l i g h t c o m p l e x i o n . A l l m o u t h , y o u

know. You' re going hunt ing in the woods wi th a brass band. He

probably went ao^und and told the, I 'm going to go shut i t down and

you come on follow me down. I'll show, you know.

I : S o h e r a n o f f a l e f t w i n g t i c k e d ?

R : N o . H e d i d n ' t a s s o c i a t e w i t h t h e l e f t w i n g . H e t h o u g h t t h e l e f t w i n g

was crazy and the right w^ing were company agents.

I : Oh so he was independent?

R: I don ' t know wha t he was , you know, to te l l you the t ru th . He ran fo r

vice president of the Local 600 on an independent, too, there were two

s l a t e s . A n d h e g o t a s i z e a b l e v o t e o n i t , I ' l l h a v e t o a d m i t . H e p u t

a l l h i s p i c tu res , b i j c f g lamour p i c tu re .
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R: Yeah I think so. I can' t remember who he ran against now. / Nobody

knew anybody, fl remember the first election we had we~had, we had an

e l e c t i o n o f t h e d e l e g a t e s t o t h e c o n v e n t i o n . We e l e c t e d t h e fi r s t

committeemen who were elected, was in a big room. We just go up and

said, everybody knew me as the guy who was signing people up and I

sa id we l l now, they want us to e lec t S tewar ts , tha t 's what they ca l led

them and I got about four or five of the guys in the department to

c a l l t h i s m e e t i n g a n d i t w a s s t i l l b e f o r e t h e s t r i k e . S o w e g o t

together and we had about 12 guys in the room, that 's al l the guys

that would show up. We invited maybe 50 or 100, you know. But only

about 12 guys showed up. We said well, we need a steward to start

funct ioning, you know and said wel l why don't you take i t Walter, why

d o n ' t y o u t a k e . N o b o d y w a n t e d i t y o u k n o w. T h e y ' l l g e t fi r e d . I

s a i d , o k a y I ' l l t a k e i t . S o t h a t ' s t h e w a y w e e l e c t e d t h e m . S o t h e n

af ter we funct ioned and then when the st r ike, when we got the first

c o n t r a c t w e ( ? ) o n J u n e 2 0 t h w e g o t o u r fi r s t c o n t r a c t a n d

then they sa id now you got to o ffic ia l ly e lec ted the s tewards and

notify company, we need a chairman and everything. And so we called a

meeting at the hall and they would come in there and nobody knew

nobody. We were al l looking at each other and I was chair ing the
6

meet ing and I said wel l the nominat ions, wel l what 's wrong wi th yu

c o n t i n u i n g , s o m e b o d y s a y s . O k a y, I ' l l c o n t i n u e . Yo u k b w t h a t ' s t h e

way he conducted. Nobody knows, everybody is afraid, you don't know

what to do, and you have been handl ing i t , and so r ight af ter that ,

the UAW had put out a call for the convention, you know, because they

had other locals that were functioning and we just come on the scene
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in '41. And there as a state, CIO state convention it was not a UAW,

state convention in Detroi t here, you know. So we knew i t when he

said we all put it on the acceptances and the bottom must have had 100

names on i t . Nobody knew nobody. And they guy that got e lected, got

just about every vote was a guy by the name of Pat O'Brien and he

d i d n ' t w a n t t o g o , h e j u s t . . . I w i l l n e v e r f o r g e t t h a t .

I : W h y d i d t h e y v o t e f o r h i m ? - ?

,71,R: Pat O'Br ien a i l -Amer ican name. I Guys—

End Tape 5, Side B


